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PART I

Item 1.

Business.
(a)

General Development of Business.

From fiscal 1990 through fiscal 1995, the Company, through its
subsidiary, Pier 1 Imports (U.S.), Inc. ("Pier 1"), expanded its specialty

retail operations from 517 retail stores to 628 stores. In fiscal year 1995,
the Company continued to execute its expansion plan by opening 42 new Pier 1
Imports stores, including one store representing a test of a mall-based
concept, and closed 50 stores. The number of new stores opened during the
fiscal year paralleled the previous fiscal year's rate when the Company
opened 48 new Pier 1 Imports stores. Throughout the fiscal year, the Company
continued its focus on cost efficiencies and expense controls. Subject to
changes in the retail environment, availability of suitable store sites and
adequate financing, the Company plans to open 55 new Pier 1 Imports stores
and six to ten mall-based stores in fiscal year 1996.
Set forth below is a list by city of Pier 1-operated stores
opened in fiscal 1995:
Altoona, PA
Anderson, SC
Auburn, MA
Bloomington, IN
Bridgewater, NJ
Council Bluffs, IA
Culver City, CA
Dothan, AL
Enfield, CT
Fairborn, OH
Fort Worth, TX
Grand Island, NE
Grand Junction, CO
Green Bay, WI
Hampton, VA
Holland, MI
Holyoke, MA
Hyannis, MA
Idaho Falls, ID
Jacksonville, FL
Lake Jackson, TX

Littleton, CO
Manchester, CT
Manchester, NH
Manhattan, KS
Middletown, NY
Midland, TX
Naples, FL
Orlando, FL
Paramus, NJ
Peoria, AZ
Puyallup, WA
Rochester, MN
San Angelo, TX
Saugus, MA
Scottsdale, AZ
Sioux City, IA
St. Charles, IL
Tallahassee, FL
Traverse City, MI
Tupelo, MS
West Covina, CA

Presently, Pier 1 maintains regional distribution center
facilities in or near Baltimore, Maryland; Columbus, Ohio; Chicago, Illinois;
Fort Worth, Texas; Los Angeles, California; and Savannah, Georgia. For the
distribution centers in Fort Worth and Columbus, the Company has filed
applications to create Foreign Trade Zones to facilitate the shipment of
goods from overseas sources to Canadian and Mexican Pier 1 retail units.
In fiscal 1994, the Company recorded a non-cash special
charge of $21.3 million before taxes for a store-closing provision that was
established to reflect the anticipated costs to close 49 stores with
histories of underperformance and high occupancy costs and to close the
Canadian distribution center and administrative offices. At the end of
fiscal 1995, the Company had closed 46 stores, and in March 1995, the
Canadian distribution center and related administrative offices were closed.
Agreements have been reached with a majority of landlords regarding lease
terminations for the remaining stores in the store-closing program.
In fiscal 1993, the Company invested in preference stock of
The Pier Retail Group Limited ("The Pier") located in the United Kingdom. As
of February 25, 1995, loans to and investments in The Pier aggregated $3.3
million, with additional debt guarantees of approximately $6.4 million. The
Pier is an eleven-store retail chain that offers decorative home furnishings
and related items in a store setting similar to that operated by the Company.
In fiscal 1996 The Pier plans to add an additional five stores in the United
Kingdom.
In fiscal 1994, Pier 1 entered into a product distribution
agreement with Sears de Mexico S.A. ("Sears") to supply Sears with Pier 1
merchandise to be sold by Sears in retail space exclusively dedicated to the
sale of Pier 1 merchandise within certain Sears stores in Mexico. Presently,
the "store-within-a-store" concept is operating in six (6) locations in
Mexico City and one (1) location in Monterrey. Under the terms of the
arrangement Sears provides the dedicated retail selling space and the sales
associates to manage the business on a local level. Sears pays Pier 1 for
the merchandise after its retail sale and pays certain fees for the use of
Pier 1's trademarks and merchandising services.
In December 1994, the Company completed a private placement of
$12.5 million of 8 1/2% exchangeable debentures due December 1, 2000,

providing for mandatory exchange of the debentures into the 2.1 million
shares of General Host common stock held by the Company. The Company
received net proceeds of $11.1 million from the sale of the exchangeable
debentures and intends to utilize the funds for general corporate purposes.
On December 9, 1994, the Board of Directors announced the
adoption of a Shareholder Rights Plan consisting of a dividend of one common
share purchase right payable on each share of the Company's common stock
outstanding on December 21, 1994, pursuant to a Rights Agreement between the
Company and First Interstate Bank of Texas, N.A., as rights agent.
Additionally, one share purchase right will be issued with respect to each
share of common stock issued after December 21, 1994.
(b)

Financial Information About Industry Segments.

The Company operates in one business segment consisting of the
retail sale of decorative home furnishings and related items.
Financial information with respect to the Company's business
is found in the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements which are set
forth in Item 8 herein.
(c)

Narrative Description of Business.

The specialty retail operations of Pier 1 consist of a chain
of retail stores operating in the United States, Canada, and Puerto Rico
under the name "Pier 1 Imports" along with relationships involving
international retail operations in the United Kingdom and Mexico, selling a
wide variety of furniture, decorative home furnishings, dining and kitchen
goods, accessories and other specialty items for the home, and distinctive
casual clothing and fashion accessories.
On February 25, 1995, Pier 1 operated 603 stores in 46 states
of the United States, and Puerto Rico, and 25 stores in two Canadian
provinces as well as additional international operations in the United
Kingdom and Mexico. It also had franchised 31 stores in 21 states. The
company-operated Pier 1 stores average approximately 7,500 square feet in
size of retail selling space, and are generally located in strip shopping
centers or are freestanding units, predominately located near or in suburbs
of metropolitan areas. During fiscal 1995, net sales of Pier 1 totalled
$712.0 million. Pier 1 stores have their highest sales volumes during
November and December, reflecting the Christmas selling season.
Pier 1 offers a diverse selection of products consisting of
over 5,000 items. While the broad categories of Pier 1's merchandise remain
constant, individual items within these product groupings change frequently
in order to meet the demands of customers. The principal categories of
merchandise include the following:
FURNITURE - This product group consists of furniture to be
used in sun rooms, living, dining and kitchen areas, and on patios and
constituted approximately 27.5%, 26.8% and 26.3% of the total retail sales of
Pier 1 in fiscal years 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. These goods are
mainly imported from Taiwan, Hong Kong, China, the Philippines and Indonesia,
and are made of metal and handcrafted natural materials, including rattan,
buri, willow, pine, beech, rubber, and selected hardwoods with either natural
or painted finishes.
DECORATIVE HOME FURNISHINGS - This product group constituted
the most diverse category of merchandise in Pier 1's sales mix and
contributed approximately 25.7%, 24.4% and 23.7% to Pier 1's total retail
sales in fiscal years 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. These items are
imported from approximately 40 countries and include brass, marble and wood
items as well as lamps, vases, dried and silk flowers, baskets, wall
decorations and numerous other decorative items, practically all of which are
handcrafted from natural materials.
DINING AND KITCHEN GOODS - This product group is imported from
India, the Far East and Europe and includes ceramics, dinnerware and other
functional and decorative items. These goods accounted for approximately
15.2%, 14.1% and 14.1% of the total retail sales of Pier 1 in fiscal years
1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
TEXTILES - This product group consists of linen items,
padding, custom order fabrics as well as window coverings, bedspreads, and

pillows, of which most items are produced from original designs created both
domestically and in India. These goods accounted for approximately 12.9%,
13.5% and 13.9% of the total retail sales of Pier 1 in fiscal years 1995,
1994 and 1993, respectively.
CLOTHING, JEWELRY AND FASHION ACCESSORIES - This product group
is imported from India, Greece and Indonesia and accounted for approximately
8.7%, 12.1% and 14.4% of the total retail sales of Pier 1 in fiscal years
1995, 1994 and 1993 respectively.
Merchandise offered for sale in Pier 1 stores largely consists
of items that require a significant degree of handcraftsmanship. Most items
are imported directly by Pier 1 from foreign suppliers. Pier 1 is not
dependent on any particular supplier and has enjoyed long-standing
relationships with many vendors. During fiscal 1995, Pier 1 imported
approximately 23.7% of its purchases from China, 18.2% from India, and 31.4%
from Indonesia, Japan, Thailand, the Philippines, and Italy. The remaining
26.7% was imported from various Asian, European, Central American, South
American and African countries or obtained from United States manufacturers,
wholesalers or importers. In selecting the source of a product, Pier 1
considers quality, dependability of delivery and cost. For the most part,
the imported merchandise is handcrafted in cottage industries and small
factories.
Pier 1 currently maintains six regional distribution centers
located in or near Baltimore, Maryland; Los Angeles, California; Fort Worth,
Texas; Chicago, Illinois; Savannah, Georgia; and Columbus, Ohio, and leases
additional space from time to time and on a temporary basis. Imported
merchandise and a portion of domestic purchases are delivered to the
distribution centers, unpacked, and made available for shipment to the
various stores in the center's region. The merchandise is then distributed
to the retail stores by contract carriers. Due to the time delays involved
in procuring merchandise from foreign suppliers, Pier 1 is required to
maintain a significant amount of inventory in order to be assured of a
sufficient supply of products to its customers. A stock of regularly
reordered items and temporary inventory surpluses have, from time to time,
been carried at the distribution centers.
Pier 1 stores have no direct national competitors. The major
competition arises at a local level from other retailers offering similar
lines of merchandise, such as small specialty sections of large department
stores, home furnishing stores, small specialty import stores and discount
stores. The Company believes Pier 1 enjoys a competitive edge over these
stores, due to its greater name awareness and the extent and variety of the
merchandise offered at Pier 1 stores. While other competing stores may offer
a few items that change somewhat infrequently, Pier 1 offers over 5,000 items
of which approximately forty percent (40%), change each year.
As a retailer of imported merchandise, Pier 1 is subject to
certain risks that typically do not affect retailers of domestically produced
merchandise, including the need to order merchandise from four to twelve
months in advance of delivery and to pay for such merchandise at the time it
is loaded for transport to designated U.S., international or Canadian
destinations. Additionally, dock strikes, fluctuations in currency values
and monetary exchange rates, restrictions on the convertibility of the dollar
and other currencies, duties, taxes and other charges on imports, import
quota systems and other restrictions generally placed on foreign trade can
affect the price, delivery and availability of ordered merchandise. The
inability to import products from certain countries or the imposition of
significant tariffs could have a material adverse effect on the results of
operations of Pier 1.
In 1988, the Omnibus Trade and Competitiveness Act was signed
into law. This legislation was enacted in response to a perceived decline in
U.S. global competitiveness and the continuing presence of unfair trade
practices that limit U.S. exporters' access to foreign markets. Under the
law, unfair trade practices of countries around the world may be investigated
by the United States Trade Representative and such investigations may lead to
sanctions which could take the form of quotas or increased duties on imports
into the U.S.
On March 3, 1994, President Clinton signed an executive order
re-instituting a trade provision known as Special 301 which is designed to
allow negotiations before countries are designated as priority foreign
countries. Priority foreign countries are the nations whose trade practices,

if corrected, would provide the greatest potential for expansion of U.S.
exports. In April 1995 the Office of the U.S. Trade Representative in its
annual report under Special 301 did not designate any country as a priority
foreign country which would have triggered immediate negotiations and the
threat of trade sanctions. The United States may employ other measures to
implement its international trade policies and objectives, such as the
withdrawal, selectively or entirely, of most favored nation ("MFN") status to
countries around the world, which would cause U.S. import duties to increase.
Presently, the President is considering the MFN status of the Peoples
Republic of China, which, if lost entirely, would cause the Company to source
affected goods from other countries. Any type of sanction is likely to
increase the Company's import costs or limit the availability of products
purchased from sanctioned countries. In such event, the Company will seek
similar products from other countries.
In April 1994, the United States and more than 100 other
countries culminated over six years of negotiations with an agreement to
reduce, over time, tariff and non-tariff barriers to world trade in goods and
services and which created a new world trade organization to replace the
General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade next year. United States
congressional approval was obtained in December 1994. Any agreement which
may reduce tariff and non-tariff barriers in international trade is
considered beneficial to the Company's business in the United States and
around the world.
Pier 1 owns
which its company-operated
registrations are numbered
and 1,104,059 for the mark

three federally registered service marks under
and franchised stores do business. These
948,076 and 1,620,518 for the mark PIER 1 IMPORTS
PIER 1.

On February 25, 1995, Pier 1 employed 8,671 persons: 504 were
full time employees at Pier 1's home office, 3,781 were full time employees
and 4,386 were part time employees.
The Company maintains one wholly owned foreign subsidiary,
which is incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong. The foreign subsidiary
manages certain merchandise procurement, export and financial service
functions for Pier 1.
Item 2.

Properties.
(a)

Properties of the Company.

As a holding company, the Company does not own any physical
property materially important to the conduct of its business operations. The
Company's home office in Fort Worth, Texas is leased by Pier 1.
(b)

Properties of Pier 1.

Pier 1 leases certain properties consisting principally of
retail stores, warehouses and office space. In July 1985, Pier 1 entered
into a lease agreement which currently provides 128,770 square feet of office
space in downtown Fort Worth for the Company's home office. Most of Pier 1's
retail store operations are conducted pursuant to leases which are classified
as operating leases, and at February 25, 1995, the present value of Pier 1's
minimum future operating lease commitments for various stores and warehouses
aggregated approximately $393 million.
Pier 1 currently owns and leases distribution space of
approximately 3 million square feet. Additional temporary space requirements
are met by leasing space on a short term basis.
The following table shows the distribution by state of Pier 1
stores operated by Pier 1 as of February 25, 1995:
United States and Puerto Rico
- ----------------------------Alabama
5
Arizona
9
Arkansas
2
California
80
Colorado
15
Connecticut
13
Delaware
2
District of Columbia
1

Nebraska
Nevada
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
North Carolina
North Dakota

4
3
4
18
2
30
11
3

Florida
Georgia
Idaho
Illinois
Indiana
Iowa
Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
Montana

41
17
2
33
10
5
5
5
8
16
20
23
13
3
10
1

Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Puerto Rico
Rhode Island
South Carolina
Tennessee
Texas
Utah
Virginia
Washington
West Virginia
Wisconsin
Wyoming

31
5
5
22
1
2
6
11
51
4
21
15
1
13
1

Canada
- -----Ontario
Quebec

16
9
Warehouse properties that are owned or leased by Pier 1 are as

follows:
Location
- -------Baltimore, Maryland
Columbus, Ohio
Chicago, Illinois
Fort Worth, Texas
Rancho Cucamonga, California
Savannah, Georgia

Approx. Sq. Ft.
--------------634,186 sq. ft.
527,127 sq. ft.
297,552 sq. ft.
454,868 sq. ft.
515,990 sq. ft.
393,216 sq. ft.

Owned/Leased
Facility
-----------Leased
Leased
Owned
Owned
Leased
Owned

Pier 1 participates in a limited partnership to provide for
financing and construction of Pier 1 retail stores. As of February 28, 1995,
the partnership owned 33 retail stores that are currently open and operating.
The investment by the partnership in land and buildings approximated $44.3
million.
The Company has agreements with unaffiliated groups to lease
certain stores and distribution center space. These unaffiliated groups are
committed to make available up to $111.8 million for development or
acquisition of properties leased by Pier 1. As of February 25, 1995, the
Company has used $82.8 million of that availability. Of the $82.8 million,
Pier 1 has utilized $22.8 million to finance the development of 13 nursery
centers for a subsidiary of Sunbelt Nursery Group, Inc. ("Sunbelt"). These
properties are leased by Pier 1 and subleased to the Sunbelt subsidiary (see
"Item 7-Liquidity and Capital Resources"). Agreements with these groups mature
over the next three years, and the Company is continuously monitoring
financial markets to optimize renewal terms.
Item 3.

Legal Proceedings.

There are various claims, lawsuits, investigations and pending
actions against the Company and its subsidiaries incident to the operation of
their businesses. Liability, if any, associated with these matters is not
determinable at February 25, 1995. While a certain number of the lawsuits
involve substantial amounts, it is the opinion of management, after
consultation with counsel, that the ultimate resolutions of such litigation
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position,
results of operations or liquidity.
Item 4.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

There were no matters submitted to a vote of the Company's
security holders during the fourth quarter of the Company's fiscal year.
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

CLARK A. JOHNSON, age 64, has served as Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and a member of the Executive Committee since March
1988. He has been a Director of the Company since March 1983. From May 1985
to March 1988, Mr. Johnson was President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is a Director of Albertson's, Inc., InterTAN, Inc., The Actava
Group Inc., Anacomp, Inc. and Heritage Media Corporation.
MARVIN J. GIROUARD, age 55, has served as President and Chief Operating
Officer of the Company and as a Director since August 1988. From May 1985
until August 1988, he served as Senior Vice President - Merchandising of Pier
1. Additionally, he serves as a Director of ENSERCH Corporation.
ROBERT G. HERNDON, age 61, has served as Executive Vice President of the
Company since August 1988 and Chief Financial Officer since November 1985.
He served as Senior Vice President from November 1985 to August 1988. He is
a director of The Leather Factory.
J.
Affairs
as Vice
1985 to

RODNEY LAWRENCE, age 49, has served as Senior Vice President of Legal
and Secretary of the Company and Pier 1 since June 1992, and served
President of Legal Affairs and Secretary of the Company from November
June 1992.

E. MITCHELL WEATHERLY, age 47, has served as Senior Vice President of
Human Resources of the Company since June 1992 and served as Vice President
of Human Resources of the Company from June 1989 to June 1992 and of Pier 1
from August 1985 to June 1992.
PHIL E. SCHNEIDER, age 43, has served as Senior Vice President of
Marketing of the Company and Pier 1 since May 1993 and served as Vice
President of Advertising of Pier 1 from January 1988 to May 1993.
CHARLES H. TURNER, age 38, has served as Senior Vice President of Stores
of the Company and Pier 1 since August 1994 and served as Controller and
Principal Accounting Officer of the Company from January 1992 to August 1994.
PERRY R. MCNEELY, age 47, has served as Senior Vice President of
Logistics of the Company and Pier 1 since June 1994.
JAY R. JACOBS, age 40, has served as Senior Vice President of
Merchandising of the Company since May 1995 and served as Vice President of
Pier 1 Divisional Merchandising from May 1993 to May 1995.
The officers of the Company, who are appointed by the Board of
Directors, hold office until their successors are elected and qualified, or
until their earlier death, resignation or removal.
None of the above executive officers has any family relationship with
any other of such officers. None of such officers was selected pursuant to
any arrangement or understanding between him and any other person.
PART II
Item 5.
Matters.

Market for the Company's Common Equity and Related Stockholder

MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION
Fiscal 1995
- ----------First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

Market Price(1)
High
Low
----------9 1/8
7 3/8
8 5/8
7 1/8
8 3/4
7 3/8
10 1/8
7 1/2

Fiscal 1994
- ----------First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

12
10
11
10

1/4
1/8
1/4
7/8

8
8
8
8

3/8
1/4
3/8
3/8

Cash Dividends
Per Share
-------------$0.025
0.025
0.030
0.030

$0.020
0.025
0.025
0.025

(1) Market prices do not reflect impact of 5% stock dividend distributed May
1995.
The Company's common stock is traded on the New York Stock
Exchange. As of May 3, 1995, there were approximately 16,000 shareholders of
record of the Company's common stock.
Certain of the Company's existing loan agreements limit specific
payments and distributions, including cash dividends, loans to shareholders
and purchases of treasury stock. Generally the Company may make "restricted
payments," as defined in the loan agreements, which include the payment of
cash dividends, up to an aggregate maximum of approximately $13.9 million as
of February 25, 1995. Additionally, the Company is required to maintain
various financial ratios. The Company's Board of Directors currently expects
to pay modest cash dividends in fiscal 1996, but intends to retain most of
future earnings for the expansion of the Company's business. A cash dividend
of $.03 per share was paid May 17, 1995 and a stock dividend of 5% per share
was paid May 8, 1995. The Company's dividend policy will depend upon the
earnings, financial condition and capital needs of the Company and other
factors deemed relevant by the Company's Board of Directors.
Item 6.Selected Financial Data.
FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Unaudited)
($ in millions except per share amounts)
10-Year
Compound
Annual
Growth
Rate
--------

Year Ended
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------1995
1994
1993
1992
1991
1990
1989
1988
1987
1986
1985
----------------------------------

Summary of operations:(1)
Net sales
15.2%
$712.0
685.4 629.2
586.7
562.7
516.9
414.6
327.2
262.3
203.9
173.5
Gross profit
15.1%
$277.6
259.6 246.2
228.4
210.5
210.1
169.7
135.2
109.0
81.6
68.1
Selling, general and
administrative
expenses
14.9%
$206.0
195.4 180.2
172.4
169.9
148.8
117.8
96.0
78.6
59.3
51.4
Depreciation and
amortization
19.0%
$ 16.0
15.8
15.1
15.0
14.3
13.1
10.0
7.9
5.5
3.5
2.8
Store-closing provision
$ 21.3
Write-down of General
Host securities
$ 7.5
2.0
Interest expense, net
14.9%
$ 12.0
16.8
15..0
16.3
12.3
9.7
10.0
8.1
3.6
3.6
3.0
Income before income
taxes and equity in
net income (loss)
of subsidiary
12.7%
$ 36.0
8.4
35.9
30.5
14.0
38.5
31.9
23.2
21.3
15.2
10.9
Equity in net income
(loss) of subsidiary
$ (3.6)
4.5
(2.4)
Net income for common
stockholders
15.5%
$ 24.9
5.9
23.0
26.3
6.3
25.3
21.6
15.8
12.0
8.6
5.9
Per common share data
(adjusted for stock
splits and dividends):(2)
Net income for common
stockholders
11.1%
$ .63
.15
.59
.68
.16
.64
.64
.47
.37
.31
.22
Cash dividends declared
$ .11
.10
.07
.15
.12
.08
.06
.02
.01
Stockholders' equity
16.0%
$ 5.67
5.09
5.11
4.56
4.07
4.60
3.42
2.79
2.33
1.73
1.28
Other financial data:
Working capital
21.4%
$267.8
229.0 225.2
160.0
126.7
144.3
117.2
87.2
96.8
43.4
38.6
Current ratio
4.1
3.5
3.4
3.0
2.1
3.2
2.9
2.3
3.3
2.4
3.5
Total assets
20.4%
$488.7
463.3 460.5
386.4
428.9
350.5
299.9
257.9
218.3
106.6
76.5
Long-term debt
19.2%
$154.4
145.2 147.2
106.8
140.6
92.6
121.3
96.5
101.5
26.7
26.7
Stockholders' equity
20.7%
$225.2
201.1 200.5
177.1
156.3
181.4
115.8
94.1
74.4
48.5
34.3
Weighted average shares
outstanding and common
stock equivalents
(millions)(2)
4.0%
39.7
39.5
39.2
38.9
38.4
39.5
33.8
33.8
32.0
28.1
26.7
Effective tax rate
31.0%
29.0
25.9
28.3
35.8
33.7
31.5
30.8
43.7
43.2
46.0
Return on common
stockholders'
average equity
11.0%
3.0
12.2
15.8
3.7
17.0
20.6
18.8
19.5
20.8
18.6
Return on average
total assets
5.1%
1.3
5.4
6.5
1.6
7.8
7.7
6.6
7.4
9.4
8.2
Pre-tax return on sales
5.1%
1.2
5.7
5.2
2.5
7.4
7.7
7.1
8.1
7.5
6.3
<FN>
(1) This financial summary is prepared on the basis of continuing operations after the distribution of the common shares of two
subsidiaries to shareholders in December 1985, and before the tax benefits of operating loss carryforwards fully utilized in
fiscal 1986.
(2) Reflects the effect of a 5% stock dividend distributed May 8, 1995, a 3% stock dividend distributed November 19, 1991, a 2%
stock dividend distributed May 15, 1991, stock splits on July 2, 1987, January 13, 1987 and July 18, 1986, and a 10% stock
dividend distributed February 28, 1986.
</FN>
/TABLE

Item 7.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operation.

Pier 1 Imports, Inc. (the "Company") is North America's largest
specialty retailer of imported decorative home furnishings, gifts and related
items, with 628 stores in 46 states, Puerto Rico and Canada, along with
relationships involving international retail operations in the United Kingdom
and Mexico as of the fiscal 1995 year-end. The Company reported record sales
of $712.0 million for fiscal 1995 and net income of $24.9 million, or $.63
per share, after recording a non-cash, after-tax special charge of $5.2
million in the third quarter to reflect a write-down of the carrying value of
the Company's holdings of General Host Corporation ("General Host") common
stock. Net income before the special charge would have been $30.1 million,
or $.76 per share, for fiscal 1995. In March 1995, the Company announced a
5% common stock dividend distributable to stockholders of record on May 1,
1995. All per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the impact of the
stock dividend.
FISCAL YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 25, 1995 AND FEBRUARY 26, 1994
During fiscal 1995, net sales increased by $26.6 million, or 3.9%,
to $712.0 million compared with fiscal 1994 net sales of $685.4 million.
This growth was primarily attributable to growth in same-store sales which
increased 4.8% compared to fiscal 1994. During fiscal 1995, the Company
opened 42 new stores. Sales of hard goods merchandise such as furniture and
decorative accessories increased 12% in fiscal 1995 over fiscal 1994, and
sales of soft goods merchandise such as apparel and jewelry decreased 21% in
fiscal 1995 compared to the prior year. Hard goods and soft goods sales
contributed approximately 91% and 9%, respectively, of total sales during
fiscal 1995. The Company's sales mix shifted during fiscal 1995 to reflect
the Company's focus on increasing consumer demand for furniture and
decorative accessories coupled with lower demand for apparel and related
accessories. This sales shift resulted in higher average ticket sales and a
5.1% increase in sales per average square foot of retail selling space to
$154.03 from $146.57 in the prior year. Sales of $26.7 million from stores
closed during the year pursuant to the store-closing program, initiated at
the end of fiscal 1994, were excluded from the Company's reported sales for
fiscal 1995. Sales in these stores were included in fiscal 1994 reported
sales and aggregated $37.7 million.
Sales on the Company's proprietary credit card were $124.7 million,
or 17.5% of total sales, during the 1995 fiscal year, an increase of $26.1
million, or 26.4%, over the prior fiscal year. Credit card receivables
totalled $62.6 million at the end of fiscal 1995, a 29.9% increase over the
prior fiscal year. The Company actively pursues increasing the cardholder
base in order to use the cardholder list as a basis for direct mail
advertising and because it believes that such a base increases customer
loyalty and repeat business. Sales on the Company's proprietary credit card
are encouraged through specific marketing promotions.
Gross profit, after related buying and store occupancy costs,
expressed as a percentage of sales, increased 1.1% to 39.0% in fiscal 1995
from 37.9% in fiscal 1994. The increase resulted primarily from leveraging
relatively fixed store occupancy costs through greater sales, combined with
the closing of 49 stores (which as a group had higher occupancy costs as a
percentage of sales than did the remaining population of stores). Gross
profit on merchandise, as a percentage of sales, remained unchanged at 53.4%
in fiscal 1995 compared to fiscal 1994. During fiscal 1995, the contribution
of the components of gross profit changed as margins improved in furniture
due to a reduction in merchandise discounts and clearance markdowns, and
margins decreased in decorative accessories and dining and kitchen as a
result of clearance markdowns aimed at decreasing inventory levels. Soft
goods gross profit components were down from 52% last year to 50% in fiscal
1995 as a result of intentional lowering of retail prices to stimulate sales.
Selling, general and administrative expenses, including marketing,
as a percentage of sales, increased 0.4% to 28.9% in fiscal 1995 compared to
28.5% in fiscal 1994. In total dollars, these expenses for fiscal 1995
increased $10.6 million over fiscal 1994, with $7.0 million of the increase
attributable to expenses that normally increase proportionately with sales,
such as store salaries and marketing. These variable expenses, as a

percentage of sales, remained essentially unchanged from last year.
Management bonuses increased by $3.6 million as a result of increased
earnings. Net proprietary credit card expenses declined by $1.2 million,
primarily as a result of increased finance charge income, and all other
selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $1.2 million.
In fiscal 1994, the Company recorded a special charge of $21.3
million before taxes for a store-closing provision that was established to
reflect the anticipated costs to close 49 stores with histories of
underperformance and high occupancy costs and to close the Canadian
distribution center and administrative offices. At the end of fiscal 1995,
the Company had closed 46 stores; the Canadian distribution center and
administrative offices were closed in March 1995. Agreements have been
reached with a majority of landlords regarding lease terminations for stores
in the store-closing program. The balance of the store-closing reserve at
fiscal 1995 year-end was $11.8 million, which consisted primarily of
anticipated final cash requirements associated with lease termination costs.
The $9.5 million utilized out of the store-closing reserve during fiscal 1995
consisted of lease termination costs of $3.0 million, fixed asset write-downs
and inventory liquidation costs of $4.8 million, interim operating losses and
other costs of $1.4 million and severance costs of $0.3 million.
Operating income improved $28.5 million to $55.6 million in fiscal
1995 from $27.1 million in the prior year.
During fiscal 1995, net interest expense declined primarily due to
lower effective interest rates coupled with lower debt, net of cash balances.
In April 1993, the Company completed the sale of its 49.5%
ownership interest in Sunbelt to General Host, a third party unrelated to the
Company or Sunbelt, in exchange for 1.9 million shares of General Host common
stock. Subsequently, General Host distributed two 5% stock dividends,
resulting in an increase in the Company's holdings to 2.1 million shares of
General Host common stock at February 25, 1995. In fiscal 1994, the Company
recorded a provision for the write-down of the carrying value of the
Company's holdings of General Host common stock. Based on prices at fiscal
year-end 1994, the market value of General Host common stock was $5.6 million
less than the Company's original carrying amount. After an assessment of
factors which may have contributed to the decline, the Company estimated $2.0
million of this decline to be other than temporary and recorded a
corresponding charge to income in fiscal 1994. The remaining $3.6 million
decline in market value was considered to be temporary. In spite of
favorable developments relating to General Host, the General Host stock price
did not improve during fiscal 1995. Consequently, in the third quarter of
fiscal 1995, the Company concluded that these developments were not having
the expected positive effect on General Host's market price per share, and a
non-cash, pre-tax special charge of $7.5 million was recorded to reflect an
other than temporary decline in the market value of the General Host common
stock. As a result of the issuance of the Company's exchangeable debentures
in December 1994, the General Host common stock is no longer available for
sale, and the Company no longer has market risk in relation to the General
Host common stock. See: Liquidity and Capital Resources.
The Company's effective income tax rate for fiscal 1995 increased
to 31% from 29% in fiscal 1994, primarily due to the benefit of tax-favored
investment income last fiscal year compared to this fiscal year and an
increase in the effective state income tax rate this fiscal year as compared
to fiscal 1994. The Company's effective income tax rate for fiscal 1996 is
expected to increase to 35-40% due to the benefit of favorable tax treatment
from the sale of Sunbelt common stock recognized in fiscal years 1995 and
1994.
Net income for fiscal 1995 aggregated $24.9 million, or $.63 per
share, compared to income of $5.9 million, or $.15 per share, last year.
FISCAL YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 26, 1994 AND FEBRUARY 27, 1993
Net sales in fiscal 1994 grew $56.2 million or 8.9% over the prior
year with same-store sales growth of 4.8%. Sales of hard goods merchandise
such as furniture and decorative accessories increased 12% in fiscal 1994
over fiscal 1993, and sales of soft goods such as apparel and jewelry
decreased 8% in fiscal 1994 compared to the prior year. Hard goods and soft
goods sales contributed approximately 87% and 13%, respectively, of total
sales during fiscal 1994. Fiscal 1993 total sales grew 7.3% and same-store
sales grew 3.7% from the previous year. Forty-eight (48) new stores were

opened and 17 stores were closed during fiscal 1994, before giving effect to
the store-closing program.
Sales on the Company's proprietary credit card were $98.6 million,
or 14.4% of total sales, during the 1994 fiscal year, an increase of $38
million, or 62.6%, over the prior year. Credit card receivables were $48.2
million at fiscal 1994 year-end, an increase of 45.0% over the previous yearend.
Gross profit, after related buying and store occupancy costs,
expressed as a percentage of sales, declined 1.2% from 39.1% in fiscal 1993
to 37.9% in fiscal 1994. Store occupancy costs, expressed as a percentage of
sales, improved slightly due to higher same-store sales volumes. Sales of
furniture and decorative items sustained increased promotional markdowns and
other discounts which caused reduced margins on these goods. Gross profit
rates on apparel, jewelry and accessories declined due to additional
promotional markdowns taken in fiscal 1994 compared with fiscal 1993.
Selling, general and administrative expenses, including marketing,
improved 0.1% to 28.5% as a percentage of sales in fiscal 1994 compared to
28.6% in fiscal 1993. In total dollars, expenses for fiscal 1994 increased
$15.2 million over the prior year primarily due to 31 net new stores opened
during the year (before giving effect to the store-closing provision), new
point-of-sale register equipment installed in all stores, new selling
programs introduced in stores and losses related to the earthquake in
California during fiscal 1994.
The store-closing provision was a special charge to fiscal 1994
earnings of $21.3 million before taxes that was established to reflect the
anticipated costs to close 49 stores with histories of underperformance and
high occupancy costs and to close the Canadian distribution center and
administrative offices. Of the 49 stores, 15 had been planned for closing at
an estimated cost of $0.2 million prior to adoption of the store-closing
program. The components of the store-closing provision consisted of lease
termination costs of $15.9 million (net of $3.9 million of estimated sublease
revenue), fixed asset write-downs and inventory liquidation costs of $3.3
million, expected interim operating losses and other costs of $1.7 million
and severance costs of $0.4 million. Lease termination costs reflected the
estimated settlements the Company would pay landlords to terminate lease
arrangements and the shortfall of sublease revenues over lease payments for
stores that the Company determined were economical to sublease. Fixed
assets, consisting primarily of leasehold improvements, were written down to
their estimated net realizable value which, in most cases, was zero.
Inventory liquidation cost was determined by estimating additional markdowns
to be taken to dispose of each store's inventory. Operating losses were
estimated on the basis of past performance of the respective stores and
anticipated results for the 1995 fiscal year. Severance costs consisted
almost entirely of benefits to be paid to Canadian employees as prescribed by
Canadian law.
Operating income declined $23.8 million to $27.1 million in fiscal
1994 from $50.9 million in the prior year, due to the store-closing provision
in fiscal 1994 and the gross profit rate decline from fiscal 1993.
During fiscal 1994, cash was utilized to reduce short-term debt,
fund inventory and fixtures for new store development, expand the Pier 1
credit card program and pay dividends to shareholders. Due to lower interest
income on declining cash balances, net interest expense increased $1.8
million in fiscal 1994 over the prior year.
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1994, the Company recorded a
provision for a write-down of the carrying value of the Company's holdings of
General Host common stock. Based upon prices at year-end, the market value
of General Host common stock was $5.6 million less than the Company's
original carrying amount. After an assessment of factors which may have
contributed to this decline, the Company estimated $2.0 million of this
decline to be other than temporary and recorded a corresponding charge to
income to adjust the book value of the General Host common stock. The
remaining decline of $3.6 million was considered to be temporary.
The Company's effective income tax rate for fiscal 1994 increased
to 29% compared to 25.9% in fiscal 1993, primarily due to an increase in the
state tax effective rate.
The Company's equity in losses from Sunbelt was $3.6 million in

fiscal 1993. In April 1993, the Company completed the sale of its 49.5%
interest in Sunbelt. Sunbelt's results were not included in the Company's
earnings during fiscal 1994.
Net income for fiscal 1994 aggregated $5.9 million, or $.15 per
share, compared to income of $23.0 million, or $.59 per share, in the prior
year.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
At February 25, 1995, cash and cash equivalents had increased to
$54.2 million from $17.1 million at February 26, 1994, due to cash flow from
operations of $50.2 million, net proceeds from the issuance of exchangeable
debentures of $11.1 million, net proceeds from the pay-off of the credit
facility from Sunbelt of $2.0 million, partially offset by capital
expenditures of $17.5 million, cash dividends of $4.1 million, a sinking fund
payment of $2.5 million on the Company's subordinated debentures and other
investing and financing activities of $2.1 million.
Cash provided by operating activities of $50.2 million during
fiscal 1995 compared favorably to $4.4 million during fiscal 1994. The
improvement was primarily due to higher earnings, reduced inventory levels
and slightly slower growth of the Company's proprietary credit card
receivable in fiscal 1995 versus fiscal 1994.
During fiscal 1995, capital expenditures of $11.6 million were
required to support the opening of 42 new stores. The Company's new store
development plan for fiscal 1996 provides for the opening of approximately 55
stores. Financing for new store land and building costs will be provided by
operating leases. Inventory and fixtures for the fiscal 1996 development
plan are estimated to cost approximately $16 million, which will be funded by
operations, working capital and bank lines of credit. Final cash
requirements to fund the store-closing program from fiscal 1994 for lease
terminations and inventory liquidation costs are expected to be approximately
$11.8 million in fiscal 1996 and will be funded through working capital and
operations. Twenty-two (22) stores are expected to close in fiscal 1996 as
their leases expire.
The Company currently has a $60 million short-term lease financing
facility, of which $28.6 million was unused at 1995 fiscal year-end. In
addition, the Company maintains a $51.4 million intermediate-term lease
financing facility for 41 stores. The property leases for these 41 stores
require that upon expiration of the leases over the next three years, unless
the leases are extended by the parties, the Company must either obtain
alternative financing for the properties or arrange for the sale of
properties to a third party or purchase the properties for approximately $50
million. In order to continue to finance new store land and building costs
through operating leases, the Company is expanding these facilities and
exploring additional financing opportunities currently available in the
capital markets. The Company's minimum future operating lease commitments
expected for fiscal 1996 aggregate $93 million, and the present value of
total existing operating lease commitments is $393 million. These
commitments will be funded from operating cash flow.
Working capital requirements are currently provided by cash and
short-term revolving lines of credit, including bankers' acceptances and
working capital loans. The Company's current ratio was 4.1 to 1 at the end of
fiscal 1995 compared to 3.5 to 1 a year earlier.
In April 1993, the Company sold its 49.5% ownership interest in
Sunbelt to General Host and committed to provide Sunbelt a $12 million credit
facility through April 1994 and up to $25 million of non-revolving store
development financing through April 1996. In October 1994, in connection
with the sale by General Host of its 49.5% interest in Sunbelt to a third
party unrelated to the Company or General Host, the Company received payment
of the amounts owed under the credit facility and agreed to extend $22.8
million of the non-revolving store development financing to Sunbelt until
June 30, 1998, at market rental rates. Additionally, the Company guarantees
other Sunbelt store lease commitments aggregating $4.5 million with a present
value of approximately $3.5 million.
In April 1995, Sunbelt defaulted on 13 store subleases to the
Company comprising the $22.8 million of non-revolving store development
financing, and the Company terminated the subleases. Negotiations are in
process with Sunbelt regarding the Company's claims as well as the

disposition of these properties through sales to third parties or acquisition
by Sunbelt. In management's opinion, losses to the Company, which cannot be
currently estimated, will not be material to the Company's financial position
or liquidity.
In December 1994, the Company completed a private placement of
$12.5 million of 8 1/2% exchangeable debentures due December 1, 2000,
providing for mandatory exchange of the debentures into the 2.1 million
shares of General Host common stock held by the Company (after recognition of
stock dividends). The net proceeds received by the Company from the sale of
the exchangeable debentures was $11.1 million. The Company intends to
utilize the net proceeds, together with existing financial resources, for
working capital and other general corporate purposes.
In fiscal 1995, the Company paid cash dividends aggregating $.11
per common share or $4.1 million. The Board of Directors anticipates a
continuation of its current quarterly cash dividends to shareholders.
In fiscal 1993, the Company invested in preference stock of The
Pier Retail Group Limited ("The Pier") located in the United Kingdom.
Currently, investment in and loans to the The Pier aggregate $3.3 million,
with additional debt guarantees of approximately $6.4 million. Fiscal 1996
store expansion plans include the opening of five stores, and the Company
expects to invest approximately $6.5 million in The Pier during the fiscal
year. The Pier is presently an 11-store retail operation that offers
decorative home furnishings and related items in a store setting similar to
that operated by the Company.
The Company's inventory purchases are made almost entirely in U.S.
dollars. When purchase commitments are denominated in foreign currencies,
the Company may enter into forward exchange contracts when they are available
in order to manage its exposure to foreign currency exchange fluctuations.
The Company believes the funds provided from operations, coupled
with the Company's cash position and available lines of credit, are
sufficient to meet its foreseeable cash requirements.
IMPACT OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES
Inflation has not had a significant impact on the operations of the
Company.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Pier 1 Imports, Inc.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the
accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Pier 1 Imports, Inc. and its subsidiaries at February 25, 1995
and February 26, 1994, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 25, 1995, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.
/s/ Price Waterhouse LLP
- -----------------------Fort Worth, Texas
April 7, 1995

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands except per share amounts)

Net sales
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of sales (including buying and
store occupancy)
Selling, general and administrative
expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Store-closing provision

Operating income
Other expenses:
Write-down of General Host securities

Year Ended
---------------------------1995
1994
1993
-------- -------- -------$711,985 $685,393 $629,235

434,412

425,801

383,053

206,022
15,989
--------656,423
--------

195,444
15,771
21,250
-------658,266
--------

180,218
15,097
--------578,368
--------

55,562

27,127

50,867

7,543

2,000

--

Interest income
Interest expense

(2,231)
(4,406)
(4,445)
14,223
21,177
19,401
-------- -------- --------

Income before income taxes and equity
in net loss of subsidiary
Provision for income taxes
Income before equity in net loss of
subsidiary
Equity in net loss of subsidiary
Net income
Net income per share

36,027
11,168
--------

8,356
2,423
--------

35,911
9,309
--------

24,859
---------

5,933
---------

26,602
(3,585)
--------

$ 24,859
========

$ 5,933
========

$ 23,017
========

$.63
====

$.15
====

$.59
====

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(in thousands except share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash, including temporary investments of $46,173
and $7,466, respectively
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $2,335 and $2,072, respectively
Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets
Properties, net
Other assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt and capital leases
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other non-current liabilities
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $1.00 par, 100,000,000 shares
authorized, 37,826,000 and 37,617,000 issued,
respectively
Paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Cumulative currency translation adjustments
Less--162,000 and 98,000 common shares in
treasury, at cost, respectively
Less--subscriptions receivable and unearned
compensation
Less--unrealized loss on marketable equity securities
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11, 14 and 17)

1995
--------

1994
--------

$ 54,203

$ 17,123

64,229
200,968
33,487
-------352,887
105,618
30,219
-------$488,724
========

51,722
219,646
32,901
-------321,392
111,510
30,400
-------$463,302
========

$

$

2,638
82,419
-------85,057
154,432
2,538
21,501

2,639
89,772
-------92,411
145,231
3,407
21,160

37,826
93,833
97,315
(1,195)

37,617
92,670
76,597
(964)

(1,477)

(884)

(1,106)
(1,369)
-(2,574)
-------- -------225,196
201,093
-------- -------$488,724 $463,302

======== ========
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (in thousands)
Year Ended
--------------------------1995
1994
1993
------------------Cash flow from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred taxes and other
Equity in undistributed losses
of subsidiary
Store-closing provision
Write-down of General Host securities
Change in cash from:
Inventories
Accounts receivable and other
current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Store-closing reserve
Other assets, liabilities, and
other, net
Net cash provided by operating
activities
Cash flow from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from disposition of properties
Loans to Sunbelt Nursery Group, Inc.
Proceeds from Sunbelt Nursery Group, Inc.
Other investments
Net cash used in investing
activities

$24,859
15,989
3,515
--7,543

$ 5,933
15,771
(3,006)

$23,017
15,097
(764)

-21,250
2,000

3,585
---

18,352

(30,053)

(8,201)

(15,233)
417
(4,650)

(17,550)
10,103
--

(3,670)
446
--

(618)
------50,174
-------

(28)
------4,420
-------

1,011
------30,521
-------

(17,471)
62
(9,600)
11,600
(2,093)
------(17,502)
-------

(24,617)
791
(1,000)
2,105
(2,353)
------(25,074)
-------

(12,619)
159
---------(12,460)
-------

Cash flow from financing activities:
Cash dividends
(4,138)
(3,560)
(2,409)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
11,060
-72,353
Repayments of long-term debt
(2,500)
-(35,362)
Net (payments) borrowings under line of
credit agreements
-(33,000)
9,983
(Payments) proceeds from (purchases) sales of
capital stock, treasury stock, and other
(14)
752
1,958
Net cash provided by (used in)
------------------financing activities
4,408
(35,808)
46,523
------------------Change in cash
37,080
(56,462)
64,584
Cash at beginning of year
17,123
73,585
9,001
------------------Cash at end of year
$54,203
$17,123
$73,585
=======
=======
=======
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

<TABLE>
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 25, 1995 (in thousands)

Balance February 29, 1992
Purchase of treasury stock
Restricted stock grant and
amortization
Exercise of stock options
and other
Currency translation
adjustments
Cash dividends ($.07
per common share)
Net income
Balance February 27, 1993
Purchase of treasury stock
Restricted stock grant and
amortization
Exercise of stock options
and other
Currency translation
adjustments
Unrealized loss on
marketable equity
securities
Cash dividends ($.10
per common share)
Net income
Balance February 26, 1994
Purchase of treasury stock
Restricted stock grant and
amortization
Exercise of stock options
and other
Currency translation
adjustments
Realized loss on
marketable equity
securities
Cash dividends ($.11
per common share)
Net income
Balance February 25, 1995

Common
Stock
-------

Paid-in Retained
Capital Earnings
------- --------

$37,225
--

$92,303
--

$53,844
--

--

(18)

--

382

899

(39)

--

--

--

--------37,607
--

--------93,184
--

(2,409)
23,017
------74,413
--

--

(62)

--

10

(452)

--

--

--

--

--------37,617
--

--------92,670
--

--

(2)

209

1,165

--

--

--

--

--------$37,826
=======

--------$93,833
=======

Cumulative
Currency
Translation
Adjustments
----------$

Treasury
Stock
--------

570
--

$(4,551)
(1,226)

--

(511)

-(1,003)
--------(433)
--

Subscriptions
Receivable
Unrealized Loss
Total
and Unearned
on Marketable
Stockholders'
Compensation Equity Securities
Equity
------------ ----------------- ------------$(2,260)
--

$

---

$177,131
(1,226)

582

--

3,689

--

--

4,931

--

--

--

(1,003)

----------

(2,409)
23,017
-------200,494
(1,545)

--------(2,599)
(1,545)

--------(1,678)
--

53

--

9

309

--

256

(189)

--

3,251

--

--

2,620

--

(531)

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

(3,560)
5,933
------76,597
--

--------(964)
--

--

--

(3)

--

--

-(4,138)
24,859
------$97,315
=======

--------(884)
(2,575)

--------(1,369)
--

(2,574)

(2,574)

-------(2,574)
--

(3,560)
5,933
-------201,093
(2,575)

263

--

200

2,043

--

--

3,414

(231)

--

--

--

--

--

--

2,574

--------$(1,195)
=======

(61)

(531)

--------$(1,477)
=======

--------$(1,106)
=======

--------$
-=======

(231)

2,574
(4,138)
24,859
-------$225,196
========

<FN>
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
</FN>
/TABLE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation - The consolidated financial statements of
Pier 1 Imports, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (the "Company")
include the accounts of all subsidiary companies. Material intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated. The preparation of financial
statements includes management's use of estimates in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.
Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications have been made in the
prior years' consolidated financial statements to conform to the fiscal 1995
presentation.
Fiscal periods - The Company utilizes 5-4-4 (week) quarterly
accounting periods with the fiscal year of 52 weeks ending on the Saturday
nearest the last day of February. Fiscal 1995 ended February 25, 1995,
fiscal 1994 ended February 26, 1994, and fiscal 1993 ended February 27, 1993.
Cash and cash equivalents - The Company considers all highly liquid

investments with an original maturity date of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The effect of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations on
cash is not material.
Marketable equity securities - The Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments
in Debt and Equity Securities" (SFAS 115), for fiscal 1995. Under SFAS 115,
equity securities available for sale are recorded at their fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses accumulated and included as a separate component
of stockholders' equity, net of related income tax effects. Adjustments for
any impairments in the market value of equity securities available for sale
(based on market conditions) that are deemed to be other than temporary are
included as a loss in the current year's operations.
Translation of foreign currencies - Assets and liabilities are
translated to U.S. dollars at fiscal year-end exchange rates. Income and
expense items are translated at average rates of exchange prevailing during
the year. Translation adjustments are accumulated in a separate component of
stockholders' equity.
Financial instruments - The fair value of financial instruments is
determined by reference to various market data and other valuation techniques
as appropriate. Unless otherwise disclosed, the fair values of financial
instruments approximate their recorded values.
The Company utilizes various financial instruments to manage
interest rate and market risk associated with its on- and off-balance sheet
commitments. Interest rate swap agreements have been used to modify the
interest characteristics of a portion of the Company's debt. The
differential to be paid or received is accrued as interest rates change and
recognized as an adjustment to interest expense on the consolidated statement
of operations. The fair values of the swap agreements are not recognized in
the consolidated financial statements. Additionally, interest rate floors
have occasionally been used to lock in rates to minimize the Company's risks
to market rate fluctuations. The costs of these interest rate floors are
amortized to interest expense over the term of the contract. The unamortized
cost is included as an asset on the Company's consolidated balance sheet.
The Company hedges certain commitments denominated in foreign
currency through the purchase of forward contracts. The forward contracts
are purchased only to cover specific commitments to buy merchandise for
resale; any gains or losses on such contracts are included in the cost of the
merchandise purchased.
The Company enters into interest rate swap, interest rate floor, and
foreign exchange forward contracts only with major financial institutions and
continually monitors its positions with, and the credit quality of, these
counterparties to its off-balance sheet financial instruments. The Company
does not expect non-performance by any of the counterparties, and any losses
incurred in the event of non-performance would not be material.
Inventories - Inventories are comprised primarily of finished
merchandise and are stated at the lower of average cost or market; cost is
determined principally on the first-in, first-out method.
Properties, maintenance and repairs - Buildings, equipment,
furniture and fixtures, and leasehold interests and improvements are carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is based on the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives or lease terms, if shorter.
Expenditures for maintenance, repairs and renewals which do not
materially prolong the useful lives of the assets are charged to expense as
incurred. In the case of disposals, assets and the related depreciation are
removed from the accounts and the net amount, less proceeds from disposal, is
credited or charged to income.
Deferred costs - Certain initial direct costs associated with new
proprietary credit card accounts are capitalized and amortized over the
average life of an account. Preopening costs associated with new stores are
capitalized and expensed over one year.
Advertising costs - All advertising costs are expensed the first
time the advertising takes place.
Income taxes - Income tax expense is based on the liability method.

Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based
on differences between financial statement and tax bases of assets and
liabilities using presently enacted tax rates. Deferred federal income
taxes, net of applicable foreign tax credits, are not provided on the
undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries to the extent the Company
intends to permanently reinvest such earnings abroad. At February 25, 1995,
such undistributed earnings aggregated $15.2 million.
Net income per share - Net income per share during a period is
computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding plus common stock equivalents which were 39,698,000,
39,530,000 and 39,227,000 for fiscal 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
Common stock equivalents for fiscal 1995, 1994 and 1993 were 328,000, 465,000
and 625,000, respectively. Computation of the weighted average shares for
each year gives retroactive effect to the 5% stock dividend to be distributed
May 8, 1995. Fully diluted net income per share is based on the assumed
conversion of all of the 6 7/8% convertible subordinated notes into common
stock, whereby interest expense and debt issue costs, net of tax, on the 6
7/8% convertible subordinated notes is added back to net income. Fully
diluted net income per share resulted in less than 3% dilution of primary net
income per share for each of the three fiscal years ended February 25, 1995
and all quarterly periods presented with the exception of the second and
fourth quarters of fiscal year 1995 and the second quarter of fiscal year
1994.
Note 2 - PROPRIETARY CREDIT CARD INFORMATION
The Company's proprietary credit card is managed and administered by
an unrelated third party. Origination costs of $1,168,000, $976,000 and
$480,000 were deferred during fiscal years 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
The Company is amortizing these initial direct origination costs over 36
months, which the Company believes is the approximate average active life of
an account. These proprietary cards have no expiration date and no annual
fee. At February 25, 1995 and February 26, 1994, deferred costs, net of
amortization, totalled $1,544,000 and $1,135,000, respectively.
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to customer receivables
are limited due to the large number of customers comprising the Company's
base and their dispersion across many different geographic areas of the
country.
Net credit card charges on the Company's proprietary credit card
accounts are included in selling, general and administrative expenses. A
summary of the Company's proprietary credit card results for each of the last
three fiscal years follows (in thousands):
1995
--------

1994
-------

1993
-------

Processing fees
Provision for bad debts

$

6,536
3,285
-------9,821
--------

$ 6,114
2,195
------8,309
-------

$ 5,049
1,855
------6,904
-------

Finance charge income
Insurance and other income

8,800
237
-------9,037
-------$
784
========

6,087
238
------6,325
------$ 1,984
=======

4,998
165
------5,163
------$ 1,741
=======

$124,666
========

$98,625
=======

$60,661
=======

0.6%
====

2.0%
====

2.9%
====

Costs:

Income:

Net costs
Pier 1 Preferred Customer Card sales
Net costs as a percent of Pier 1 card sales
Note 3 - PROPERTIES

Properties are summarized as follows at February 25, 1995 and
February 26, 1994 (in thousands):
1995

1994

Land
Buildings
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Leasehold interests and improvements
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization
Properties, net

-------$ 7,203
34,037
95,208
78,688
209
-------215,345

-------$ 7,205
33,063
90,505
79,022
190
-------209,985

109,727
-------$105,618
========

98,475
-------$111,510
========

Note 4 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES/OTHER NON-CURRENT
LIABILITIES
The following is a summary of accounts payable and accrued
liabilities and other non-current liabilities at February 25, 1995 and
February 26, 1994 (in thousands):

Trade accounts payable
Accrued payroll and fringes
Accrued taxes, other than income
Store-closing reserve
Other accrued liabilities and expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued average rent
Other non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

1995
------$29,008
21,039
7,652
11,759
12,961
------$82,419
=======

1994
------$27,937
16,933
7,610
21,250
16,042
------$89,772
=======

$14,678
6,823
------$21,501
=======

$15,034
6,126
------$21,160
=======

Note 5 - STORE-CLOSING PROVISION
In fiscal 1994, the Company recorded a special charge of $21.3
million before taxes for a store-closing provision that was established to
reflect the anticipated costs to close 49 stores with histories of
underperformance and high occupancy costs and to close the Canadian
distribution center and administrative offices. At the end of fiscal 1995,
the Company had closed 46 stores; the Canadian distribution center and
administrative offices closed in March 1995. Agreements have been reached
with a majority of landlords regarding lease terminations for stores in the
store-closing program. The balance of the store-closing reserve at fiscal
1995 year-end was $11.8 million, which consisted primarily of anticipated
final cash requirements associated with lease termination costs to be paid in
fiscal 1996. The components of the fiscal 1994 store-closing provision and
an analysis of the amounts charged against the reserve in fiscal 1995 are
outlined in the following table (in thousands):
Lease termination costs
Fixed asset write-downs and inventory
liquidation costs
Interim operating losses and other
Severance costs
Store-closing provision/reserve at
February 26, 1994
Costs charged against the reserve:
Lease termination costs
Fixed asset write-downs and inventory
liquidation costs
Interim operating losses and other
Severance costs
Store-closing reserve at February 25, 1995
Note 6 - CURRENT AND LONG-TERM DEBT

$15,825
3,318
1,702
405
------21,250
------(3,028)
(4,841)
(1,352)
(270)
------$11,759
=======

The Company has lines of credit available which aggregate
approximately $169 million. The lines may be used for short-term borrowings
through working capital loans, bankers' acceptances or letters of credit. At
year-end, approximately $56 million had been utilized to issue letters of
credit primarily to support overseas merchandise purchase orders, leaving
$113 million of available lines of credit. The weighted average interest
rate on short-term borrowings outstanding during the year was 5.2%.
Long-term debt is summarized as follows (in thousands):

11 1/2% subordinated debentures, net
of unamortized discount of
$2,444 and $2,812, respectively
Industrial revenue bonds
11% senior notes
6 7/8% convertible subordinated notes
8 1/2% exchangeable debentures, net
of unamortized discount of $728
Capital lease obligations
Other
Less - portion due within one year

1995
--------

1994
--------

$ 20,056
25,000
25,000
75,000

$ 22,188
25,000
25,000
75,000

11,772
242
--------157,070
2,638
-------$154,432
========

-475
207
-------147,870
2,639
-------$145,231
========

In July 1983, the Company issued $25 million of 11 1/2% subordinated
debentures. Interest is payable on January 15 and July 15. Mandatory annual
$2.5 million sinking fund payments commenced in July 1994 and will continue
until they mature in July 2003. The debentures are callable at any time at
par plus accrued interest.
In fiscal 1987, the Company entered into industrial revenue
development bond loan agreements aggregating $25 million which mature in the
year 2026. Proceeds were used to construct three warehouse distribution
facilities. These bonds are 7-day lower floater put bonds and interest rates
float with the market rates for similar tax-exempt debt issues. Interest is
payable monthly.
In May 1991, the Company issued $25 million of 11% senior notes due
June 1, 2001. Annual principal reductions in the amount of $5 million are
due beginning June 1, 1997. Interest is payable each June 1 and December 1.
In April 1992, the Company issued $75 million of 6 7/8% convertible
subordinated notes. These notes are convertible into shares of common stock
of the Company at $11.43 per share (adjusted for the 5% stock dividend
distributable May 8, 1995) at any time at or prior to maturity which is April
1, 2002. The notes may be redeemed by the Company at any time on or after
April 1, 1995 in whole or in part. Redemption prior to the year 2000 would
be at a premium. Interest on the notes is payable each April 1 and October
1.
In December 1994, the Company issued $12.5 million of 8 1/2%
exchangeable debentures. The debentures are due December 1, 2000, and are
mandatorily exchangeable at that date into 2.1 million shares of General Host
Corporation ("General Host") common stock held by the Company. If at any
time after December 1, 1997, the closing market price of General Host common
stock shall have been equal to or greater than $7.375 for the prior 20
consecutive trading days, the debentures will be mandatorily exchanged 30
days thereafter for the General Host shares plus accrued interest. Interest
is payable each June 1 and December 1.
Long-term debt matures as follows (in thousands):
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
Thereafter

$

2,638
2,566
7,538
7,500
7,500
129,328
--------

$157,070
========
Some of the Company's loan agreements require that the Company
maintain certain financial ratios and limit specific payments and equity
distributions including cash dividends, loans to shareholders and purchases
of treasury stock. At year-end, the most restrictive of the agreements
limits the aggregate of such payments to $13.9 million.
Note 7 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
As of February 25, 1995, the fair value of long-term debt was $162.7
million compared to its recorded value of $157.1 million. The fair value of
long-term debt was estimated based on the quoted market values for the same
or similar debt issues, or rates currently available for debt with similar
terms. There are no other significant assets or liabilities with a fair
value different from the recorded value.
The Company has an interest rate hedging agreement on $100 million
of notional principal with a commercial bank, maturing August 5, 1995, for
the purpose of limiting the Company's exposure to interest rate fluctuations
on its $25 million of floating rate industrial revenue bonds as well as
approximately $75 million of store operating lease agreements with rental
payments linked to LIBOR. This swap agreement was designated as a hedge
contract and, therefore, the differential between the floating and fixed
interest rates to be paid is recognized over the life of the agreement.
Under this swap agreement, the Company has paid a fixed rate of 6.25% and,
since inception, has received an average floating rate of 4.52%. In
addition, the Company has subsequently augmented the swap through the
purchase of an interest rate floor with the effect that the Company will
receive payments under the swap based on a floating rate not less than 6.25%
from February 6, 1995 until August 5, 1995. The Company's weighted average
interest rate, including the effect of hedging activities was 7.8%, 10.0% and
9.4% for the 1995, 1994 and 1993 fiscal years, respectively. The weighted
average interest rate, excluding the effects of hedging activities, would
have been 7.9%, 8.3% and 7.7% for the 1995, 1994 and 1993 fiscal years,
respectively. The fair value of these hedging agreements was $45,000 at
February 25, 1995, and represents the estimated amount, which was obtained
from counterparties, that the Company would receive to terminate the
agreement at February 25, 1995.
At February 25, 1995, the Company had approximately $10 million of
forward exchange contracts outstanding with an immaterial fair value and with
maturities ranging from two to ten months.
Note 8 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
In 1986, the Company adopted a qualified, defined contribution
employee retirement plan. Except for the initial enrollment period, all
full- and part-time personnel who are at least 21 years old, have been
employed for a minimum of twelve months and have worked 1,000 hours are
eligible to participate in the plan. Employees contributing from 1% to 5% of
their compensation receive matching Company contributions of up to 3%.
Company contributions to the plan were $1,282,000, $1,114,000 and $915,000 in
fiscal 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
In addition, a non-qualified retirement savings plan is available
for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for certain employees
whose benefits under the qualified plan are limited under Section 401(k) of
the Internal Revenue Code.
The Company maintains a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for
certain of its executive officers. The Plan provides that upon death,
disability or reaching retirement age, a participant will receive annual
benefits. Retirement benefits under the Plan vest for each participant at
the rate of 10% per year over 10 years of service. The Company's accrued
contributions to the Plan were $850,000, $765,000 and $554,000 in fiscal
1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
Note 9 - MATTERS CONCERNING STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Stock purchase plan - Substantially all employees and directors are
eligible to participate in the Pier 1 Imports, Inc. Stock Purchase Plan under
which the Company's common stock is purchased on behalf of employees at

market prices through regular payroll deductions. Each employee participant
may contribute up to 10% of the eligible portions of annual compensation and
directors may contribute part or all of their monthly directors' fees. The
Company contributes from 10% to 100% of the participants' contributions,
depending upon length of participation and date of entry into the Plan.
Approximately 318,000 shares were allocated to Stock Purchase Plan
participants during fiscal 1995, of which 208,000 shares were issued from
treasury and 110,000 shares were purchased on the open market. Company
contributions to the Plan were $844,000, $867,000 and $841,000 in fiscal
years 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively.
Restricted stock grant plans - In fiscal 1995, 1994 and 1993, the
Company issued 19,584 shares, 17,414 shares and 19,157 shares, respectively,
of its common stock to key officers pursuant to a Management Restricted Stock
Plan which provides for the issuance of up to 250,000 shares. The shares of
restricted stock were awarded in conjunction with granting of stock options
to those officers, with the number of shares awarded representing 25% of the
number of stock options granted. The restricted stock will vest at the times
and to the extent that 25% of such stock options have been exercised and the
option shares have been held for two years. Shares not vested are returned
to the Plan if employment is terminated for any reason.
In 1991, the Company issued 292,825 shares of its common stock to
key officers pursuant to a Restricted Stock Grant Plan which provides for
issuance of up to 500,000 shares. These shares vest and the cost of these
shares will be expensed over a ten-year period of continued employment.
Unvested shares are returned to the Plan if employment is terminated for any
reason.
Stock option plans - In June 1989, the Company adopted two stock
option plans, the 1989 Employee Stock Option Plan and the 1989 Non-Employee
Director Stock Option Plan. Options have been granted at the fair market
value of shares on date of grant and may be granted to qualify as Incentive
Stock Options under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code or as nonqualified options. The Company may grant options covering up to 1,500,000
shares of the Company's common stock under the 1989 Employee Stock Option
Plan and up to 150,000 shares under the 1989 Non-Employee Director Stock
Option Plan.
In 1990, the 1980 Stock Option Plan expired subject to outstanding
granted options covering 556,762 shares at fiscal year-end 1995.
A summary of stock option transactions related to the Plans,
adjusted for stock dividends distributed prior to fiscal year-end 1995,
during the years ended February 25, 1995 and February 26, 1994, is as
follows:

Outstanding at February 27, 1993
Options granted
Options exercised
Options cancelled or expired
Outstanding at February 26, 1994
Options granted
Options exercised
Options cancelled or expired
Outstanding at February 25, 1995

Shares
--------916,498
220,277
(72,864)
(12,189)
--------1,051,722
400,330
(126,505)
(77,709)
--------1,247,838
=========

Option Prices
------------$3.16 - 12.30
8.75 - 9.00
3.16 - 8.00
4.28 - 10.59
------------3.20 - 12.30
7.63 - 9.50
3.20 - 9.00
4.28 - 9.00
------------$3.84 - 12.30
=============

At February 25, 1995 and February 26, 1994, outstanding options
covering 687,855 and 634,111 shares were exercisable and 509,764 and 832,385
shares were available for grant, respectively.
Common stock dividend - On March 15, 1995, the Company announced a
5% common stock dividend distributable May 8, 1995 to stockholders of record
on May 1, 1995. Based on an average of the closing price of the Company's
common stock the day before, and for a two-week period following, the date of
the dividend declaration, the market value of the 1.9 million shares to be
distributed is approximately $18.3 million. The effect of this dividend has
not been reflected in the February 25, 1995 balance sheet.
Share purchase rights plan - On December 9, 1994, the Board of

Directors adopted a Share Purchase Rights Plan and declared a dividend of one
common stock purchase right (a "Right") payable on each outstanding share of
the Company's common stock on December 21, 1994. The Rights, which will
expire on December 21, 2004, are initially not exercisable, and until
becoming exercisable will trade only with the associated common stock. After
the Rights become exercisable, each Right entitles the holder to purchase at
a specified exercise price one share of common stock. The Rights will become
exercisable after the earlier to occur of (i) 10 days following a public
announcement that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons have
acquired beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding common stock
or (ii) ten business days (or such later date as determined by the Board of
Directors) following the commencement of, or announcement of an intention to
make, a tender or exchange offer the consummation of which would result in
beneficial ownership by a person or group of 15% or more of the outstanding
common stock. If the Company were acquired in a merger or other business
combination transaction or 50% or more of its consolidated assets or earning
power were sold, proper provision would be made so that each Right would
entitle its holder to purchase, upon the exercise of the Right at the then
current exercise price, that number of shares of common stock of the
acquiring company having a market value of twice the exercise price of the
Right. If any person or group were to acquire beneficial ownership of 15% or
more of the Company's outstanding common stock, each Right would entitle its
holder (other than such acquiring person whose Rights would become void) to
purchase, upon the exercise of the Right at the then current exercise price,
that number of shares of the Company's common stock having a market value on
the date of such 15% acquisition of twice the exercise price of the Right.
The Board of Directors may at its option, at any time after such 15%
acquisition but prior to the acquisition of more than 50% of the Company's
outstanding common stock, exchange all or part of the then outstanding and
exercisable Rights (other than those held by such acquiring person whose
Rights would become void) for common stock at an exchange rate per Right of
one-half the number of shares of common stock receivable upon exercise of a
Right. The Board of Directors may, at any time prior to such 15%
acquisition, redeem all the Rights at a redemption price of $.01 per Right.
Note 10 - INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes consists of (in thousands):

Federal:
Current
Deferred
State:
Current
Deferred
Foreign:
Current

1995
-------

1994
------

1993
------

$ 8,733
(436)

$5,356
(4,966)

$8,875
(1,431)

2,040
(93)

2,598
(1,127)

1,765
(302)

924
------$11,168
=======

562
-----$2,423
======

402
-----$9,309
======

Deferred tax liabilities (assets) at February 25, 1995 and February
26, 1994 are comprised of the following (in thousands):

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation
Deferred store costs
Other

Deferred tax assets:
Inventory
Accrued average rent
Accrued vacation/deferred compensation
Deferred gain on sale/leaseback
Bad debts
Store-closing reserve/provision
Write-down of General Host securities
Other

1995
--------

1994
--------

$11,758
2,453
930
-------15,141
--------

$10,326
2,488
856
-------13,670
--------

(4,128)
(24)
(6,024)
(6,126)
(3,320)
(2,494)
(1,564)
(1,493)
(732)
(708)
(4,734)
(8,454)
(2,209)
(1,588)
(1,586)
(1,410)
-------- --------

(24,297) (22,297)
-------- -------$( 9,156) $( 8,627)
======== ========
The difference between income taxes at the statutory federal income
tax rate of 35 percent in fiscal 1995 and fiscal 1994 and 34 percent in
fiscal 1993, and income tax reported in the consolidated statement of
operations is as follows (in thousands):

Tax at statutory federal tax rate
Tax treatment on sale of subsidiary
stock
State income taxes, net of federal
benefit
Tax-favored investment income
Targeted jobs tax credit
Foreign income taxed at lower rates
Other, net

1995
------$12,609

1994
-----$2,925

(1,959)

(282)

1,266
(61)
(524)
(425)
262
------$11,168
=======

856
(284)
(395)
(528)
131
-----$2,423
======

1993
------$12,208
-966
(574)
(332)
(2,959)
-------$ 9,309
=======

Note 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases - The Company leases certain property consisting principally
of retail stores, warehouses and transportation equipment under leases
expiring through the year 2015. Substantially all retail store locations are
leased for initial terms varying from 10 to 15 years with varying renewal
options. Certain leases provide for additional rental payments based on a
percentage of sales in excess of a specified base.
Capital leases are recorded in the Company's balance sheet as assets
along with the related debt obligation. All other lease obligations are
operating leases, and payments are reflected in the Company's consolidated
statement of operations as rental expense. The composition of capital leases
reflected as assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet is as
follows (in thousands):
1995
-----$ 477
538
-----1,015
912
-----$ 103
======

Buildings
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Less accumulated depreciation

1994
-----$ 477
538
-----1,015
827
-----$ 188
======

At February 25, 1995, the Company had the following minimum lease
commitments in the years indicated (in thousands):
Fiscal Year
----------1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
Thereafter
Total lease commitments

Capital
Leases
------$205
119
87
------411

Less imputed interest
Present value of total capital lease
obligations including current
portion
Present value of total operating lease
commitments

Operating
Leases
--------$ 93,427
85,509
78,663
65,663
57,331
244,684
-------$625,277
========

169
---$242
====
$392,582

========
Rental expense incurred was $92,072,000, $89,518,000 and
$85,511,000, including contingent rentals of $766,000, $788,000 and $821,000
based upon a percentage of sales and net of sublease incomes totalling
$1,552,000, $1,252,000 and $870,000 in fiscal 1995, 1994 and 1993,
respectively.
The Company has commitments from unaffiliated parties to make
available up to $111.8 million for development or acquisition of stores
leased by the Company. As of February 25, 1995, the Company utilized $82.8
million of that availability. Agreements with these parties mature over the
next three years, and Company management is continuously monitoring financial
markets to optimize renewal terms. In connection with the financing of 41
stores by two of the unaffiliated parties, the property leases require that
upon expiration of the leases over the next three years, unless extended by
agreement of the parties, the Company must either obtain alternative
financing for the properties or arrange for the sale of the properties to a
third party or purchase the properties for approximately $50 million.
Guarantees - In fiscal 1993, the Company invested in preference
stock of The Pier Retail Group Limited ("The Pier"), an 11-store retail chain
located in the United Kingdom. The Company guarantees a $6.4 million bank
line available to The Pier. As of February 25, 1995, $6.0 million was
outstanding under this line.
Refer to Note 14 for additional guarantees of Sunbelt Nursery Group,
Inc. ("Sunbelt") lease obligations.
Legal matters - There are various claims, lawsuits, investigations
and pending actions against the Company and its subsidiaries incident to the
operations of its business. Liability, if any, associated with these matters
is not determinable at February 25, 1995; however, the Company considers them
to be ordinary and routine in nature. While certain of the lawsuits involve
substantial amounts, it is the opinion of management, after consultation with
counsel, that the ultimate resolution of such litigation will not have a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial position, results of
operations or liquidity.
Note 12 - CASH FLOW INFORMATION
The following is supplemental cash flow information (in thousands):

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest
Income taxes

1995
-------

1994
-------

1993
-------

$13,477
15,457

$20,445
17,732

$16,835
17,126

Note 13 - INVESTMENT IN GENERAL HOST CORPORATION
In fiscal 1994, the Company recorded a provision for the write-down
of the carrying value of the Company's holdings of General Host common stock.
Based on prices at fiscal year-end 1994, the market value of the General Host
common stock was $5.6 million less than the Company's original carrying
amount. After an assessment of factors which may have contributed to the
decline, the Company estimated $2.0 million of this decline to be other than
temporary and recorded a corresponding adjustment in the book value of the
General Host common stock. The remaining $3.6 million was considered to be
temporary. In the third quarter of fiscal 1995, the Company concluded that
the decline in the market value of the General Host common stock was other
than temporary and a non-cash, pre-tax special charge of $7.5 million was
recorded to reflect an other than temporary write-down of the carrying value
of the General Host common stock. As a result of the issuance of the
Company's exchangeable debentures in December 1994, the General Host common
stock is no longer available for sale, and the Company no longer has market
risk in relation to the General Host common stock.
Note 14 - SUNBELT NURSERY GROUP, INC.
At fiscal year-end 1993, the Company held a 49.5% ownership interest
in Sunbelt. The Company reported the results of Sunbelt using the equity
method of accounting. Under such method, the Company's share of net losses
from Sunbelt was included as a separate item in the consolidated statement of
operations.

In April 1993, the Company completed the sale of its 49.5% ownership
interest in Sunbelt to General Host, a third party unrelated to the Company
or Sunbelt, in exchange for 1.9 million shares of General Host common stock.
Subsequently, General Host paid two 5% stock dividends, resulting in an
increase in the Company's holdings to 2.1 million shares of General Host
common stock.
In connection with the Company's sale of its Sunbelt investment to
General Host, the Company committed to provide Sunbelt a $12 million credit
facility through April 1994 and up to $25 million of non-revolving store
development financing through April 1996. In October 1994, in connection
with the sale by General Host of its 49.5% interest in Sunbelt to a third
party unrelated to the Company or General Host, the Company received payment
of the amounts owed under the credit facility and agreed to extend $22.8
million of the non-revolving store development financing to Sunbelt until
June 30, 1998, at market rental rates. Additionally, the Company guarantees
other Sunbelt store lease commitments aggregating $4.5 million with a present
value of approximately $3.5 million.
Note 15 - RELATED PARTIES
Since 1989, the Company has maintained a one-eighth joint ownership
interest in a Cessna jet aircraft with Berman Industries, Inc., a company
wholly-owned by Martin L. Berman. In March 1993, the Company invested $3
million in a limited partnership investment in Whiffletree Partners, L.P., an
investment management company, which is managed by Palisade Capital
Securities, L.L.C. Martin L. Berman is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of Palisade Capital Securities, L.L.C. In April 1994, the Company entered
into an agreement with Smith Barney, Inc. to act as trustee of the Company's
401(k) defined contribution plan and to serve as investment advisor to
participants of the plan. Until April 1995, Martin L. Berman was a managing
director of Smith Barney, Inc. Mr. Berman was elected to the Company's Board
of Directors in June 1994.
Since fiscal 1988, interest bearing loans have been outstanding to
certain Company officers. The balance of these loans at February 25, 1995
was $802,000, and maturity is in fiscal 1998.
The Company's lease commitments include amounts due to Comdisco,
Inc. for a computer leased in June 1991 for a period of five years at an
annual rent of approximately $1.1 million. Kenneth N. Pontikes, former
Chairman and President of Comdisco, Inc., was elected to the Company's Board
of Directors and served in that capacity from April 1993 until June 1994.
Note 16 - SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
Summarized quarterly financial data (in thousands of dollars except
per share amounts) for the years ended February 25, 1995 and February 26,
1994 are set forth below:

Fiscal 1995
----------Net sales
Gross profit
Net income(1)
Primary net income per
common share(1)(2)(3)

Fiscal 1994
----------Net sales
Gross profit
Net income (loss)(1)(4)

Three Months Ended
-------------------------------------5/28/94 8/27/94 11/26/94
2/25/95
-------- -------- -------- -------$161,486 $185,403 $165,761 $199,335
65,351

70,233

66,097

75,892

5,535

8,656

223

10,445

$.14

$.22

$.01

$.26

Three Months Ended
-------------------------------------5/29/93 8/28/93 11/27/93
2/26/94
-------- -------- -------- -------$158,593 $181,441 $163,457 $181,902
61,690

65,834

63,022

4,702

7,343

4,042

69,046
(10,154)

Primary net income (loss) per
common share(1)(2)(3)(4)

$.12

$.19

$.10

$(.26)

(1) Fiscal 1995 third quarter net income and fiscal 1994 fourth quarter net
loss includes a $7,543 and a $2,000 write-down of investment in the
common stock of General Host, respectively.
(2) Fully diluted net income per share resulted in less than 3% dilution of
primary net income per share for both years and for all periods presented
with the exception of a $.01 dilution in the second quarter of fiscal
year 1995, a $.02 dilution in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 1995, and
a $.01 dilution in the second quarter of fiscal year 1994.
(3) Reflects the effect of the 5% stock dividend to be distributed May 8,
1995.
(4) Fourth quarter net loss includes $21,250 provision for store closings.
Note 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT (UNAUDITED)
In April 1995, Sunbelt defaulted on 13 store subleases to the
Company comprising the $22.8 million of non-revolving store development
financing, and the Company terminated the subleases. Negotiations are in
process with Sunbelt regarding the Company's claims as well as the
disposition of these properties through sales to third parties or acquisition
by Sunbelt. In management's opinion, losses to the Company, which cannot be
currently estimated, will not be material to the Company's financial position
or liquidity.

I

tem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure.
None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company.
Information required by this Item is incorporated herein by
reference to the Sections entitled "Election of Directors" and "Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions" set forth in the Company's Proxy
Statement for its 1995 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
The information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated herein by reference to the
Section entitled "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" set forth
in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 1995 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by
reference to the Section entitled "Executive Compensation" set forth in the
Company's Proxy Statement for its 1995 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by
reference to the Sections entitled "Security Ownership of Management" set

forth in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 1995 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by
reference to the Section entitled "Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions" set forth in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 1995 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders.

PART IV

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.
(a) The following consolidated financial statements, schedules and
exhibits are filed as part of this report.
1.

Financial Statements
*
*
*
*
*

2.

Report of Independent Accountants
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the years ended
February 25, 1995, February 26, 1994 and February 27, 1993
Consolidated Balance Sheet at February 25, 1995 and
February 26, 1994
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended
February 25, 1995, February 26, 1994 and February 27, 1993
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity for the
years ended February 25, 1995, February 26, 1994 and
February 27, 1993

Financial Statement Schedules
*

Report of Independent Accountants
VIII-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

Schedules other than those referred to above have been omitted
because they are not required or are not applicable or the information
required to be set forth therein either is not material or is included in the
financial statements or notes thereto.
(b)

Reports on Form 8-K
None

(c)

Exhibits
See Exhibit Index.

(d)

Not applicable.

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused this report to be signed on

its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Date:

PIER 1 IMPORTS, INC.

May 26, 1995

By:

/s/ Clark A. Johnson
Clark A. Johnson, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of
the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ Robert G. Herndon
Robert G. Herndon

Chief Financial Officer

May 26, 1995

/s/ Susan E. Barley
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May 26, 1995

/s/ Clark A. Johnson
Clark A. Johnson

Chairman of the Board
of Directors

May 26, 1995

/s/ Marvin J. Girouard
Marvin J. Girouard

Director

May 26, 1995

/s/ Charles R. Scott
Charles R. Scott

Director

May 26, 1995

/s/ Sally F. McKenzie
Sally F. McKenzie

Director

May 26, 1995

/s/ James M. Hoak, Jr.
James M. Hoak, Jr.

Director

May 26, 1995

/s/ Martin L. Berman
Martin L. Berman

Director

May 26, 1995

/s/ Craig Gordon
Craig C. Gordon

Director

May 26, 1995

SCHEDULE VIII
PIER 1 IMPORTS, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
(in thousands)
RESERVE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS
----------------------------Year Ended
----------------------------------------February 25, February 26,
February 27,
1995
1994
1993
------------ ----------------------Balance at beginning of year
$ 2,072
$ 2,404
$ 3,185
Additions charged to income
Balances written off, net of
recoveries
Balance at end of year

3,285

2,097

2,327

(3,022)
-------

(2,429)
-------

(3,108)
-------

$ 2,335
=======

$ 2,072
=======

$ 2,404
=======

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No.
- -----------

Description
-----------

3(i)

Certificate of Incorporation and Amendments thereto,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(a) to the
Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 3, 1990.

3(ii)

Bylaws of the Company, Restated as of December 7, 1994,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 26, 1994.

4

Rights Agreement dated December 9, 1994, between the Company
and First Interstate Bank, N.A., as rights agent, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form 8-A, Reg. No. 1-7832, filed December 20,
1994.

4.1

Indenture, dated April 9, 1992, between the Company and
Ameritrust Texas National Association, as Trustee, relating to
6-7/8% Convertible Subordinated Notes Due 2002, incorporated
herein by reference) to Exhibit 4(a) to the Company's Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1992.
As permitted by Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K, Exhibit
Number 4 omits instruments relating to issues of long-term debt
of the Company and its subsidiaries, the total authorized
principal amount of which for each issue does not exceed 10% of
the consolidated total assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The Company agrees to furnish a copy of any such
instrument to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon
request.

10.1*

The Company's Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Plan as of
December 7, 1994.

10.2.1

Lease Contract dated July 19, 1985, between Pier 1 and City
Center Development Co., together with the First through Seventh
Amendments, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(b)
to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February
28, 1993.

10.2.2

Eighth Amendment to Lease Contract dated as of September 1,
1993, between Pier 1 and City Center Development Co.,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2.2 to the
Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 26,
1994.

10.2.3

Ninth Amendment to Lease Contract dated January 1, 1994, and
Tenth Amendment to Lease Contract dated March 1, 1994

10.3*

Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Company and the
directors and executive officers of the Company, incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10(l) to the Company's Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1992.

10.4*

The Company's Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan effective
May 1, 1986, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(d) to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 28, 1993.

10.5*

The Company's Benefit Restoration Plan, effective April 1,
1990, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(y) to the

Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 2, 1991.
10.6*

The Company's Restricted Stock Plan, effective March 5, 1990,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(p) to the
Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 3, 1990.

10.7*

The Company's Management Restricted Stock Plan, effective June
24, 1993, incorporated herein by reference Exhibit 10.7 to the
Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 25,
1995.

10.8*

The
29,
the
and

10.9*

The Company's 1989 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan
effective June 29, 1989, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(r) to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended March 3, 1990.

10.10*

Form of Post-Employment Consulting Agreement between the
Company and its executive officers, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10(r) to the Company's Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended February 29, 1992.

10.11.1

Revolving Credit Loan Agreement dated as of August 14, 1992,
among the Company, Pier 1 Imports (U.S.), Inc. and Bank One,
Texas, N.A., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(j)
to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February
28, 1993.

10.11.2

First, Second and Third Amendments to Revolving Credit Loan
Agreement dated as of August 14, 1992, among the Company, Pier
1 Imports (U.S.), Inc. and Bank One, Texas, N.A., incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11.2 to the Company's Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended February 26, 1994.

10.11.3

Fourth Amendment to Revolving Credit Loan Agreement dated as of
August 30, 1994, among the Company, Pier 1 and Bank One, Texas,
N.A., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11.3 to
the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 27, 1994.

10.12

Lease Guarantee dated as of December 30, 1992, among the
Company, Pier 1 Licensing, Inc. (successor in interest to CMEI,
Inc.), and Pier Set, Inc., together with Supplements and First
and Second Amendments, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to the Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 26, 1994.

10.13.1

Lease Guarantee dated as of December 30, 1992, between the
Company and Pier Group, Inc., together with First and Second
Amendments, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13
to the Company Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 26,
1994.

10.13.2

Third Amendment to Lease Guarantee dated June 20, 1994,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13.1 to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 27, 1994.

10.14.1

Lease Guarantee dated as of December 30, 1992, among the
Company, Pier 1 Imports (U.S.), Inc. and Pier Group, Inc.,
together with First and Second Amendments incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company's Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended February 26, 1994.

10.14.2

Third Amendment to Lease Guarantee dated June 20, 1994 to
Exhibit 10.14.2 incorporated herein by reference to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 27, 1994.

10.15.1

Amended and Restated Credit Facilities Agreement dated as of
October 14, 1994, between the Company and Sunbelt.

10.15.2

Extension Agreement and Waiver among the Company, Sunbelt and
Pier-SNG, Inc., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

Company's 1989 Employee Stock Option Plan, effective June
1989, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(q) to
Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 3, 1990
incorporated.

10.15.2 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 26, 1994.
10.15.3

Second Extension Agreement dated as of June 29, 1994 between
the Company, Sunbelt and Pier-SNG, Inc., incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.15.3 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended May 28, 1994.

10.15.4

Third Extension Agreement dated as of September 21, 1994
between the Company, Sunbelt and Pier-SNG, Inc., incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15.4 to the Company's Form
10-Q for the quarter ended August 27, 1994.

10.16*

The Company's Senior Management Bonus Plan, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company's Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended February 26, 1994.

10.17*

The Company's Executive Bonus Plan, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company's Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended February 26, 1994.

10.18*

The Company's Management Medical and Tax Benefit Plans,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the
Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 26,
1994.

21
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* Management Contracts and Compensatory Plans

EXHIBIT 10.1
PIER 1 IMPORTS, INC.
STOCK PURCHASE PLAN
Restated December 7, 1994
PURPOSE OF PLAN
The purpose of the Pier 1 Imports, Inc. Employees Stock Purchase Plan is to
provide Eligible Participants with the opportunity to acquire an ownership
interest in Pier 1 Imports, Inc. (the "Company") and thereby provide those
who will be responsible for the continued growth of the Company with a more
direct concern about its welfare and a common interest with the Company's
other shareholders. The Plan provides a voluntary method of acquiring shares
of Common Stock in convenient installments by compensation deductions,
supplemented by contributions from the Company.
ARTICLE I
Eligibility
All full-time employees of the Company who have attained the age of
majority of their state of residence and have completed 60 days of full-time
employment with the Company will be eligible to participate in the Plan, at
their election; provided, however, that a Participant who has withdrawn from
the Plan will again be eligible to participate only after a period of 12
months from the date of such withdrawal. Members of the Board of Directors
of the Company who are not employees, shall also be eligible to participate
in the Plan.

ARTICLE II
Participation
An Eligible Participant at his election may enroll as a Participant by
filling in and signing a form of compensation deduction authorization. Such
forms may be obtained through the Human Resources Department of the Company.
Enrollment shall become effective and the Company will establish an Account
for the Participant on the first day of the first month after the
authorization for compensation deductions is received by the Company or as
soon thereafter as practicable.
ARTICLE III
Method of Operation
The Company, assisted by the Administrative Committee, will administer the
Plan and will establish an Account in the name of each Participant. The
Company will deduct funds from each Participant's pay as authorized and will
pay monthly to the Plan for the Account of such Participant such deducted
funds plus contributions by the Company on behalf of the Participant. Such
funds will promptly be used to purchase shares of Common Stock (i) on the New
York Stock Exchange by a Broker designated by the Administrative Committee of
the Company or (ii) directly from Pier 1 Imports, Inc.; provided that no such
purchase of Common Stock may be made at a price which is greater than the
last sale price or highest current independent bid price, whichever is
higher, for such stock on the New York Stock Exchange. Such shares will be
allocated to the Accounts of Participants, at the average cost thereof, in
proportion to the funds received for each respective Account. Allocation
will be made in full shares of Common Stock and fractional interests therein
to the one-thousandth of a share.
Any Broker's commissions or markups on purchases made by the Broker will be
paid by the Company. Broker's commissions, markups or markdowns or other
charges in connection with sales and reinvestment of dividends will be
payable by Participants.
ARTICLE IV
Company Contributions

The Company will contribute an amount which will range from 10% to 50% of
each Participant's monthly compensation deduction, depending upon the
Participant's length of continuous participation in the Plan. A director may
participate in the Plan, as well as all other contributory employee benefit
plans of the Company, but only in amounts not to exceed his monthly
director's fees. The Company's contribution will be as follows:
Schedule
Years of Continuous
Participation

Company Contribution
Rate

-------------------

--------------------

- 1 year or less
2
3
4
5 or more

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%

Provided, however, at the close of business on October 31, 1985, all
Participants who were allocated Company contributions at a rate of 50% or
more shall remain at the then existing rate of contribution, and Participants
who were allocated Company contributions at a rate of less than 50% shall
after such date participate in the Plan at the Company Contribution Rate
which applied to such Participant on October 31, 1985, and thereafter, the
Company Contribution Rate shall increase based on the Participant's Years of
Continuous Participation to a maximum rate of 50%. The maximum amount a
Participant may contribute through compensation deductions is 10% of his
compensation. A director who is not an employee of the Company may
participate in the Plan and contribute all his director's fees paid by the
Company; however, the Company shall match only 50% of the director's annual
retainer fee which shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company from time to time. A Participant's years of continuous participation
in the Plan shall be calculated on January 1 and July 1 of each year and only
complete years of continuous participation in the Plan shall be used on such
dates to determine the Participant's applicable Company Contribution Rate.
ARTICLE V
Compensation Deductions
A Participant will specify in the compensation deduction authorization, in
multiples of $1.00, the amount to be withheld from his Compensation, with a
minimum of $10.00 per pay period and a maximum as provided in Article IV
hereof. Compensation deductions will be made from each check payable to a
Participant, and authorization will remain effective until revised or
terminated as hereinafter provided.
Compensation deductions may be increased or decreased (in multiples of
$1.00, subject to the minimum and maximum limitations set forth above) at-any
time by the Participant's written request submitted to the Human Resources
Department of the Company. Commencement, increases or decreases of deductions
will become effective on the first day of the first month after a
Participant's request is received by the Company or as soon thereafter as
practicable.
ARTICLE VI
Termination of Compensation Deductions
A Participant's compensation deduction authorization shall automatically
terminate without notice upon his death or termination of his employment and
may be terminated at any time by the Participant's written request submitted
to the Human Resources Department of the Company. Voluntary termination of
deductions shall become effective on the first day of the first month after
receipt by the Human Resources Department of the Company of a Participant's
request or as soon thereafter as practicable. After termination of payroll
authorization, a Participant may maintain or close his Account as herein
provided in Article IX. An employee who has terminated his compensation
deduction authorization may not re-enter the Plan within 12 months after the
effective date of such termination but may thereafter re-enter the Plan by
following the procedure set forth in Article II.

ARTICLE VII
Amendment or Termination of Plan
The Board of Directors reserves the right to amend or discontinue the Plan
at any time. Any such amendment or termination will not result in the
forfeiture of any funds deducted from the Compensation of any Participant or
contributed by the Company on behalf of any Participant, or of any shares or
fractional interest in shares purchased for the Participant, or of any
dividends or other distributions in respect of such shares, effective before
the effective date of the amendment or termination of the Plan.
Any amendment to the Plan will be submitted to the shareholders for
approval by a majority of the shares present or entitled to a vote at a
meeting called therefor, if the amendment would:
(a)
(b)
(c)

Materially increase the benefits accruing to participants under
the Plan;
Materially increase the number of securities which may be
issued under the Plan; or
Materially modify the requirements as to eligibility for
participation in the Plan.
ARTICLE VIII
Participant's Accounts

Each Participant for whose Account funds were received immediately acquires
full ownership of all shares of Common Stock and any fractional interest
therein when the shares are allocated to his Account. All shares will be
registered in the name of the Plan and will remain so registered until
delivery is requested. A Participant's participation will terminate if he
assigns or hypothecates his interest in the Plan. Shares of Common Stock
held by the Plan in a Participant's Account may be sold, assigned,
hypothecated or otherwise dealt with at will by the Participant and he may
request that a certificate for any or all of his full shares be delivered to
him at any time. Any such action may, however, result in the automatic
withdrawal of the Participant from the Plan (see Article IX, "Withdrawal from
the Plan").
A Participant's Account will be credited with all dividends, if any, paid
in respect to the full shares and any fractional interest in shares held in
his Account. Cash dividends will be reinvested in Common Stock following
payment thereof unless the Participant instructs the Company to the contrary.
Stock dividends and/or any stock splits in respect of shares held in the
Participant's Account will be credited to the Account without charge.
Distributions of other securities and rights to subscribe will be sold and
the proceeds will be handled in the same manner as a cash dividend.
A Participant will receive quarterly and annual statements of his Account.
Such statements should be retained by the Participant as a permanent record.
The Company will send to each Participant as promptly as practicable, by
mail or otherwise, all notices of meetings, proxy statements and other
materials distributed by the Company to its shareholders. Upon receipt of
instructions from a Participant, the administrator of the Plan will vote, or
exercise dissenter's rights when applicable, full shares of Common Stock in
the Participant's Account in accordance with the instructions of the
Participant. The administrator of the Plan will vote, or exercise
dissenter's rights when applicable, shares of Common Stock in Participants'
Accounts for which no instructions were received in the same proportion as
shares for which instructions were received are voted.
In the event of a tender offer for Common Stock, the Company will send to
each Participant the tender offer documents and other materials relating to
such tender offer that are received by the Plan as a holder of Common Stock,
together with a form to provide instructions whether to direct to the
administrator of the Plan to tender into the tender offer the Common Stock in
a Participant's Account. Upon receipt of instructions from a Participant,
the administrator of the Plan will take such action as directed by the
Participant. In addition, the administrator of the Plan will tender into
such tender offer only that number of shares of Common Stock for which valid
instructions were not received from Participants that bears the same ratio to
the total of all shares for which valid instructions were not received as the

number of shares for which valid instructions to tender into the tender offer
bears to the total number of shares in Participants' Accounts.
ARTICLE IX
Withdrawal from the Plan
A Participant may withdraw from the Plan at any time by delivering, to the
Company's Human Resources Department, a written notice of terminating his
compensation deduction authorization. Further, a Participant will be
automatically withdrawn from the Plan upon any delivery of certificates from
the Plan or the sale by the Company of any of the shares in the Account
pursuant to the Participant's instructions, except that without so
withdrawing the Participant, he may request and receive, commencing after 12
months of continuous participation and not more than once in any 12 month
period thereafter, delivery of up to one-half of the shares then in his
Account. A Participant who withdraws from the Plan may not re-enter the Plan
for a period of 12 months following such withdrawal, but may thereafter
re-enter upon submission of a new compensation deduction form. Any
withdrawal by a Participant shall not in itself affect the status of the
remainder of his Account in the Plan, and such Account will be maintained for
the Participant until all shares of Common Stock held therein have been sold
or delivered pursuant to his instructions.
ARTICLE X
Resale of Stock Acquired Under the Plan
Participants acquiring shares pursuant to the terms of the Plan may sell or
transfer such shares in any manner permitted by law; provided, however, that
the automatic withdrawal provisions of Article IX herein may be applicable to
any such sale or transfer. Participants who are deemed to be "affiliates" of
the Company within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933 ("Act") may sell
or transfer such shares only in accordance with the provisions of Rule 144
under such Act, in a transaction otherwise exempt from registration under
such Act or pursuant to an effective registration under such Act.
ARTICLE XI
Federal Income Tax Withholding
Both the amount of the compensation deductions and the Company's
contribution to the Plan are treated as "earned income" to the Participant
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended ("Code"), and the Company
will withhold from the balance of a Participant's Compensation federal income
tax (and state and local taxes where applicable), upon the basis of each
Participant's income subject thereto. Hence, when a Participant authorizes a
specific compensation deduction, his withholding taxes on his remaining
Compensation will be increased to cover the withholding taxes on the amount
deducted and the Company's contributions on behalf of such Participant.
Upon the sale of stock acquired pursuant to the Plan, a Participant will
have a taxable gain or loss depending upon the selling price and tax basis of
the stock. The sale will result in a capital transaction and will be subject
to the provisions of the Code, particularly those which deal with capital
gains and losses. Participants should discuss their particular tax
circumstances and consequences of sales with their tax advisors.
ARTICLE XII
Miscellaneous
1.
Neither the act of establishing the Plan nor any provision
thereof or action taken thereunder shall be construed as giving any
Participant the right to be retained as an employee of the Company, and the
right of the Company to dismiss or discharge any employee is specifically
reserved.
2.
The Company may require compliance with or satisfaction of any
legal requirement which may be deemed by it necessary as a condition for
participation in the Plan or for distribution or payment of interests or
benefits thereunder.
3.
By his act of participating in the Plan, or of accepting any
benefits thereunder, a Participant and any person claiming under or through

him shall thereby be conclusively deemed to have accepted and consented to
the application to him of the provisions of the Plan.
4.
Neither the Company nor any director, officer, employee or
agent of the Company warrants or represents in any way to any Participant
that the value of Common Stock will increase or will not decrease or that
dividends will be paid on Common Stock, either at all or at any particular
level. Each Participant assumes all risks in connection with changes in
value of Common Stock and all risks that dividends may not be paid, either at
all or at any particular level.
5.
Any words used herein in the masculine gender shall be
construed as though they were used in the feminine gender wherever
appropriate.
6.
The Plan is hereby amended and restated in its entirety and
shall be effective for all purposes as of December 7, 1994.
ARTICLE XIII
Definitions
For the purpose of the Plan, unless the context clearly or necessarily
indicates the contrary, the following words and phrases shall have the
meanings set forth in the definitions below:
a.

"Account" shall mean the separate Account established and
maintained for each Participant pursuant to Article VIII
hereof.

b.

"Administrative Committee" shall mean the committee which may
be formed to assist the Company in the administration of the
Plan, the members of which shall be appointed by the Board of
Directors. The committee shall be comprised of not less than
two Directors of the Company to administer the Plan. Only
'disinterested Persons' as that term is defined in Rule
16b-3(b) promulgated under the 1934 Act, as amended, shall be
eligible to serve as members of the committee.

c.

"Board of Directors" shall mean the Board of Directors of Pier
1 Imports, Inc.

d.

"Broker" shall mean the broker appointed by the Administrative
Committee pursuant to Article III.

e.

"Common Stock" shall mean shares of common stock, par value $1
per share, of Pier 1 Imports, Inc.

f.

"Company" shall mean any division, office or employing unit of
Pier 1 Imports, Inc., a Delaware corporation, its successors
and assigns, and any of its subsidiaries which shall be so
designated by the Board of Directors and which shall adopt the
Plan by action of its board of directors.

g.

"Compensation", whether paid currently or deferred pursuant to
a written agreement between the employee and the Company, shall
mean the employee's gross base pay, overtime pay, and incentive
cash bonuses. The definition of Compensation shall not include
severance pay, insurance and unemployment benefits and other
remuneration, including without limitation, stock options,
retirement plan contributions, cash payments under any stock
option or similar arrangements measured by stock values,
supplemental insurance benefits, benefits payable under any
type of employee benefit plan, Company contributions to any
retirement plan and reimbursement for expense, all determined
in accordance with such rules, regulations or standards as may
be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

h.

"Eligible Employee" shall mean any employee or director who
meets the requirements stated in Article I.

i.

"Participant" shall mean any employee or outside director of
the Company who elects in accordance with the provisions of the
Plan to participate in the Plan through authorized compensation
deductions and so notifies the Human Resources Department in

writing.
j.

"Plan" shall mean the Pier 1 Imports, Inc. Stock Purchase Plan.

EXHIBIT 10.2.3
NINTH AMENDMENT TO LEASE CONTRACT
BY AND BETWEEN
CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT CO.
AND
PIER 1 IMPORTS (U.S.), INC.
THIS NINTH AMENDMENT TO LEASE CONTRACT ("Amendment") is made and entered into
to be effective as of the 1st day of January, 1994 ("Effective Date"), by and
between CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT CO., a Texas general partnership ("Landlord")
and PIER 1 IMPORTS (U.S.), INC., a Delaware corporation (successor-in-interest
to Pier 1 Imports - Texas, Inc.) ("Tenant").
WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into that certain Lease Contract
("Lease") dated July 19, 1985, covering office space on the 6th, 7th, and 8th
floors of City Center Tower II ("Building") located at 301 Commerce Street,
Block 40, City Addition to the City of Fort Worth, Tarrant County, Texas, and
on the ground floor of City Center Parking Garage, 201 Commerce Street, Fort
Worth, Texas; and
WHEREAS, the Lease was subsequently amended as of October 29, 1985; December
16, 1985; April 23, 1987 March 1, 1988; December 30, 1988; February 28, 1989;
August 1, 1990; and September 1, 1993 (whereby, among other items, such
amendments provided that the Leased Premises were expanded to include space on
the 5th and 9th, and 10th floors of the Building and space in the basement of
the building located at 201 Main Street,
Fort Worth, Texas); and
WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to further amend the Lease as hereinafter
provided.
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant hereby amend
the Lease as follows:
1.
Paragraph 36 of the Lease (as previously amended) is further
amended to provide that for all purposes under this Lease the Month-to-Month
Space is comprised of approximately 1,356 square feet of Rentable Area located
on the 10th floor of the Building as outlined on Exhibit "A" attached to this
Ninth Amendment.
2.
All capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Ninth
Amendment have the meaning assigned to such terms in the Lease.
3.
Except as specifically set forth in this Ninth Amendment, the
Lease as previously amended is ratified and remains in full force and effect as
written.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment on this the 21st
day of January, 1994, to be effective as of the 1st day of January, 1994.
CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT CO.
INC.
a Texas general partnership
By:

Sid R. Bass, Inc.
Thru Line, Inc.
Keystone, Inc., and
Lee M. Bass, Inc.
its general partners

PIER 1 IMPORTS (U.S.),
a Delaware corporation

By:

_____________________________

Name:

__________________________

Title:
By:

______________________________
W. Robert Cotham, Vice President
of each named corporation

"LANDLORD"

"TENANT"

___________________________

TENTH AMENDMENT TO LEASE CONTRACT
BY AND BETWEEN
CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT CO.
AND
PIER 1 IMPORTS (U.S.), INC.
THIS TENTH AMENDMENT TO LEASE CONTRACT ("Amendment") is made and entered
into to be effective as of the 1st day of March, 1994 ("Effective Date"), by and
between CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT CO., a Texas general partnership ("Landlord")
and PIER 1 IMPORTS (U.S.), INC., a Delaware corporation (successor-in-interest
to Pier 1 Imports - Texas, Inc.) ("Tenant").
WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into that certain Lease Contract
("Lease") dated July 19, 1985, covering office space on the 6th, 7th, and 8th
floors of City Center Tower II ("Building") located at 301 Commerce Street,
Block 40, City Addition to the City of Fort Worth, Tarrant County, Texas and on
the ground floor of City Center Parking Garage ("Garage"), 201 Commerce Street,
Fort Worth, Texas; and
WHEREAS, the Leased Premises are now comprised of approximately (a) 18,848
square feet of Rentable Area on the 5th floor of the Building, (b) 18,794 square
feet of Rentable Area on the 6th floor of the Building, (c) 21,916 square feet
of Rentable Area on the 7th floor of the Building, (d) 22,274 square feet of
Rentable Area on the 8th floor of the Building, (e) 22,096 square feet of
Rentable Area on the 9th floor of the Building, (f) 10,878 square feet of
Rentable Area, plus 1,356 square feet of Month-to-Month Space on the 10th floor
of the Building, (g) 8,122 square feet of Rentable Area on the street level of
City Center Parking Garage I, and (h) 4,079 square feet of Rentable Area in the
basement of Texas Commerce Tower at 201 Main Street, Block 36, Original Town of
Fort Worth, Tarrant County, Texas;
WHEREAS, the Lease was subsequently amended as of October 29, 1985,
December 16, 1985, April 23, 1987, March 1, 1988, December 30, 1988, February
28, 1989, August 1, 1990, September 1, 1993, and January 1, 1994 (whereby, among
other items, such amendments provided that the Leased Premises were expanded to
include space on the 5th and 9th, and 10th floors of the Building and space in
the basement of the building located at 201 Main Street, Fort Worth, Texas); and
WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to further amend the Lease as provided
below.
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant amend the Lease as
follows:
1. Term. Paragraph 1 of the Seventh Amendment to the Lease which amended
the Term is further amended to provide that the Term is extended to expire on
February 28, 2004.
Tenant has no further options to renew the Lease Term beyond February 28, 2004.
2. Base Rent. Paragraph 2 of the Seventh Amendment to the Lease, which
amended the Base Rent applicable to the Leased Premises, is deleted and replaced
in its entirety as follows:
As Base Rent for use of that portion of the Leased Premises located in
the Building and the Garage, Tenant shall pay the Landlord or Landlord's
assigns, at Landlord's office without demand, and without deduction,
abatement, or set-off, except as otherwise expressly provided for in
Paragraph 7 or Paragraph 19 of the Lease, $17.75 per square foot of
Rentable Area per year from the Effective Date through February 28,
2004. As Base Rent for use of that portion of the Leased Premises
located in the basement of Texas Commerce Tower, 201 Main Street, Fort
Worth, Texas, Tenant shall pay $12.50 per square foot of Rentable Area
per year through February 28, 1996, and $14.00 per square foot of
Rentable Area per year from March 1, 1996, through February 28, 2004.

The Base Rent for the Leased Premises is comprised of (i) a Fixed Rent
Component equal to the Base Rent less $6.00, and (ii) a Variable
Maintenance Component equal to $6.00. Until July 1, 2001, the Base
Index is the last Consumer Price Index which was
published prior to May, 1987. On July 1, 2001, the Base Index will be
adjusted to be the last Consumer Price Index which is published prior to
July 1, 2001. The Variable Maintenance Component of the Base Rent shall
continue to be adjusted throughout the Term in accordance with the terms
of Paragraph 4(b) of the Lease, provided that such Variable Maintenance
Component shall not increase in any Lease Year by more than seven
percent (7%) above the Variable Maintenance Component for the previous
Lease Year. From the Effective Date throughout the remainder of the
Term, "Lease Year" means any one year period ending on the anniversary
of the Effective Date.
3. Base Year. Paragraph 3 of the Seventh Amendment to the Lease amending
the Base Year is further amended to provide that the Base Year with respect to
payment of Taxes is 1990 until July 1, 2001. On July 1, 2001, the Base Year
will become 2001.
4. Renovation Allowance. Paragraph 5 of the Seventh Amendment to the Lease
which added a new Paragraph 44 to the Lease is deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:
44. RENOVATION ALLOWANCE. Landlord shall provide Tenant with a tenant
improvement and renovation allowance for the Leased Premises in the
amount of $200,000 during each of the calendar years 1994, 1997, 1998,
1999, and 2000.
5. Expansion Space. Paragraph 40 of the Lease and all subsequent amendments
thereto are deleted and replaced in their entirety by the following:
40.

EXPANSION SPACE.

A. Right of First Refusal. Tenant shall have a right of first
refusal, exercisable from time to time during the Term, to lease any
portion of the (a) approximately 9,770 square feet of Rentable Area on
the 10th floor of the Building as shown on Exhibit "A-1" attached to
this Tenth Amendment ("10th Floor Expansion Space"), (b) approximately
20,648 square feet of Rentable Area on the 11th floor of the Building as
shown on Exhibit "A-2" attached to this Tenth Amendment ("11th Floor
Expansion Space"), and (c) approximately 20,648 square feet of Rentable
Area on the 12th floor of the Building as shown on Exhibit "A-3"
attached to this Tenth Amendment ("12th Floor Expansion Space") that
Landlord proposes to lease to a third party. The 10th Floor Expansion
Space includes the approximately 1,356 square feet of the Month-to-Month
Space leased by Tenant and approximately 506 square feet of Rentable
Area leased to a third party under a lease expiring _____________. The
11th Floor Expansion Space includes approximately 5,891 square feet of
Rentable Area currently leased to a third party under a lease expiring
October 31, 1996, and approximately 7,598 square feet of Rentable Area
currently leased to a third party under a lease expiring April 30, 1998.
The 12th Floor Expansion Space includes approximately 1,177 square feet
of Rentable Area leased to a third party under a lease expiring December
31, 1994, approximately 1,715 square feet of Rentable Area currently
leased to a third party under a lease expiring April 30, 1996, and
approximately 2,562 square feet of Rentable Area leased to a third party
under a lease expiring October 31, 1998. At any time during the Term
when Landlord proposes to lease any portion of the 10th Floor Expansion
Space, 11th Floor Expansion Space, or 12th Floor Expansion Space to a
third party or to renew a lease with an existing tenant, Landlord shall
give Tenant written notice of the size and location of the proposed
lease space and shall offer it for lease to Tenant for a term
coextensive with the Term for a Base Rent of $17.00 per square foot of
Rentable Area per year (comprised of a Fixed Rent Component of $11.00
and a Variable Maintenance Component of $6.00 which is subject to
escalation in the same manner as the Variable Maintenance Component for
the remainder of the Leased Premises.) Tenant shall then have thirty
(30) days in which to give Landlord written notice of its intent to
exercise its right of first refusal. If Tenant does not elect to
exercise its right of first refusal, such right shall terminate until
such time as that expansion space again becomes available for lease.

B. Relocation of Existing Tenants. If Tenant desires to lease all of
the 10th Floor Expansion Space prior to the expiration of the existing
lease on approximately 506 square feet of Rentable Area in the 10th
Floor Expansion Space, Landlord shall make the entire 10th Floor
Expansion Space available for lease to Tenant, subject to the
availability of suitable space to which that existing tenant can be
relocated. Likewise, if Tenant desires to lease all of the 12th Floor
Expansion Space prior to the expiration of the then existing leases on
that floor, Landlord shall make the entire 12th Floor Expansion Space
available for lease to Tenant, subject to the availability of suitable
space to which the then existing 12th floor tenants can be relocated;
provided, however, Landlord will not be obligated to relocate any
tenants leasing portions of the 12th Floor Expansion Space under leases
entered into following Tenant's election not to exercise its right of
first refusal to lease that space.
C. Tenant Improvement Allowance for Expansion Space. For any of the
10th Floor Expansion Space, 11th Floor Expansion Space, and 12th Floor
Expansion Space leased by Tenant, Landlord shall provide Tenant with a
tenant improvement allowance of $15.00 per square foot of Rentable Area
of the expansion space leased. If any expansion space is leased by
Tenant within the last three (3) Lease Years of the Term and Tenant does
not renew the Lease prior to the expiration of the Term, Tenant shall
pay Landlord upon the expiration of the Term an amount equal to the
unamortized tenant improvement allowance for that space, based upon a
five (5) year amortization schedule.
6. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Tenth Amendment have
the meanings assigned to such terms in the Lease.
7. Except as specifically set forth in this Tenth Amendment, the Lease as
previously amended is ratified and remains in full force and effect as written.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Tenth Amendment on this
the ______ day of ___________, 1994, to be effective as of the 1st day of March,
1994.

CITY CENTER DEVELOPMENT CO.,
a Texas general partnership
By:

Sid R. Bass, Inc.
Thru Line, Inc.,
Keystone, Inc. and
Lee M. Bass, Inc.,
its general partners

PIER 1 IMPORTS (U.S.), INC.,
a Delaware corporation

By:

_________________________

Name: ________________________

Title:________________________
By:
________________________________
W. Robert Cotham, Vice President
of each named corporation
"LANDLORD"

"TENANT"

EXHIBIT 10.15.1
AMENDED AND RESTATED
CREDIT FACILITIES AGREEMENT
AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT FACILITIES AGREEMENT dated as of October 14,
1994, between SUNBELT NURSERY GROUP, INC., a Delaware corporation (the
"Company"), PIER 1 IMPORTS, INC., a Delaware corporation, and PIER LEASE,
INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Lender").
The Lender and Pier 1 Imports, Inc., an indirect parent company of the
Lender, have provided certain revolving credit and lease facilities to the
Company, and the Company has requested the Lender to terminate all revolving
credit facilities and to further extend certain lease facilities to the
Company. The Lender is willing to terminate all revolving credit facilities
and to further extend such lease facilities to the Company by amending the
Credit Facilities Agreement, dated April 28, 1993, between the Company and
Pier 1 Imports, Inc. on the terms and conditions herein set forth.
Accordingly, the Company and the Lender agree as follows:
ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS AND ACCOUNTING TERMS
Section 1.1
Certain Defined Terms. As used in this Agreement, the
following terms shall have the following meanings (such meanings to be equally
applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the terms defined):

"Affiliate" shall mean a Person that directly, or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under common
control with another Person.
"Aggregate Pier Group Costs" shall mean the sum of all Pier Group Costs for
all properties of the Company included in the Lease Facility.
"Agreement" means this Amended and Restated Credit Facilities Agreement,
as the same may be amended, supplemented or modified from time to time.
"Applicable Law" shall mean the Laws of the United States of America
applicable to contracts made or performed in the State of Texas, including
without limitation 12 U.S.C. 86(a), as amended, and any other statute of the
United States of America now or at any time hereafter prescribing maximum
rates of interest on loans, advances and extensions of credit, and the Laws of
the State of Texas, including without limitation Articles 5069-1.04 and 50691.07(a), Title 79, Revised Civil Statutes of Texas, 1925 (Art. 5069-1.04 and
Art. 5069-1.07(a), Vernon's Annotated Texas Statutes), as amended ("Article
1.04"), and any other statute of, or any provisions of the Constitution of,
the State of Texas now or at any time hereafter prescribing maximum rates of
interest on loans and extensions of credit.
"Auditors" shall mean independent certified public accountants selected by
the Company and acceptable to the Lender.
"Communications" has the meaning specified in Section 7.2.
"Company" has the meaning specified in the introduction to this Agreement.
"Default" means the occurrence of any event which with the giving of notice
or the passage of time or both would become an Event of Default.
"Environmental Law" means any Law that relates to the pollution or
protection of the environment or to Hazardous Materials, and includes all
terms and conditions of any permits issued to the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries or with respect to any of their respective owned or leased
properties under any such Law.
"Environmental Liabilities" means all liabilities, losses, fines,
penalties, charges, damages (including damages to Persons or the environment),
costs, or expenses, or any claim therefor asserted by any Person against, or

payable by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or any predecessor for
whose obligations and liabilities the Company or any of its Subsidiaries may
be liable as the result of any merger, de facto merger, stock purchase, or
other circumstance, that results in whole or in part from (a) the violation of
any Environmental Law, or (b) the presence, release, or threatened release of
any Hazardous Material on, at, or from any of the Company's or any of its
Subsidiaries' owned or leased properties. Without limiting the foregoing,
Environmental Liabilities include all costs and expenses (including, without
limitation, costs and expenses for legal, engineering, and other consultant
services, for investigations, testing, sampling, and monitoring, for boring,
excavation, and construction, for removal, modification, or replacement of
underground storage tanks or other equipment or facilities, for labor and
materials, and for proper storage, treatment, and disposal of Hazardous
Materials in compliance with Environmental Laws) of actions or activities to
(i) clean up or remove Hazardous Materials from the environment, (ii) prevent
or minimize the further movement, leaching, or migration of Hazardous
Materials in the environment, (iii) prevent, minimize, or mitigate the release
or threatened release of Hazardous Materials into the environment or injury or
damage from such release, (iv) remove, encapsulate, or otherwise abate or
control asbestos or asbestos-containing materials, or (v) comply with any
order, judgment, or other requirements of any Tribunal pursuant to any
Environmental Law.
"ERISA" means the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974, as amended from time to time, and the regulations promulgated
thereunder.
"Event of Default" means any of the events described in Section 6.1,
provided there has been satisfied any requirement in connection therewith for
the giving of notice, lapse of time or happening of any further condition,
event or act.
"GAAP" shall mean generally accepted accounting principles applied on a
consistent basis, set forth in the Opinions of the Accounting Principles Board
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and/or in statements
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, which are applicable as of the
date in question. The requisite that such principles be applied on a
consistent basis shall mean that the accounting principles observed in a
current period are comparable in all material respects to those applied in a
preceding period. Unless otherwise indicated herein, all accounting terms
shall be defined according to GAAP.
"Guaranteed Indebtedness" shall mean, with respect to any Person, without
duplication, all Indebtedness of another Person referred to in clause (i),
(ii) or (iii) of the definition of "Indebtedness," guaranteed directly or
indirectly in any manner by such Person, or in effect guaranteed directly or
indirectly in any manner by such Person.
"Hazardous Material" means any substance (a) the presence of which requires
removal, remediation, or investigation under any Environmental Law, (b) that
is defined or classified as a hazardous waste, hazardous material, pollutant,
contaminant, or toxic or hazardous substance under any Environmental Law,
including without limitation, any hazardous substance within the meaning of
Section 101(14) of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
Liability Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Sec. 9601(14), or (c) that contains or
consists of gasoline, diesel fuel, oil, fuel oil, or other petroleum
hydrocarbons.
"Highest Lawful Rate" shall mean at the particular time in question the
maximum rate of interest which, under Applicable Law, the Lender is then
permitted to charge the Company on the Obligation. If the maximum rate of
interest which, under Applicable Law, the Lender is permitted to charge the
Company on the Obligation shall change after the date hereof, the Highest
Lawful Rate shall be automatically increased or decreased, as the case may be,
as of the effective time of such change without notice to the Company. For
purposes of determining the Highest Lawful Rate under Applicable Law, the
applicable rate ceiling shall be (i) the indicated rate ceiling described in
and computed in accordance with the provisions of Section (a)(a) of Article
1.04; or (ii) provided notice is given as required in Section (h)(1) of
Article 1.04, either the annualized ceiling or quarterly ceiling computed
pursuant to Section (d) of Article 1.04; provided, however, that at any time
such ceiling shall be less than 18% per annum or more than 24% per annum, the
provisions of Section (b)(1) and (2) of Article 1.04 shall control for
purposes of such determination, as applicable.

"Indebtedness" shall mean, with respect to any Person, (i) all indebtedness
of such Person for borrowed money or for the deferred purchase price of
property or services, (ii) all obligations under leases which are required to
be recorded on the financial statements of such Person in accordance with GAAP
as capital leases in respect of which such Person is liable as lessee, and
(iii) any other indebtedness required to be recorded on the financial
statements of such Person in accordance with GAAP.
"Investment" shall mean any direct or indirect purchase or other
acquisition of, or a beneficial interest in, capital stock or other securities
of any other Person, or any direct or indirect loan, advance (other than
advances to employees for moving and travel expenses, drawing accounts and
similar expenditures in the ordinary course of business) or capital
contribution to or investment in any other Person, including without
limitation the incurrence or sufferance of Indebtedness or accounts receivable
of any other Person which are not current assets or do not arise from sales to
that other Person in the ordinary course of business.
"Laws" shall mean all statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations,
orders, writs, injunctions or decrees of any Tribunal.
"Lease Facility" has the meaning specified in Section 2.1.
"Lender" has the meaning specified in the introduction to this Agreement.
"Litigation" shall mean any proceeding, claim, lawsuit, arbitration and/or
investigation conducted or threatened by or before any Tribunal, including
without limitation proceedings, claims, lawsuits and/or investigations under
or pursuant to any environmental, occupational, safety and health, antitrust,
unfair competition, securities, Tax or other Law, or under or pursuant to any
contract, agreement or other instrument; provided, however, that "Litigation"
shall not include any of the foregoing that is covered by adequate insurance.
"Material Adverse Change or Effect" shall mean any act, circumstance or
event that (i) causes a Default or Event of Default, or (ii) otherwise might
be material and adverse to the financial condition or business operations of
the Company and its Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.
"Obligation" shall mean all present and future obligations, indebtedness,
and liabilities, and all renewals and extensions of all or any part thereof,
of the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries to the Lender or any of its
Affiliates arising from, by virtue of or pursuant to this Agreement, any
Sublease or any Sublease Guarantee, and any and all renewals and extensions
thereof, or any part thereof, or future amendments thereto, all interest
accruing on all or any part thereof, and attorneys' fees incurred in the
enforcement or the collection of all or any part thereof, whether such
obligations, indebtedness, and liabilities are direct, indirect, fixed,
contingent, joint, several, or joint and several.
"Officers' Certificate" means a certificate signed in the name of the
Company by either its Chairman, its President, one of its Vice Presidents, its
Treasurer or its Assistant Treasurer, and either its Secretary or one of its
Assistant Secretaries.
"Person" shall mean and include an individual, partnership, joint venture,
corporation, trust, Tribunal, unincorporated organization or government, or
any department, agency or political subdivision thereof.
"Pier Group" means Pier Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation.
"Pier Group Costs" has the meaning specified as "Total Costs" in the
Sublease.
"Plan" shall mean any plan subject to Tile IV of ERISA and maintained for
employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or of any member of a
controlled group of corporations as defined in Section 1563 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, of which the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries is a part.
"Property" shall mean all types of real, personal, tangible, intangible or
mixed property.
"Restricted Payment" shall mean (i) any declaration or payment of any
dividend (other than a stock dividend) on, or the making of any distribution,
loan, advance or Investment to or in any holder of, any shares of capital

stock of the Company or its Subsidiaries, or (ii) any purchase, redemption or
other acquisition or retirement for value of any shares of capital stock of
the Company or its Subsidiaries; but excluding cash payments to Timothy R.
Duoos made solely pursuant to the agreement entered into on October 14, 1994,
providing a fee to him for his guaranty of that certain Loan and Security
Agreement between the Company and American National Bank.
"Rights" shall mean rights, remedies, powers and privileges.
"Sublease" shall mean an amended and restated sublease agreement between
the Lender or a Subsidiary of the Lender and a Subsidiary of the Company, in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit I, with respect to Company
property included in the Lease Facility.
"Sublease Guarantee" shall mean the Sublease Guarantee agreement of the
Company guaranteeing the obligations of the Sublessee under any Sublease.
"Subsidiary" shall mean any corporation at least a majority of whose
securities having ordinary voting power for the election of directors (other
than securities having such power only by reason of the happening of a
contingency) are owned by any Person, or one or more Subsidiaries of that
Person, or a combination thereof.
"Tangible Net Worth" shall mean the total amount of stockholders' equity
of the Company and its Subsidiaries, determined on a consolidated basis in
accordance with GAAP, minus:
(i)
such portion of the assets which is attributable to interests held
by Persons other than the Company and its Subsidiaries (to the extent not
already deducted from stockholders' equity);
(ii)
treasury stock (to the extent not already deducted from
stockholders' equity);
(iii)
an amount equal to the excess, if any, of the amount reflected for
the securities of any Person which is not a Subsidiary of the Company over
the lesser of cost or market value (as determined in good faith by the
applicable board of directors and as evidenced by a resolution of such
board of directors) of such securities, except that in the case of any
securities as to which such Person is not required to file a Schedule 13D
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the deduction shall not be made.
(iv)
all good will, organization or developmental expenses and other
intangible items, including without limitation trademarks, patents, service
marks, trade names, copyrights, licenses and other similar agreements.
"Taxes" shall mean all taxes, assessments, fees or other charges at any
time imposed by any Laws or Tribunal.
"Tribunal" shall mean any municipal, state, commonwealth, federal, foreign,
territorial or other court, governmental body, subdivision, agency,
department, commission, board, bureau or instrumentality.
Section 1.2
Computation of Time Periods. In this Agreement in the
computation of periods of time from a specified date to a later specified
date, the word "from" means "from and including" and the words "to" and
"until" each means "to but excluding."
Section 1.3
Accounting Terms.
in accordance with GAAP.

All accounting terms shall be construed

ARTICLE II
SUBLEASE FACILITY
Section 2.1
Subleases. Lender is currently leasing from Pier Group,
and in reliance upon the representations and warranties set forth herein
Lender agrees to sublease to the Company and/or its Subsidiaries, the
properties listed on Exhibit II hereto, commencing on the dates listed
therewith, pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the Sublease for
each property (collectively, such leased properties constituting the "Lease
Facility"). Prior to the effective date of each Sublease, all Additional
Charges (as defined in each sublease between Pier Lease, Inc. and Wolfe
Nursery, Inc., effective as of April 28, 1993) shall be payable with respect

to a subleased property through the last day of the month preceding the
effective date of each Sublease. The Sublease properties may be sold by Pier
Group in accordance with the terms provided in each Sublease; provided, that
after giving effect to any such sale, the Aggregate Pier Group Costs for all
properties remaining in the Lease Facility shall not exceed the aggregate
appraised value (as provided to Pier Group prior to the date hereof) of such
remaining properties plus the aggregate cash deposit held by Pier Group from
the Company. If after giving effect to a sale of one or more Subleased
properties from Pier Group, the aggregate appraised value of properties
remaining in the Lease Facility exceeds the Aggregate Pier Group Costs for
such remaining properties, then Lender shall cause Pier Group to remit to the
Company a portion of the then current deposit, if any, held by Pier Group
equal to the amount of such excess, but in no event more than the total amount
of such deposit. Commencing October 21, 1995, the Lender shall cause Pier
Group to credit for the account of the Company interest on the amount of any
such deposit at a rate equal to the "Adjusted InterBank Rate" (as defined in
the Sublease) as such rate shall be determined from time to time.
Section 2.2
Fees. The Company agrees to pay to the Lender on or
before the first business day of each month, commencing November 1994, for a
period of 36 months a commitment fee equal to $8,884.08, and on the same day
of each month until the last day on which any properties are included in the
Lease Facility prior to June 30, 1995, a commitment fee equal to one-twelfth
of one percent (1/12th of 1%) of the total amount of the Pier Group Costs of
all such properties included within the Lease Facility for which the
commencement date listed on Exhibit II has not occurred.
ARTICLE III
CONDITIONS
Section 3.1
Conditions Precedent to Lease Facility. The obligation of
the Lender to enter into the Subleases is subject to the condition precedent
that it shall have received the following, each dated the date hereof (unless
otherwise indicated):
(a)
Officers' Certificates certifying, inter alia, (i) true and correct
copies (attached thereto) of resolutions adopted by the Boards of Directors or
Executive Committee, as appropriate, of the Company and/or its Subsidiary
authorizing the Company and/or such Subsidiary to enter into the Subleases,
(ii) true and correct copies (attached thereto) of the Company's and/or such
Subsidiary's certificate of incorporation certified by the appropriate
governmental official of its respective state of incorporation, (iii) true and
correct copies (attached thereto) of bylaws of the Company and/or such
Subsidiary, (iv) certificates of existence, good standing and qualification
(attached thereto) issued by the appropriate governmental officials of such
jurisdictions as the conduct and nature of the Company's and/or such
Subsidiary's business requires it to be so qualified, (v) the incumbency and
specimen signatures of the Persons executing any documents on behalf of the
Company and/or such Subsidiary, (vi) the truth of the representations and
warranties made by the Company in this Agreement, and (vii) the absence of the
occurrence and continuance of any Default or Event of Default.
(b)
The Company or any of its Subsidiaries shall execute and deliver a
Sublease and the Company shall execute and deliver the Sublease Guarantee (or
a confirmation of the continuous nature of its existing guarantee).
Section 3.2
Legal Details. All documents executed or submitted
pursuant hereto by the Company shall be satisfactory in form and substance to
the Lender and its counsel. The Lender and its counsel shall receive all
information, and such counterpart originals or certified or other copies of
such materials, as they may deem necessary or appropriate. All legal matters
incident to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (including without
limitation matters arising from time to time as a result of changes occurring
with respect to any Laws) shall be satisfactory to counsel to the Lender.
ARTICLE IV
COVENANTS
From the date hereof, until payment in full of the Obligation and
termination of all Subleases:

Section 4.1

Affirmative Covenants.

(a)
Compliance with Laws. The Company shall comply, and shall cause
each of its Subsidiaries to comply, in all material respects with all
applicable Laws, for which the failure to so comply could have a Material
Adverse Effect, and such compliance shall include, without limitation, paying
before the same become delinquent all Taxes imposed upon it or its Property,
except to the extent contested diligently and in good faith, and for which
adequate reserves are established.
(b)
Environmental Laws. The Company shall, and shall cause each of its
Subsidiaries to, (a) comply in all material respects with Environmental Laws,
and (b) continue to maintain a management system designed to ensure
compliance, in all material respects, with Environmental Laws and minimize
financial and other risks to the Company and its Subsidiaries arising under
Environmental Laws or as the result of environmentally related injuries to
persons or property. If the Lender has reason to believe that the Company is
not in material compliance with Environmental Laws, the Company shall furnish,
and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries to furnish, to the Lender reasonable
evidence of compliance with the foregoing covenant within 45 days after any
request therefor from the Lender.
(c)
Maintenance of Existence; Licenses and Franchises. Except as
permitted by Section 4.2(a), the Company shall maintain, and shall cause each
of its Subsidiaries to maintain, its existence, and the Company shall preserve
and maintain, and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries to preserve and
maintain, all material licenses, privileges, franchises, certificates,
authorizations and other permits and agreements necessary for the operation of
its business, provided, however, that the Company shall be permitted to
dissolve its Green Brothers Nursery, Inc. and Houston Patio and Garden
Centers, Inc. subsidiaries.
(d)
Insurance. The Company shall maintain, and shall cause each of its
Subsidiaries to maintain, insurance policies with respect to its Property and
business in such amounts and against such casualties and contingencies as is
customary in its industry.
(e)

(Intentionally omitted.)

(f)

(Intentionally omitted.)

(g)
Tangible Net Worth. The Company and its Subsidiaries shall maintain
a Tangible Net Worth of not less than $6,000,000.
(h)

(Intentionally omitted.)

(i)

(Intentionally omitted.)

(j)

(Intentionally omitted.)

(k)
Reporting Requirements. The Company and its Subsidiaries shall
maintain a standard system of accounting in accordance with GAAP. The Company
shall furnish to the Lender:
(i)
Annual Report. As soon as available and in any event within 90 days
after the end of each fiscal year, its annual report to shareholders (or
equivalent report), accompanied by an opinion of Auditors stating that the
financial statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP and present
fairly the financial condition of the Company and its Subsidiaries;
(ii)
Quarterly Reports. As soon as available and in any event within 45
days after the end of each fiscal quarter (other than the fourth fiscal
quarter), its quarterly report to shareholders (or equivalent report);
(iii)
Securities Filings. Promptly after the sending or filing thereof,
copies of all proxy statements, financial statements and reports which the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries sends to shareholders, and copies of all
regular, periodic and special reports, and all registration statements,
which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries files with the Securities and
Exchange Commission or any governmental authority that may be substituted
therefor, or with any national securities exchange;
(iv)
Notice of Default. Immediately upon the happening of any condition
or event that constitutes a Default or Event of Default under this
Agreement, a written notice specifying the details of such Default or Event

of Default and the action proposed to be taken with respect thereto;
(v)
Notice of Litigation. Immediately upon becoming aware of the
existence of any Litigation involving the Company, any of its Subsidiaries
or any of their Property that could have a Material Adverse Effect, a
written notice specifying the nature and status thereof and the action
being taken and proposed to be taken with respect thereto; and
(vi)
Requested Information. With reasonable promptness, such other data
and information as from time to time reasonably may be requested by the
Lender.
(l)
Officer's Certificate. Each set of financial statements delivered
to the Lender pursuant to Sections 4.1(k)(i) and (ii) hereof shall be
accompanied by an Officer's Certificate acceptable to the Lender, setting
forth calculations, in form and detail satisfactory to the Lender,
demonstrating compliance with Section 4.1(g).
(m)
Inspection. The Company shall permit, and shall cause each of its
Subsidiaries to permit, any employees and other representatives of the Lender
to visit and inspect any Properties, to examine all books of account, records,
reports and other papers, to make copies and extracts therefrom, and to
discuss their affairs, finances and accounts with their officers, employees
and Auditors (and by this provision such Auditors are authorized to discuss
with the Lender the finances and affairs of the Company and each of its
Subsidiaries), at such times and as often as may be reasonably requested;
provided, however, that the Lender shall cause such employees and
representatives of the Lender to hold in strict confidence all information
acquired pursuant to the Lender's rights under this Section 4.1(m), except for
necessary disclosure in connection with disputes relating to the Subleases, or
disclosure compelled by judicial or administrative process or by other
requirements of Law.
Section 4.2

Negative Covenants.

(a)
Mergers, Etc. The Company shall not merge with or into, or
consolidate with or into, or convey, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of
(whether in one transaction or in a series of transactions) all or
substantially all of its assets (whether now owned or hereafter acquired) to,
any Person, or permit or suffer any of its Subsidiaries to do so; provided,
however, that any Subsidiary may merge or consolidate with or into, or
transfer assets to or acquire assets from the Company or any other Subsidiary,
so long as, immediately after giving effect thereto, no circumstance or event
shall exist and be continuing that constitutes a Default or Event of Default,
the surviving corporation shall become party to the Sublease Guarantee upon
the request of the Lender, and in the case of any such merger or consolidation
to which Company is a party, the Company shall be the surviving corporation.
(b)

(Intentionally omitted.)

(c)

(Intentionally omitted.)

(d)
Dividends and Other Distributions. The Company shall not make, and
shall not permit any of its Subsidiaries to make, any Restricted Payment,
except for dividends or other distributions paid (i) solely for the purpose of
making scheduled payments of principal and interest on promissory notes in
effect on the date hereof and disclosed to the Lender in writing, or (ii) by
any wholly owned Subsidiary of the Company.
(e)
Change in Nature of Business. The Company shall not make, and shall
not permit any of its Subsidiaries to make, any material change in the nature
of any of their businesses as conducted on the date hereof.
(f)

(Intentionally omitted.)

(g)

(Intentionally omitted.)

(h)

(Intentionally omitted.)

Section 4.3
Liens. The Lender will not create or permit any liens on
the properties constituting the Lease Facility, other than liens in favor of
Pier Group's lenders, liens permitted in accordance with the credit agreement
between Pier Group and its lenders, or liens created or permitted by the
Company or a Subsidiary of the Company.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
The Company represents, warrants and covenants as follows:
Section 5.1
Organization and Qualification. The Company and each of
its Subsidiaries are duly organized, validly existing and in good standing as
corporations under the Laws of their states of organization, and the Company
is qualified to transact business and is in good standing as a foreign
corporation in the States of Texas and California and the Company's
subsidiaries are duly qualified or licensed and in good standing in each state
in which the nature of the business transacted or the Property owned in such
as to require qualification or licensing.
Section 5.2
Financial Statements. The financial statements of the
Company and its Subsidiaries furnished to the Lender dated as of January 31,
1994, are complete and correct in all material respects and were prepared in
accordance with GAAP. Such financial statements present fairly the financial
condition of the Company and its Subsidiaries as of the dates indicated and
for the periods involved, and show in all material respects all material
liabilities, direct and contingent, including, without limitation, any
Environmental Liability known by the Company or its Subsidiaries, the effect
of which would have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company and its
Subsidiaries taken as a whole. Since the date of the latest of such financial
statements, there has been no Material Adverse Change.
Section 5.3
Title to Properties. The Company and its Subsidiaries
have corporate power, authority and legal right to own and operate the
Properties which each now owns, and to carry on the lines of business in which
each is now engaged. The Company and each Subsidiary have good and marketable
title to all Property owned by it, free and clear of all liens, claims,
security interests and other encumbrances such as do not individually or
collectively have a Material Adverse Effect. There are no Environmental
Liabilities known to the Company or its Subsidiaries with respect to any of
the Company's or any of its Subsidiaries' properties that would have a
Material Adverse Effect.
Section 5.4
Conflicting Agreements and Other Matters. None of the
Company and its Subsidiaries is a party to any contract or agreement or
subject to any restriction which materially and adversely affects its
business, Property or financial condition. Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries is a party to or otherwise subject to any contract or agreement
which restricts or otherwise affects its right or ability to execute the
Subleases and Sublease Guarantees. Neither the execution or delivery of any
Sublease or Sublease Guarantee, nor compliance therewith, will conflict with,
or result in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of, or constitute
a default under, or result in any violation of, or result in the creation of
any lien upon any Properties of the Company or its Subsidiaries under, or
require any consent, approval or other action by, notice to or filing with any
Tribunal pursuant to, the certificate of incorporation or bylaws of the
Company or its Subsidiaries, any award of any arbitrator, or any agreement,
instrument or Law to which the Company, its Subsidiaries or their Property is
subject.
Section 5.5
Authorization. The Boards of Directors of the Company
and/or its Subsidiaries duly authorized the execution, delivery and
performance of the Subleases and Sublease Guarantees. No consent of the
stockholders of the Company is required as a prerequisite to the validity and
enforceability of any document contemplated hereby. Each of the Company and
its Subsidiaries has corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and
perform under the Subleases and Sublease Guarantees to be executed and
delivered by it. The Subleases and Sublease Guarantees constitute the legal,
valid and binding respective obligations of the Company and its Subsidiaries,
enforceable in accordance with their terms (subject as to enforcement of
remedies to any applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, moratorium or other
Laws or principles of equity affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights
generally).
Section 5.6
Taxes. Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries has filed
all federal, state and other income Tax returns which are required to be
filed, and has paid all Taxes as shown on said returns, as well as all other
Taxes to the extent that they have become due (except as permitted by Section
4.1(a)). All Tax liabilities of the Company and its Subsidiaries are

adequately provided for on their books, including interest and penalties. No
income Tax liability of a material nature has been asserted by taxing
authorities for Taxes in excess of those already paid, and no taxing authority
has notified the Company or any of its Subsidiaries of any material deficiency
in any of their federal, state and other income Tax returns.
Section 5.7

(Intentionally omitted.)

Section 5.8
Possession of Franchises, Licenses, Etc. The Company and
its Subsidiaries possess all franchises, certificates, licenses, permits and
other authorizations from any Tribunal that are necessary in any material
respect for the ownership, maintenance and operation of their Property, and
are not in violation thereof in any material respect.
Section 5.9
Leases, Etc. The Company and its Subsidiaries enjoy
peaceful and undisturbed possession of all leases and other agreements
necessary in any material respect for the operation of their Property and
businesses in the aggregate. All such leases and other agreements are valid
and subsisting, and are in full force and effect.
Section 5.10
Disclosure. Neither this Agreement nor any other
document, certificate or statement furnished to the Lender by or on behalf of
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in connection herewith omits to state
a material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained herein and
therein not misleading.
Section 5.11
ERISA. The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance
with all material provisions of ERISA that are applicable to them and their
Plans except where the failure to so comply would not have a Material Adverse
Effect.
Section 5.12
Certain Fees. No broker's, finder's or other fee or
commission was or will be payable with respect to the transactions
contemplated hereunder.
The Lender and Pier 1 represent and warrant as follows:
Section 5.13
Authorization. The Lender and Pier 1 each has the
corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the Lender has
the corporate power to enter into each of the Subleases. The Lender has
entered into a lease with Pier Group with respect to each of the properties
that are subject to a Sublease, and the Lender will either maintain each such
lease during the term of each corresponding Sublease or will otherwise obtain
such rights in each property to enable the Lender or its assignee to perform
its obligations under such Sublease.
ARTICLE VI
EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES
Section 6.1
Events of Default. Any one or more of the following
events shall be "Events of Default" hereunder (which shall include by
definition the expiration of any grace period with respect thereto), whether
the same shall occur and be continuing for any reason whatsoever (and whether
such occurrence shall be voluntary or involuntary or come about or be effected
by operation of Law or otherwise):
(a)

(Intentionally omitted.)

(b)
Any representation or warranty made herein or in any writing
furnished in connection with or pursuant to this Agreement shall be false or
misleading that would constitute a Material Adverse Effect on the date as of
which made;
(c)
There shall be a default in the performance or observance of any
other agreement, term or condition contained in any Sublease, Sublease
Guarantee or any other lease agreement between the Lender or an affiliate of
the Lender and a Subsidiary of the Company, which default shall continue for
more than 15 days after written notice to the Company.
(d)
The Company or any of its Subsidiaries shall default (beyond any
grace period and whether or not waived) in the payment of any amount of any
other Indebtedness or Guaranteed Indebtedness in excess of $500,000, or in the
payment or performance of operating leases, in excess of $3,000,000 in the

aggregate, or shall default (beyond any grace period and whether or not
waived) in the performance of any agreement under which such Indebtedness or
Guaranteed Indebtedness or operating lease is created or evidenced, if as a
consequence of such default the holder (or a trustee on behalf of such holder)
of such Indebtedness or Guaranteed Indebtedness or operating lease does
accelerate such Indebtedness or Guaranteed Indebtedness or operating leases.
(e)
Any of the following shall occur: (i) The Company or any of its
Subsidiaries shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or be
unable to pay its debts generally as they become due, (ii) the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries shall petition or apply to any Tribunal for the
appointment of a trustee, receiver or liquidator of it, or of any substantial
part of its assets, or shall commence any proceedings relating to the Company
or any of its Subsidiaries under any bankruptcy, reorganization, compromise,
arrangement, insolvency, readjustments of debts, conservatorship, moratorium,
dissolution, liquidation or similar debtor relief Laws of any jurisdiction,
whether now or hereafter in effect; (iii) any such petition or application
shall be filed, or any such proceedings shall be commenced, against the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries and the same is not dismissed or otherwise
discharged within 30 days, or an order, judgment or decree shall be entered
appointing any such trustee, receiver or liquidator, or approving the petition
in any such proceedings; (iv) any final order, judgment or decree shall be
entered in any proceedings against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
decreeing its dissolution; or (v) any final order, judgment or decree shall be
entered in any proceedings against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
decreeing a split-up of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, which requires
the divestiture of a substantial part of its assets;
(f)
Final judgment(s) on the merits for the payment of $1,000,000 or
more in the aggregate shall be outstanding against the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, and such judgment(s) shall remain unstayed, in effect and unpaid
for more than 30 days;
(g)
Any "reportable event" as such term in defined in ERISA under any
Plan, or the appointment by an appropriate Tribunal of a trustee to administer
any Plan, or the termination of any Plan within the meaning of Title IV of
ERISA, and any of the foregoing results in a material liability to the Pension
Benefit Guaranty Corporation; or any material accumulated funding deficiency
within the meaning of ERISA exists under any Plan; or
(h)
Any Sublease or Sublease Guarantee or material provision thereof
shall, for any reason, not be valid and binding on the Company or any
Subsidiary, as the case may be, or in full force and effect, or shall be
declared to be null and void; or the validity or enforceability of any
Sublease or Sublease Guarantee shall be contested by the Company or any
Subsidiary, as the case may be; or the Company or any Subsidiary shall deny
that it has any or further liability or obligation under its respective
Sublease or Sublease Guarantee.
Section 6.2
Remedies Upon Default. If any Event of Default specified
in Section 6.1(e) occurs, the aggregate unpaid principal balance of and
accrued interest on the Obligation shall thereupon become due and payable
concurrently therewith, without any action by the Lender and without
diligence, presentment, demand, protest, notice of protest or intent to
accelerate, or notice of any other kind, all of which are hereby expressly
waived. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, should any Event of
Default occur and be continuing, the Lender may do any one or more of the
following:
(a)
Acceleration. Declare (by written notice to the Company) the entire
unpaid balance of the Obligation, or any part thereof, immediately due and
payable, whereupon it shall be due and payable, without diligence,
presentment, demand, protest, notice of protest or other notice of any kind,
all of which are hereby expressly waived.
(b)

Termination.

Terminate the Lease Facility and any Sublease.

(c)

(Intentionally omitted).

(d)

Judgment.

Reduce any claim to judgment.

(e)
Rights. Exercise any and all Rights afforded by the Laws or
principles of equity of the State of Texas or any other jurisdiction, or by
any Sublease or Sublease Guarantee, or otherwise.

Section 6.3
Remedies in General. If any Event of Default shall occur
and be continuing, the Lender may immediately proceed to protect and enforce
all or any Rights with respect thereto contained in this Agreement or any
Sublease or Sublease Guarantee, or may enforce any other legal or equitable
Rights. All Rights conferred upon the Lender shall be cumulative and not
exclusive of any other Rights available. No delay or omission to exercise any
Right shall impair any such Right or shall be construed to be a waiver of any
Event of Default or an acquiescence therein. Any Right may be exercised from
time to time, independently or concurrently, and as often as shall be deemed
expedient. No waiver of any Event of Default shall extend to any subsequent
Event of Default. No single or partial exercise of any Right shall preclude
other or further exercise of any Right. The Company agrees that if an Event
of Default shall happen and be continuing, it will pay reasonable attorneys'
fees and court costs incurred in collecting the amounts due and in exercising
Rights hereunder.
ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS
Section 7.1
Amendments, Etc. No amendment or waiver of any provisions
of this Agreement, nor consent to any departure by the Company herefrom or
therefrom, shall in any event be effective unless the same shall be in writing
and signed by the Lender in all cases, and then, in any case, such waiver or
consent shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific
purpose for which given.
Section 7.2
Notices, Etc. Notices, consents, requests, approvals,
demands and other communications (collectively, "Communications") provided for
herein shall; be in writing (including telecopy, telegraphic, telex or cable
Communications) and mailed, telecopied, telegraphed, telexed, cabled or
delivered to the following numbers or addresses, or such other number and
address as the Company or the Lender may give notice to the other of in
accordance with this section:
(a) If to the Company, to it at:
500 Terminal Road
Fort Worth, Texas 76106
Telecopy Number: (817) 626-6279
Attention: President
with a copy to:
Timothy M. Barnett
Winthrop & Weinstine
3000 Dain Bosworth Plaza
60 South Sixth Street
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402-4430
(b) If to the Lender, to it at:
301 Commerce Street, Suite 600
Fort Worth, Texas 76102
Telecopy Number: (817) 334-0191
Attention: J. Rodney Lawrence
Corporate Counsel
All Communications shall, when mailed, telecopied, telegraphed, telexed,
cabled or delivered, be effective when delivered to the Company, sent by
telecopier to any party or the telecopier number as provided for herein and
receipt thereof is acknowledged by such party, delivered to the telegraph
company, telexed to any party or the telex number provided for herein,
confirmed by telex answerback, delivered to the cable company, or five days
after being mailed to the address provided for herein, respectively.
Section 7.3
No Waiver; Remedies. No failure on the part of the Lender
to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any Right hereunder or under the Note
shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of
any such right, or any abandonment or discontinuance of any steps to enforce
such right, preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of
any other right. No notice to or demand on the Company in any case shall
entitle the Company to any other or further notice or demand in similar or
other circumstances. The remedies herein provided are cumulative and not
exclusive of any remedies provided by law.

Section 7.4
Costs, Expenses and Taxes. The Company agrees to pay or
reimburse the Lender for paying (i) all costs and expenses of the Lender in
connection with (A) the administration of this Agreement and the other
documents to be delivered hereunder, including, without limitation, the
reasonable fees and out-of-pocket expenses of counsel for the Lender with
respect thereto and with respect to advising the Lender as to its rights and
responsibilities under this Agreement and the Subleases and (B) any
modification, supplement or waiver of any of the terms of this Agreement, and
(ii) all reasonable costs and expenses of the Lender (including reasonable
counsel's fees) in connection with the enforcement of this Agreement. The
obligations of the Company under this Section 7.4 shall survive any
termination of this Agreement and/or expiration of a Sublease.
Section 7.5
Indemnity. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold
harmless the Lender against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses,
damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, claims, costs, expenses and
disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever which may be imposed on,
incurred by or asserted against the Lender or any of its employees, officers,
directors or other representatives in any way relating to or arising out of
any Environmental Liabilities, Sublease and Sublease Guarantee, any
transaction related hereto, or any act, omission or transaction of the
Company, its Subsidiaries and Affiliates, or any of their employees, officers,
directors or other representatives, to the extent that any of the same
results, directly or indirectly, from any claims made or actions, suits or
proceedings commenced by or on behalf of any Person other than the Lender.
The Company's indemnity obligation with respect to Environmental Liabilities
shall terminate seven years from the date hereof. The Company fully and
unconditionally releases the Lender and its Subsidiaries from all liabilities
and claims of whatever kind that the Company had, has or may have against the
Lender relating to or arising out of any Environmental Liabilities. The
obligation of the Company under this Section shall continue after payment of
the Obligation and termination of any or all Subleases, and shall not be
relieved by any claim or allegation of negligence by the Lender; provided,
however, that if such negligence shall be determined by a Tribunal in a final,
unappealable order, the Person whose negligence is so determined shall
reimburse the Company for all amounts paid under this Section in connection
with the proceeding determining the same.
Section 7.6
Right of Setoff. If any Event of Default shall have
occurred and be continuing, the Lender is hereby authorized at any time from
time to time, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to set off and apply any
and all deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final) at
any time held and other indebtedness at any time owing by the Lender to or for
the credit or the account of the Company against any of and all the
obligations of the Company now or hereafter existing under this Agreement and
the Subleases, irrespective of whether or not the Lender shall have made any
demand under this Agreement or the Subleases and although such obligations may
be unmatured. The Lender agrees promptly to notify the Company after any such
setoff and application made by the Lender, but the failure to give such notice
shall not affect the validity of such setoff and application. The rights of
the Lender under this Section 7.6 are in addition to the rights and remedies
(including, without limitation, other rights of setoff) which the Lender may
have.
Section 7.7
Governing Law. This Agreement, the Subleases, the
Sublease Guarantees, and all other documents executed in connection herewith,
shall be deemed to be contracts and agreements executed by the Company, its
Subsidiaries and the Lender under the Laws of the State of Texas and for all
purposes shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the Laws of
said State.
Section 7.8
Usury Not Intended. The Company and the Lender intend to
strictly comply with all applicable laws, including Applicable Laws.
Accordingly, the provision of this Section 7.8 shall govern and control over
every other provision of this Agreement, the Subleases and the Sublease
Guarantees, which conflicts or is inconsistent with this Section 7.8, even if
such provision declares that it controls (unless such provision expressly
identifies and refers to this Section 7.8). The term "interest" includes the
aggregate of all charges which constitute interest under Applicable Laws,
provided that, to the maximum extent permitted by Applicable Laws, (a) any
non-principal payment shall be characterized as an expense or fee or something
other than compensation for the use, forbearance or detention of money and not
as interest, and (b) all interest at any time contracted for, reserved,
charged or received shall be amortized, prorated, allocated and spread, in
equal parts during the full term of the Sublease. In no event shall the

Company or any other Person be obligated to pay, or the Lender have any right
or privilege to reserve, receive to retain, (a) any interest in excess of the
maximum amount of nonusurious interest permitted under Applicable Laws, or (b)
total interest in excess of the amount which the Lender could lawfully have
contracted for, reserved, received, retained or charged had the interest been
calculated for the full term of the Subleases at the Highest Lawful Rate.
None of the terms and provisions contained in this Agreement, the Sublease or
the Sublease Guarantees which directly or indirectly relate to interest shall
ever by construed without reference to this Section 7.8 or construed to create
a contract to pay for the use, forbearance or detention of money at an
interest rate in excess of the Highest Lawful Rate. If the term of any
Sublease or Sublease Guarantee is shortened by reason of termination,
acceleration of maturity as a result of any Default or other cause, or by
reason of any required or permitted prepayment, and if for that (or any other)
reason the Lender at any time is owed or receives (and/or has received)
interest in excess of interest calculated at the Highest Lawful Rate, then and
in any such event all of any such excess interest shall be cancelled
automatically as of the date of such acceleration, prepayment or other event
which produces the excess, and, if such excess interest has been paid to the
Lender, it shall be credited pro tanto against the then-outstanding principal
balance of the Company's obligations to the Lender, effective as of the date
or dates when the event occurs which causes it to be excess interest, until
such excess is exhausted or all of such principal has been fully paid and
satisfied, whichever occurs first, and any remaining balance of such excess
shall be promptly refunded to its payor.
Section 7.9
Survival of Representations and Warranties. All
representations, warranties and covenants contained herein or made in writing
by the Company and each Subsidiary in connection herewith shall survive the
execution and delivery of this Agreement and each Sublease, and will bind and
inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of the parties
hereto, whether so expressed or not.
Section 7.10
Binding Effect. This Agreement shall become effective
when it shall have been executed and delivered by the Company and the Lender,
and thereafter shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company
and the Lender and their respective successors and assigns.
Section 7.11
Successors and Assigns. Whenever in this Agreement any of
the parties hereto is referred to, such reference shall be deemed to include
the successors and permitted assigns of such party; and all covenants,
promises and agreement by or on behalf of the Company, its Subsidiaries or the
Lender that are contained in this Agreement shall bind and inure to the
benefit of their respective successors and assigns. The Company may not
assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the
written consent of the Lender.
Section 7.12
Independence of Covenants. All covenants contained in
this Agreement shall be given independent effect so that if a particular
action or condition is not permitted by any such covenants, the fact that such
action or condition would be permitted by an exception to, or otherwise be
within the limitations of, another covenant shall not avoid the occurrence of
a Default or Event of Default if such action is taken or condition exists.
Section 7.13
Separability. Should any clause, sentence, paragraph or
Section of this Agreement be judicially declared to be invalid, unenforceable
or void, such decision will not have the effect of invalidating or voiding the
remainder of this Agreement, and the parties hereto agree that the part or
parts of this Agreement so held to be invalid, unenforceable or void will be
deemed to have been stricken herefrom and the remainder will have the same
force and effectiveness as if such part or parts had never been included
herein.
Section 7.14
Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including Exhibits and
Schedules hereto) represent the final and entire agreement and understanding
between the Company and the Lender relating to the subject matter hereof and
thereof, supersede all prior proposals, agreements and understandings relating
to such subject matter and may not be contradicted by evidence of prior,
contemporaneous or subsequent oral agreements of the parties. There are no
unwritten oral agreements among the parties.
Section 7.15
Descriptive Headings. The section headings appearing in
this Agreement have been inserted for convenience only and shall be given no
substantive meaning or significance whatever in construing the terms and
provisions of this Agreement.

Section 7.16
Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed
in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate
counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original
and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement.
Section 7.17
Waiver of Jury Trial. Each of the parties hereto waives
any right it has or may hereafter have to trial by jury in any dispute arising
out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the Subleases, or any of the
transactions contemplated thereby.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be
executed by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized, as of the
date first above written.
SUNBELT NURSERY GROUP, INC.
By: _____________________________
Mark L. Jones
Vice President
PIER 1 IMPORTS, INC.
By: _____________________________
Clark A. Johnson
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
PIER LEASE, INC.
By: _____________________________
Clark A. Johnson
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT I
AMENDED AND RESTATED SUBLEASE
THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED SUBLEASE ("Sublease") is dated effective
as of the
day of
, 19
, and is between Pier Lease, Inc.,
a Delaware corporation (the "Sublessor"), having an address c/o 301 Commerce
Street, Suite 600, Fort Worth, Texas 76102, and WOLFE NURSERY, INC., a
Delaware corporation (the "Sublessee"), having an address at 500 Terminal
Road, Fort Worth, Texas 76106.
WHEREAS, Sublessor and Sublessee previously entered into that one
certain Sublease ("Original Sublease") dated effective as of the 28th day of
April, 1993, and Sublessor and Sublessee wish to amend and restate the terms
and provisions of the Original Sublease.
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Sublessor and Sublessee
hereby amend and restate the Original Sublease to be as follows:
ARTICLE I
1.
INCORPORATION OF STANDARD SUBLEASE PROVISIONS. The Standard
Sublease Provisions between Sublessor and Sublessee, dated as of even date
herewith (the "Standard Sublease Provisions"), are attached hereto as Exhibit
"A" and are hereby incorporated into this Sublease. Hereafter, this Sublease
and the Standard Sublease Provisions shall be read, taken and construed as one
and the same instrument. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this

Sublease shall have the respective meanings set forth in Article I of the
Standard Sublease Provisions. In the event of any conflict between the terms
and conditions of this Sublease and the terms and conditions of the Standard
Sublease Provisions, this Sublease shall control.
ARTICLE II
2.
SUBLEASED PROPERTY. Upon and subject to the terms and
conditions of this Sublease, Sublessor subleases to Sublessee and Sublessee
rents from Sublessor all of Sublessor's right, title and interest in and to
the following property (collectively, the "Subleased Property"):
,
"B" hereto,

(a) the parcel of land (the "Land") located in
County,
, as more particularly described in Exhibit

(b) all buildings, structures, fixtures and other
improvements presently situated or hereafter constructed (except as provided
for in Section 13.3 of the Standard Sublease Provisions) upon the Land
(collectively, the "Subleased Improvements"),
(c) all easements, rights and appurtenances relating to the
Land and the Subleased Improvements, and
(d) all equipment, machinery, fixtures and other items of
property, including all components thereof, now or hereafter located in, on
and used in connection with, the Subleased Improvements or necessary to the
operation or maintenance thereof, which are now or hereafter owned by Owner,
including, without limitation, all furnaces, boilers, heaters, electrical
equipment, heating, plumbing, ventilating, refrigerating, waste disposal,
air-cooling and air-conditioning apparatus, sprinkler systems and fire and
theft protection equipment (other than Sublessee's Equipment, as described in
Section 9.2 of the Standard Sublease Provisions) and which are hereby deemed
by the parties hereto to constitute real estate under the laws of the state in
which the Subleased Property is located, together with all replacements,
modifications, alterations and additions thereto (collectively, the
"Fixtures"), SUBJECT, HOWEVER, to (i) all matters of record on the date hereof
affecting the Subleased Property, (ii) any state of facts as would be
disclosed by an accurate survey of the Subleased Property; and (iii) the terms
and conditions in Sublessor's lease agreement with Pier Group, Inc. ("Owner")
with respect to the Subleased Property (the "Primary Lease"), a copy of which
has been delivered to Sublessee.
ARTICLE III
3.
TERM. Upon and subject to the terms and conditions of this
Sublease, Sublessor subleases to Sublessee, and Sublessee rents from Sublessor
all of Sublessor's right, title and interest in and to the Subleased Property
for (a) an interim term ("Interim Term") beginning on
, 19
("Commencement Date") and ending on the earliest of (i) June 30, 1998 (the
"Termination Date"), (ii) the Environmental Put Date for such Subleased
Property or (iii) the Business Close Date (as defined below); and (b) if
Sublessee fails to acquire all of the Subleased Property by not later than
June 30, 1998, an extended term (the "Extended Term") commencing at the end of
the Interim Term and ending on June 30, 2000, unless this Sublease is sooner
terminated in accordance herewith. "Business Close Date" shall mean the
thirtieth (30th) consecutive day during which the Subleased Property shall
have been closed for business, provided, however, that a Business Close Date
shall be deemed not to have occurred in the event that the Subleased Property
shall have been closed for business solely as a result of substantial damage
to or destruction of the Subleased Property and Sublessee shall have, prior to
such 30th consecutive day, given written notice to Sublessor of Sublessee's
commitment to repair and reopen the Subleased Property and Sublessee shall
have reopened the Subleased Property for continuous business within onehundred eighty (180) days after the first day during which the Subleased
Property was closed for business.
ARTICLE IV
4.
BASIC RENT. Sublessee shall pay to Sublessor or Sublessor's
Assignees, if any, in lawful money of the United States of America which shall
be legal tender for the payment of public and private debts at Sublessor's

address set forth above or at such other place or to such other persons, firms
or corporations as Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees, if any, from time to
time may designate in writing, a net basic rental (the "Basic Rent") during
the Term, payable monthly, in advance on the first Business Day of each month
as follows (together with such additional amounts as Sublessor and Sublessee
may agree upon):
(a) During the Interim Term, the Basic Rent for each month will be
equal to the greater of (i) the amount of interest which would be charged on
the Total Cost for such month (less any portion of the Total Cost heretofore
returned to Sublessor by Sublessee pursuant to payment of Basic Rent or
otherwise) based on the sum of the "Adjusted InterBank Rate" (assuming an
Interest Period of 90 days) plus 2% per annum (with the terms "Adjusted
InterBank Rate" and "Interest Period" being defined in the Credit Agreement),
and (ii) 6.5% of Sublessee's "Gross Sales" (as defined in GAAP) for the
preceding month.
(b) During the Extended Term, the Basic Rent for each month will be
equal to the sum of (a) the greater of (i) the amount of interest which would
be charged on the Total Cost for such month (less any portion of the Total
Cost heretofore returned to Sublessor by Sublessee pursuant to payment of
Basic Rent or otherwise) based on the sum of the "Adjusted InterBank Rate"
(assuming an Interest Period of thirty days) plus 2% per annum and (ii) 6.5%
of Sublessee's "Gross Sales" (as defined in GAAP) for the preceding month,
plus (b) 2.5% of the Total Cost.
(c) On the last day of each of Sublessee's first and fourth fiscal
quarters of each year, Sublessor and Sublessee shall review the amount of
Basic Rent actually paid by Sublessee and the amount due hereunder, and an
appropriate adjustment shall be made to reconcile the difference, if any,
which shall be immediately payable. Sublessee agrees to wire federal or other
immediately available funds in payment of the Basic Rent to Sublessor, or as
Sublessor may direct, on the day each payment is due, or if such day is not a
Business Day then on the last Business Day prior to such date, so that
Sublessor shall receive immediately available funds in such location as
Sublessor may designate on each such date. The Basic Rent shall be paid
absolutely net to Sublessor without setoff, demand, notice, deduction, or
counterclaim, so that this Sublease shall yield to Sublessor the full amount
of the installments of Basic Rent throughout the Term, all as more fully set
forth in Article VIII of the Standard Sublease Provisions.
ARTICLE V
5.1

Insurance.

(a) Sublessee shall keep the Subleased Improvements insured
against (i) damage by fire and the other hazards covered by standard extended
coverage all risk insurance and (ii) damage by vandalism, malicious mischief,
and such other hazards against which Sublessor shall require insurance, and
each policy of insurance required pursuant to this Section 5.1 shall be
endorsed to name First Interstate Bank of Texas, N.A. ("Bank"), Owner and
Sublessor, as a mortgagee and/or loss payee thereunder, as their interest may
appear, with loss payable to Bank, Owner and Sublessor, as their interest may
appear, without contribution or assessment. All insurance policies and
endorsements required pursuant to this Section 5.1 shall be fully paid for,
nonassessable and contain such provisions (including, without limitation,
inflation guard and replacement cost endorsements) and expiration dates and
shall be in such form and amounts and issued by such insurance companies with
a rating of "A" or better as established by Best's Rating Guide, or an
equivalent rating with such other publication of a similar nature as shall be
in current use, or such other companies, as shall be approved by Sublessor.
The amount of coverage shall be the total replacement cost of the Subleased
Improvements (excluding costs for footings and foundations, architectural
costs, and engineering costs). Sublessor hereby approves the amounts of
insurance carried by Sublessee for the above-described risks as of the date
hereof and until such time, if any, as Sublessor shall reasonably determine
that greater or lesser amounts of coverage are required for the Subleased
Improvements, due regard being given to the site and type of the building, the
time of construction, the location, utilities and occupancy or any
replacements and substitutions therefor. At such time or from time to time as
Sublessor may give written notice to Sublessee requesting additional or less
insurance coverage for the Subleased Improvements, Sublessee shall promptly
obtain and deliver to Sublessor replacement insurance policies complying with
Sublessor's request and with the provision of this Section 5.1.

(b) In addition to the insurance policies above described,
Sublessee shall keep and maintain in effect insurance policies in respect of
rental loss, Workmen's Compensation (except in Texas and to the extent
Sublessee effectively elects not to be covered by the Texas Worker's
Compensations Act, Sublessee shall maintain an alternate plan covered by
ERISA), employers' liability coverage, comprehensive public liability
insurance, and such other insurance as Sublessor may require; all in such
form, with such coverage, in such amounts and issued by such insurance
companies with a rating of "A" or better as established by Best's Rating Guide
or equivalent rating of such other publications of similar nature as shall be
in current use, as shall be approved by Sublessor.
(c) Without limiting the foregoing, each policy of insurance
required hereunder shall provide that such policy may not be cancelled,
expire, or be terminated (whether due to nonpayment of premiums, surrender by
the insured, or other reason) except upon thirty (30) days' prior written
notice to Sublessor and that no act or thing done by Sublessee shall
invalidate the policy as against Sublessor, Bank or Owner. In addition,
Sublessor may require Sublessee to carry such other insurance on the Subleased
Improvements in such amounts as may from time to time be required by
institutional lenders, including, without limitation, Bank, or by Owner,
against insurable casualties (including, without limitation, risks of war and
nuclear explosion) which at the time are commonly insured against in the case
of premises similarly situated, due regard being given to the site and the
type of the building, the type of construction, the stage of construction,
location, utilities and occupancy or any replacements or substitutions
therefor.
(d) Sublessee shall additionally keep the Subleased
Improvements insured against loss by flood if the Subleased Property is
located in an area identified by the Secretary of Housing and Urban
Development as an area having special flood hazards and in which the Flood
Insurance Act of 1968 and the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 are
applicable, as the same may have been or may hereafter be amended or modified
(and any successor acts thereto), in an amount at least equal to the total
replacement cost of the Subleased Improvements (excluding costs for footings
and foundations, architectural costs, and engineering costs) or the maximum
limit of coverage available with respect to the Subleased Improvements under
said Act, whichever is less, and with a company or companies reasonably
approved by Sublessor, Bank and Owner.
(e) From time to time upon the occurrence of any change in
the use, operation or value of the Subleased Property or any part thereof, or
in the event of the unavailability of insurance in the area in which the
Subleased Property is located, Sublessee shall promptly notify Sublessor of
such change and shall, within five (5) days after demand by Sublessor, take
out such additional amounts and/or such other kinds of insurance as Sublessor
may require. Otherwise, Sublessee shall not take out or permit any separate
or additional insurance which is contributing in the event of loss unless it
is endorsed in favor of Sublessor, Bank and Owner, as their interests may
appear, in accordance with the requirements hereof and otherwise satisfactory
to Sublessor, Bank and Owner, in all respects. Insurance required hereunder
may be carried by Sublessee pursuant to blanket policies, provided that all
other requirements herein set forth are satisfied and that the underlying
policy in respect of the Subleased Property is assigned and delivered as
herein required.
(f) In the event that Sublessee fails to keep the Subleased
Improvements insured in compliance with this Section 5.1, Sublessor may, but
shall not be obligated to, obtain insurance and pay the premiums therefor and
Sublessee shall, on demand, reimburse Sublessor for all sums, advances and
expenses incurred in connection therewith. Prior to the execution of a
Sublease, Sublessee shall deliver copies of all original policies to Sublessor
together with the endorsements thereto required hereunder.
(g) The proceeds of insurance paid on account of any damage
or destruction to the Subleased Property or any part thereof shall be applied
as hereinafter provided. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
herein or in any provision of the applicable law, the proceeds of insurance
policies coming into the possession of Sublessor, Bank or Owner shall not be
deemed trust funds and Sublessor, Bank and Owner shall be entitled to dispose
of such proceeds as hereinafter provided.
5.2

Waiver of Subrogation.

Sublessee and Sublessor hereby waive

and release each other and Owner of and from any and all rights of recovery,
claim, action, or cause of action against each other or Owner, their agents,
officers, and employees, for any loss or damage insured (whether by self
insurance, insurance or otherwise) by the terms of this Sublease or otherwise
insured that may occur to the Subleased Property, improvements to the building
or personal property including building contents within such building, by
reason of fire or the elements of nature regardless of cause or origin
including negligence of Sublessor, Sublessee or Owner and their agents,
officers, and employees; provided, however, that such waiver and release do
not adversely affect the insurance coverage required to be maintained herein.
Because this paragraph will preclude the assignment of any claim mentioned in
it by way of subrogation or otherwise to any insurance company or any other
person, each party to this Sublease agrees immediately to give to each
insurance company which has issued to it policies of insurance covering all
risk of direct physical loss, written notice of the terms of mutual waivers
contained in this paragraph, and to have the insurance policies properly
endorsed to prevent the invalidation of such insurance coverage by reason of
these waivers.
ARTICLE VI
6.1 Notice of Damage, Destruction or Taking; Condemnation Awards.
In case of any damage to or destruction of the Subleased Property or any part
thereof, or in case of any Taking, Sublessee shall forthwith give notice
thereof to Sublessor and Sublessor's Assignees, if any. If Sublessor shall be
advised by the condemning authority of a proposed Taking, Sublessor shall
forthwith give notice thereof to Sublessee, but its failure to do so shall not
affect the rights of the parties as set forth in this Article VI. In case of
any such Taking, damage or destruction, Sublessor shall be entitled to all
awards or insurance payments on account thereof (or amounts equal thereto if
Sublessee shall then be self-insuring hereunder), and Sublessee hereby
irrevocably assigns to Sublessor all rights of Sublessee to any such award or
payment and irrevocably authorizes and empowers Sublessor in the name of
Sublessee or otherwise, to file and prosecute what would otherwise be
Sublessee's claim for any portion of such award or payment, and to collect,
receipt for and retain the same, except as hereinafter provided. Any such
awards or insurance payments (or amounts equal thereto if Sublessee shall then
be self-insuring hereunder) shall be paid over to Sublessor's Assignees or if
no Sublessor's Assignees then exist, then to a commercial bank or trust
company or other institution selected by Sublessor (the "Escrow Holder"), to
be held in escrow and applied as hereinafter provided. All costs and expenses
of Sublessor, Sublessor's Assignees or the Escrow Holder shall be paid by
Sublessee. Unless an Event of Default shall have occurred, all sums so
received by Sublessor's Assignees or Sublessor or the Escrow Holder, as the
case may be, shall be applied in accordance with the provisions of Article
6.3, except that any such sums received with respect to a Taking for temporary
use shall be applied in accordance with the provisions of Article 6.2. If an
Event of Default shall have occurred at the time of receipt of any such award
or payment, the same shall be paid to and retained by Sublessor. Sublessee
will pay all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred by
Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees, if any, in connection with any such Taking
and the seeking and obtaining of any award or payment in respect thereof. For
the purposes of this Sublease, all amounts paid pursuant to any agreement with
any condemning authority in settlement of any condemnation or other eminent
domain proceeding affecting the Subleased Property shall be deemed to
constitute an award made in such proceeding whether or not the same shall have
actually been commenced. For the purposes of this Article, the terms "net
proceeds" and "net awards" shall mean, respectively, (i) any insurance
proceeds in respect of any damage to or destruction of the Subleased Property
or any part thereof, or (ii) any awards in connection with any Taking thereof,
in each case, less all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred
in connection with the seeking and obtaining of any such proceeds or awards.
6.2 Taking for Temporary Use. In case of a Taking for temporary
use (a period not exceeding 365 consecutive days), there shall be no
termination, cancellation or modification of this Sublease, and Sublessee
shall continue to perform and comply with (except as such performance and such
compliance may be rendered impossible by reason of such Taking) all of its
obligations under this Sublease and shall in no event be relieved of its
obligation to pay punctually all Rent or any other charges payable hereunder.
Sublessor shall pay the net awards received by it (whether by way of damages,
rent or otherwise) by reason of such Taking to Sublessee, if no Event of
Default shall have occurred.

6.3

Other Taking, Damage or Destruction, Repair or Replacement.

(a) In case of any damage to or destruction of the Subleased
Property or any part thereof which is not Substantial, as hereinafter defined,
or in case of any Taking which is not Substantial other than for temporary
use, Sublessee will, at its expense, promptly commence and complete with due
diligence (subject to the occurrence of Unavoidable Delays) the replacement
and repair of the Subleased Property in order to restore it as nearly as
practicable to the value and condition thereof immediately prior to such
damage, destruction or Taking, whether or not the insurance proceeds or the
award for the Taking shall be sufficient for such purpose. If the cost of
restoring the Subleased Property is estimated by an independent architect
therefor and such cost is equal to or in excess of $100,000, Sublessee shall
expend its own funds to the extent of such excess before making application
for receipt of such proceeds or awards as hereinafter provided. If the cost
of restoration is estimated to be less than $100,000, then such proceeds or
awards shall be immediately paid over to Sublessee if no Event of Default
shall have occurred. If the cost of restoration is estimated to equal or
exceed $100,000, the net proceeds of insurance and the net awards for the
Taking received by Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees, as the case may be,
shall, if no Event of Default shall have occurred, be paid to Sublessee (or as
Sublessee may direct), from time to time (but not more often than monthly) as
such Subleased Property is replaced or repaired, in amounts equal to the cost
of such replacement and repair, upon delivery to Sublessor of an Officer's
Certificate and a certificate of an engineer or architect satisfactory to
Sublessor certifying, in each case, the amount to be paid (which may represent
amounts theretofore paid by Sublessee in the effectuation of such repairs or
replacements and not reimbursed hereunder or amounts due and payable by
Sublessee therefor, or both). Upon completion of construction, Sublessee
shall deliver to Sublessor (i) a copy of a permanent, unconditional
certificate of occupancy for the Subleased Property and (ii) an Officer's
Certificate and a certificate of an engineer or architect who shall be either
a professional, licensed engineer employed by Lessor or shall be satisfactory
to Sublessor certifying to the completion of the repair or replacement of such
Subleased Property, the payment of the cost thereof in full, and the amount of
such cost, and upon receipt of such certificates by Sublessor, any balance of
such proceeds and awards or other payments received during the Term or any
renewal term, as appropriate, and not required to be held or applied in
accordance with the preceding sentence, shall (after deducting amounts
necessary to pay any taxes attributable to such Subleased Property) be paid
over to Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees, except that if no Event of Default
has occurred and if the balance of an award for a Taking or other payments
shall be $100,000 or more, the entire balance shall be retained by Sublessor
and applied pursuant to the Primary Lease. In the event of a Taking of such
character as not to require any repair or replacement of the Subleased
Improvements, and upon delivery to Sublessor of an Officer's Certificate
certifying that such partial Taking has not materially affected the condition
or use of such Subleased Property, any net award or other payment for such
Taking received during the Term shall, if no Event of Default shall have
occurred, be paid over to Sublessee, except that if the amount of such award
or other payment shall be $100,000 or more, the same shall be retained by
Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees and the Basic Rent will be adjusted as
required by the Primary Lease. If an Event of Default shall have occurred
prior to the time of Sublessor's receipt of any insurance proceeds or awards
or other payment for a Taking pursuant to this Article 6.3, the same shall be
retained by the Sublessor.
(b) Subject to the provisions of Section 3 hereof relating to
a Subleased Property being closed for business, in case of any destruction or
Taking of the Subleased Property to such an extent that Sublessee determines,
in Sublessee's sole discretion, within thirty (30) days after such destruction
or Taking, that the Subleased Property is no longer suitable for Sublessee's
intended use (such destruction or Taking being referred to hereinafter as
"Substantial") during the Term, and if no Event of Default shall have
occurred, Sublessee shall, within seventy-five (75) days from the date of such
destruction or Taking, give Sublessor (i) notice ("Notice") of its
determination and notice of termination of this Sublease with respect to such
Subleased Property accompanied by an offer to purchase the Subleased Property
from Owner (including the net amount of the award or insurance proceeds, as
the case may be) on the first Payment Date occurring not later than one
hundred ten (110) days after such Notice (the "Purchase Date") for a purchase
price equal to the "Total Cost" (as defined in the Primary Lease) of the
Subleased Property less any amount of such Total Costs theretofore returned to
Sublessor by Sublessee pursuant to payment of Basic Rent or otherwise, plus
other amounts to be paid under and in accordance with Article XXI of the

Primary Lease, (ii) an Officer's Certificate describing the event giving rise
to such termination and stating that the Board of Directors has determined
that there has been a substantial loss and stating the nature of the loss, and
(iii) a letter agreement that notwithstanding the termination of this Sublease
as to such Subleased Property or any other matter, Sublessee has discontinued
use of such Subleased Property in its business operations or will discontinue
such use on or before the Purchase Date and will not use the Subleased
Property for five (5) years thereafter for any purpose whatsoever. Sublessor
shall have the option of accepting or rejecting such offer; provided, however,
that Sublessor shall only accept such offer upon obtaining the written consent
of Owner and Sublessor's Assignees and such offer shall be deemed to have been
rejected unless written notice of acceptance is received by Sublessee within
forty-five (45) days prior to the Purchase Date. In the event Sublessor
accepts such offer, Sublessor shall (or cause Owner to), upon receipt from
Sublessee of the Purchase Price provided for above and any Rent due and
payable under this Sublease (including the installment of Basic Rent due on
the Purchase Date), (a) convey the Subleased Property to Sublessee on the
Purchase Date in accordance with the provisions of Article XXI of the Standard
Lease Provisions of the Primary Lease and (b) pay over or assign to Sublessee
the net award or net insurance proceeds, as the case may be, and this Sublease
shall thereupon terminate.
If Sublessor rejects Sublessee's offer to purchase the Subleased
property pursuant to the terms of this Sublease, this Sublease shall terminate
as to the Subleased Property on the Purchase Date, provided Sublessee shall
not then be in Default under this Sublease and provided further that Sublessor
shall retain all condemnation awards or proceeds of any insurance policies or
self-insurance payments, as the case may be, and any other payment to which it
may be entitled.
ARTICLE VII
7.
COMPLETE AGREEMENT. Sublessor and Sublessee acknowledge and
agree that the terms and provisions of the Original Lease are hereby amended
and restated as set forth in this Sublease and that the terms and provisions
of this Sublease shall hereafter be the sole agreement between Sublessor and
Sublessee with respect to the Subleased Property.
ARTICLE VIII
8.
LEASE GUARANTEE. Sunbelt Nursery Group, Inc., a Delaware
corporation ("Sunbelt"), has previously executed and delivered to Sublessor
its Sublease Guarantee ("Guarantee") dated April 28, 1993, by which Sunbelt
unconditionally guaranteed to Sublessor the payment and performance by
Sublessee under the Original Lease. By its execution below, Sunbelt agrees
that the Guarantee shall remain in full force and effect with respect to the
Original Sublease, as amended and restated by this Sublease, that this
Sublease is one of the "Lease Agreements" described in the Guarantee, and that
Sunbelt has no defenses, offset, or counterclaims against or with respect to
any of its obligations under its Guarantee.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the Sublease to be
executed as of the date first set forth above.
"SUBLESSEE"
WOLFE NURSERY, INC., a Delaware
corporation

By:
Mark L. Jones
Vice President
"SUBLESSOR"
PIER LEASE, INC., a Delaware corporation

By:

Clark A. Johnson, Chairman
ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO
AS SUBLEASE GUARANTOR:
SUNBELT NURSERY GROUP, INC.

By:
Mark L. Jones
Vice President

EXHIBIT "A"

STANDARD SUBLEASE PROVISIONS
PIER LEASE, INC.
Sublessor
AND
WOLFE NURSERY, INC.
Sublessee

STANDARD SUBLEASE PROVISIONS
THESE STANDARD SUBLEASE PROVISIONS ("Standard Sublease Provisions")
are dated effective as of the
day of
, 199 , and is between
PIER LEASE, INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Sublessor"), having an address
301 Commerce Street, Suite 600, Fort Worth, Texas 76102, and WOLFE NURSERY,
INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Sublessee"), having an address 500 Terminal
Road, Fort Worth, Texas 76106.
ARTICLE I
1.
DEFINITIONS. Whenever used herein, the following capitalized
terms have the respective meanings set forth after them and include the plural
as well as the singular:
Additional Charges:

As defined in Article VI.

Additional Facilities: One or more new buildings or one or
more additional structures annexed to any portion of the Subleased
Improvements which are constructed on the Land during the Term. No
replacement, restoration or rebuilding of the Subleased Improvements or any
portion thereof shall be deemed an Additional Facility.
Alterations:
Basic Rent:

As defined in Section 13.1.
As defined in a Sublease.

Building Plans:

As defined in Section 3.1(a).

Business Day: Each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and
Friday which is not a day on which national banks in Fort Worth, Texas, are
authorized, or obligated, by law or executive order to be closed.
Commencement Date:

As defined in a Sublease.

Construction Cost: The cost of construction and/or renovation
of the Subleased Improvements which cost shall include (a) costs of site
preparation and improvement, materials, labor, supervision, design,
engineering and architectural services, (b) the cost of the Fixtures, (c) all
financing charges incurred during the construction including any interest paid
or accrued on the Notes and all fees and expenses related to such financing
including, but not limited to, counsel fees, trustee fees, brokerage fees and
recording taxes, (d) Impositions, utility charges, insurance premiums and
other carrying charges in respect of the Subleased Property incurred by Lessee
during construction, (e) developer's costs, and (f) miscellaneous costs
approved by Sublessor; provided, however, that costs not directly incurred for
labor charges, materials, and Fixtures may not exceed twenty-five percent
(25%) of the total annual cost of construction and/or renovation.
Credit Agreement: That certain Restated Revolving Credit
Agreement dated December 30, 1992, between Owner and First Interstate Bank of
Texas, N.A., as agent, and the banks referred to therein (the "Banks"), as it
may be amended, or amended and restated, from time to time.
Credit Facilities Agreement: That certain Amended and Restated
Credit Facilities Agreement, dated October 14, 1994, between Sunbelt Nursery
Group, Inc. and Pier 1 Imports, Inc., as it may be amended, or amended and
restated, from time to time.
Default: Any condition or event which constitutes or would
constitute an Event of Default either with or without notice or lapse of time,
or both.
Development Agreement:

As defined in Section 3.1(a).

Environmental Put Date: The date on which Owner is obligated
by the Banks (or any subsequent lender(s) to Owner with respect to the
Subleased Property) to pay all Outstanding Advances (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) with respect to the Subleased Property as a result of any violation
or alleged violation of any Environmental Laws (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) with respect to such Subleased Property.
Event of Default:
Fixtures:

As defined in Article XIX.

As defined in a Sublease.

GAAP: Generally accepted accounting principles set forth in
the opinions and pronouncements of the Accounting Principles Board of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and statements and
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board or in such other
statements by such other entity as may be approved by a significant segment of
the accounting profession, which are applicable to circumstances as of the
date of determination.
Guarantor:
of its Subsidiaries.

Collectively, Sunbelt Nursery Group, Inc. and each

Guarantee: The Sublease Guarantee, dated as of April 28, 1993,
by Guarantor guaranteeing the performance by Sublessee of its obligations
under the Sublease.
Impositions:

All taxes (including, without limitation, all ad

valorem, sales (including those imposed on lease rentals), use, single
business, gross receipts, value added, intangible transaction privilege,
privilege or license or similar taxes), assessments (including, without
limitation, all assessments for public improvements or benefits, whether or
not commenced or completed prior to the date hereof and whether or not to be
completed within the Term), ground rents, water, sewer or other rents and
charges, excises, levies, fees (including, without limitation, license,
permit, inspection, authorization and similar fees), and all other
governmental charges, in each case whether general or special, ordinary or
extraordinary, or foreseen or unforeseen, of every character in respect of the
Subleased Property and/or the Basic Rent or Additional Charges (including all
interest and penalties thereon), which at any time prior to, during or in
respect of the Term may be assessed or imposed on or in respect of or be a
lien upon (a) Sublessor, including, without limitation, all franchise, single
business or other taxes imposed on Sublessor for the privilege of doing
business in the jurisdiction in which the Subleased Property is located, (b)
the Subleased Property, or any part thereof or any rent therefrom or any
estate, right, title or interest therein, or (c) any occupancy, operation, use
or possession of, or sales from, or activity conducted on, or in connection
with the Subleased Property or the leasing or use of the Subleased Property or
any part thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require
Sublessee to pay any tax, assessment, levy or charge imposed on Sublessor or
Sublessor's Assignees, if any, in the nature of a capital levy, estate,
inheritance, succession, transfer, net income or net revenue tax of Sublessor
or Sublessor's Assignees, if any, except that if at any time after the date
hereof the methods of taxation prevailing at the date hereof shall be altered
so that in lieu of or as an addition to or as a substitute for the whole or
any part of the taxes, assessments, rents, rates, charges, levies or
impositions now assessed, levied or imposed upon all or any part of the
Subleased Property, there shall be assessed, levied or imposed (a) a tax,
assessments, levy, imposition or charge based on the gross income or gross
rents received therefrom from Sublessee whether or not wholly or partially as
a capital levy or otherwise which is calculated without deduction of any
portion of such gross income or gross rents so received, or (b) a tax,
assessments, levy, imposition or charge measured by or based in whole or in
part upon all or any part of the Subleased Property and imposed upon Sublessor
or Sublessor's Assignees, if any, or (c) a license fee measured by the gross
rents received from Sublessee which is calculated without deduction of any
portion of such gross rents so received, or (d) any other tax, assessments,
levy, imposition, charge or license fee however described or imposed, then all
such taxes, assessments, levies, impositions, charges or license fees or the
part thereof so measured or based shall be deemed to be Impositions payable by
Sublessee hereunder; provided that any tax, assessment, levy, imposition or
charge imposed on income from the Subleased Property shall be calculated as if
Sublessor's Estate in such Subleased Property is the only asset of Sublessor.
Indebtedness: Indebtedness of any person shall mean and
include, without duplication, (a) any liability, contingent or otherwise, of
such person (i) for borrowed money (whether or not the recourse of the lender
is to the whole of the assets of such person or only to a portion thereof), or
(ii) evidenced by a note, debenture or similar instrument or representing the
balance deferred and unpaid of the purchase price of any property purchased;
(b) any liability of others of the kind described in the preceding clause (a),
which such person has guaranteed or which is otherwise its legal liability;
(c) any obligation secured by a Lien to which the property or assets of such
person are subject, whether or not the obligations secured thereby shall have
been assumed by or shall otherwise be such person's legal liability; and (d)
any and all deferrals, renewals, extensions and refundings of, or amendments,
modifications or supplements to, liability of the kind described in any of the
preceding clauses (a), (b) or (c).
Insurance Requirements:
Interim Term:
Land:

As defined in a Sublease.

As defined in a Sublease.

As defined in a Sublease.

Legal Requirements: All federal, state, county, municipal and
other governmental statutes, laws, rules, orders, agreements, regulations,
ordinances, judgments, decrees and injunctions affecting either the Subleased
Property or the construction, use, occupancy or alteration thereof, whether
now or hereafter enacted and in force, including any which may (i) require
repairs, modifications or alterations in or to the Subleased Property or (ii)
in any way limit or condition the use and enjoyment thereof, and all permits,
licenses and authorizations and regulations relating thereto, and all

covenants, agreements,
instruments, either of
limitation, any ground
Sublessor's Assignees,
Property.

restrictions and encumbrances contained in any
record or known to Sublessee (including, without
lease, or any deed of trust or mortgage with
if any), at any time in force affecting the Subleased

Lien: Any lien, mortgage, pledge, security interest, charge or
encumbrance of any kind (including any conditional sale or other title
retention agreement, any lease in the nature thereof, and any agreement to
give any security interest).
Officer's Certificate: A certificate of Sublessee signed by
the president or any vice president or the treasurer, or other officer
authorized to so sign by the board of directors or bylaws of Sublessee.
Overdue Rate: The lower of (i) the Basic Rent plus three
percent (3%) per annum or (ii) the maximum rate permitted by law.
Owner:

Pier Group, Inc.

Payment Date:

Any due date for the payment of the installment

of Basic Rent.
Payments:
Pier 1:

As defined in Section 3.2(a).
Pier 1 Imports, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

Reimbursement Request:
Rent:

As defined in Section 14.1.

Collectively, the Basic Rent and Additional Charges.

Significant Subsidiary:
following conditions:

A Subsidiary meeting any one of the

(a) the assets of the Subsidiary, or the investments in and
advances to the Subsidiary by Guarantor and Guarantor's other Subsidiaries,
exceed five percent (5%) of the assets of Guarantor and its Subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis;
(b) the sales and operating revenues of the Subsidiary exceed
five percent (5%) of the sales and operating revenues of Guarantor and
Guarantor's Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis; or
(c) the Subsidiary is the parent of one or more Subsidiaries
and, together with such Subsidiaries would, if considered in the aggregate,
constitute a Significant Subsidiary.
Sublease: The particular Sublease Agreement between Sublessor,
as lessor thereunder, and Sublessee, as lessee thereunder, into which these
Standard Sublease Provisions are incorporated by reference and attached
thereto as Exhibit "A".
Subleases:

Collectively, all Subleases between Sublessor and

Sublessee.
Subleased Improvements; Subleased Property:

Each as defined in

a Sublease.
Subleased Property:

As defined in a Sublease.

Sublessee's Equipment:
Sublessor's Lender:

As defined in Section 8.2.

As defined in Section 14.3(a).

Sublessor's Assignees: Collectively, Sublessor's assignees
designated in any assignment of Sublessor's interest in a Sublease as
additional security for any Indebtedness of Sublessor and all purchasers at
any foreclosure sale of the Subleased Property and their assignees and the
successors and assigns of all such parties.
Sublessor's Estate: Sublessor's interest in a Subleased
Property which is a leasehold estate in the Land and Subleased Improvements.
Subsidiaries: Corporations, each of which Guarantor owns,
directly or indirectly, more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting stock

(individually, a "Subsidiary").
Taking: A taking or voluntary conveyance during the Term of
all or part of the Subleased Property, or any interest therein or right
accruing thereto or use thereof, as the result of, or in settlement of any
condemnation or other eminent domain proceeding affecting the Subleased
Property whether or not the same shall have actually been commenced.
Term:

Collectively or individually, the Interim Term and the

Extension Term.
Third Party Offer:

As defined in Article XXXVI.

Total Cost: An amount equal to the sum (but without
duplication of any item) of the following items paid, or to be paid by
Sublessor and not reimbursed by Sublessee, as of the applicable date
including, without limitation: (a) the cost of acquiring the Land or Owner's
leasehold estate therein, as applicable, which may include brokerage
commissions, if any, and attorneys' fees, (b) the Construction Cost of the
Subleased Improvements to the extent paid directly by Sublessor or Owner or
reimbursed to Sublessee pursuant to Article III hereof, (c) the cost of
surveys, title reports and title insurance policies, (d) filing fees and other
direct expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred in connection
with the organization of Sublessor and Owner in the State of Texas, (e)
transfer taxes, documentary, stamp and similar taxes and all recording and
filing fees and taxes incurred in connection with the acquisition of the Land
or Sublessor's leasehold estate therein and the financing of Sublessor's
Estate, (f) the fees, expenses and disbursements of special counsel to
Sublessor's Assignees, if any, and counsel to Sublessor, Sublessee and
Guarantor, (g) Owner's cost of financing the Subleased Property and all other
costs of whatever kind shown on Owner's books and records attributable or
allocable to the Subleased Property, (h) the cost of any Alterations to the
Subleased Improvements, and (i) all costs or expenses of whatever kind or
character incurred by Owner in connection with the Subleased Property. Total
Cost, in any event, shall not be less than the total of all Outstanding
Advances (as defined in the Credit Agreement) relating to the Subleased
Property.
Unavoidable Delays: Delays due to strikes, lockouts, inability
to procure materials, power failure, acts of God, governmental restrictions,
enemy action, civil commotion, fire, unavoidable casualty or other causes
beyond the control of Sublessee, provided that lack of funds regardless of the
cause therefor shall not be deemed a cause beyond the control of Sublessee.
Year: A twelve (12) month period commencing on the
Commencement Date or on an anniversary date thereof, as the case may be.
ARTICLE II
2.

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.
ARTICLE III

3.1

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.

3.2

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.

3.3

Indemnity

(a) Indemnification. To the full extent permitted by
applicable law, Sublessee hereby agrees to indemnify and shall hold Pier 1,
Sublessor and Owner, and their respective successors and assigns, and any and
all officers, employees, agents, directors and shareholders of Pier 1,
Sublessor and Owner or of Pier 1's Sublessor's and Owner's successors and
assigns, harmless from and against, and shall defend against, any and all
liabilities, losses, claims, demands, costs, fees and expenses, and judgments
of any nature arising, or alleged to arise, from or in connection with or
giving rise to any bodily injury to, or the death of, any person or any other
loss (including, without limitation, loss of or damage to property) with
respect to: (a) the performance of, or failure of performance of,
construction of the Subleased Improvements and of the covenants contained
herein by Sublessee, its agents, employees, contractors, or subcontractors of
any tier; (b) any other acts or omissions of Sublessee or its agents,

employees, contractors, or subcontractors of any tier with respect to the Land
or the Subleased Property or any portion thereof; (c) performance of any labor
or services or the furnishing of any materials or other property in respect of
the Land or the Subleased Property or any portion thereof; (d) any non-payment
or delay of a payment which Sublessee is required to make under the Sublease;
or (e) any claim of any kind whatsoever at any time arising out of or in
connection with the Subleased Property, including, without limitation, any and
all hazardous waste claims and claims brought by the Environmental Protection
Agency, or other federal, state, or local environmental regulatory authority.
Sublessee expressly acknowledges and agrees that this indemnification protects
Pier 1, Owner, Sublessor and Sublessor's Assignees, if any, from the
consequences of the acts or omissions of Pier 1, Owner, Sublessor or
Sublessor's Assignees, including, without limitation, the negligent acts or
omissions of Owner, Pier 1, Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees.
(b) Legal Defense. Sublessee shall resist and defend any
action, suit, or proceeding brought against any indemnified party described in
Section 3.3(a) by reason of any occurrence with respect to which Sublessee has
herein agreed to hold Sublessor and Owner harmless by use of counsel
designated by Sublessee, which designated counsel is subject to Owner's and
Sublessor's approval as applicable, such approval not to be unreasonably
withheld.
3.4

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.

3.5

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.
ARTICLE IV

4.

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.
ARTICLE V

5.

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.
ARTICLE VI

6.
ADDITIONAL CHARGES. In addition to the Basic Rent, Sublessee
shall also pay and discharge as additional rent (collectively, the "Additional
Charges") all Impositions relating to the Subleased Property, and in the event
of any failure on the part of Sublessee to pay any of the foregoing, every
fine, penalty, interest and cost which may be added for non-payment or late
payment thereof and Sublessor shall have all legal, equitable and contractual
rights, powers and remedies provided either in the Sublease or by statute or
otherwise as in the case of non-payment of the Basic Rent. If any installment
of Basic Rent or Additional Charges shall not be paid when due, Sublessee
shall pay Sublessor on demand, as Additional Charges, a late charge (to the
extent permitted by law) computed at the Overdue Rate on the amount of such
installment, from the due date of such installment to the date of payment
thereof.
ARTICLE VII
7.1 Payment of Impositions. Subject to Article XVI hereof relating
to permitted contests, Sublessee will pay, or cause to be paid, all
Impositions before any fine, penalty, interest or cost may be added for
non-payment, such payments to be made directly to the taxing authorities where
feasible, and will promptly, upon request, furnish to Sublessor and
Sublessor's Assignees, if any, copies of official receipts or other
satisfactory proof evidencing such payments. If any Imposition may, at the
option of the taxpayer, lawfully be paid in installments (whether or not
interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance of such Imposition), Sublessee may
exercise the option to pay the same (and any accrued interest on the unpaid
balance of such Imposition) in installments and in such event, shall pay such
installments during the Term hereof as the same respectively become due and
before any fine, penalty, premium, further interest or cost may be added
thereto. Sublessee, at its expense, shall prepare, and to the extent it may
legally do so, and file all tax returns and reports in respect of any
Imposition as may be required by governmental authorities. If any refund
shall be due from any taxing authority in respect of any Imposition paid by
Sublessee, the same shall be retained by Sublessee.

7.2 Notice of Impositions. Sublessor shall, and shall cause Owner
to, give prompt notice to Sublessee of all Impositions payable by Sublessee
hereunder of which Sublessor or Owner, as applicable, at any time has
knowledge, but a failure to give any such notice shall in no way diminish
Sublessee's obligations hereunder.
7.3

Intentionally Omitted.

7.4 Utility Charges. Sublessee will pay or cause to be paid all
charges for electricity, power, gas, oil, water and other utilities used in
the Subleased Property, and for all services and supplies at any time rendered
to, or used on or about the Subleased Property.
7.5 Insurance Premiums. Sublessee will pay or cause to be paid all
premiums for the insurance coverage required to be maintained pursuant to the
Sublease.
7.6 Net Rent. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary, it is intended that the Basic Rent provided for in this Sublease
shall be absolutely net to Sublessor throughout the term of this Sublease, and
Sublessee accordingly covenants and agrees to pay as they become due and
payable, and before they become delinquent, all Impositions, Additional
Charges, and other amounts of whatever kind or character which relate to or
arise in any way in connection with this Sublease, the Subleased Property or
the obligations of Sublessor with respect to the Subleased Property.
ARTICLE VIII
8.
NO TERMINATION, ABATEMENT, ETC. Except as otherwise
specifically provided for, Sublessee shall remain bound by the Sublease in
accordance with its terms and shall neither take any action to modify,
surrender or terminate the same, nor seek nor be entitled to any abatement,
deduction, deferment or reduction of Rent, or set-off against the Rent, nor
shall the respective obligations of Sublessor and Sublessee be otherwise
affected by reason of (a) any damage to, or destruction of, the Subleased
Property or any portion thereof from whatever cause or any Taking of the
Subleased Property or any portion thereof, (b) the lawful or unlawful
prohibition of, or restriction upon, Sublessee's use of the Subleased Property
or any portion thereof, the interference with such use by any person,
corporation, partnership or other entity, or by reason of any eviction by
paramount title, or any other defect in title, or Sublessee's acquisition of
ownership of Sublessor's Estate otherwise than pursuant to an express
provision contained in the Sublease, (c) any claim which Sublessee has or
might have against Sublessor or against any of Sublessor's Assignees, if any,
or by reason of any default or breach of any warranty by Sublessor hereunder
or any other agreement between Sublessor and Sublessee, or to which Sublessor
and Sublessee are parties, (d) any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, winding up or other
proceedings affecting Sublessor or any assignee or transferee of Sublessor, or
any action with respect to the Sublease that may be taken by a trustee or
receiver of Sublessor or any assignee of Sublessor or by any court in any such
proceeding, (e) the discovery of any hazardous waste or toxic substance on the
Subleased Property, the effect of the application of any local, state, or
federal environmental laws, regulations, or ordinances to the Subleased
Property, or the imposition of liability under the "super fund" provisions of
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of
1980, or (f) for any other cause whether similar or dissimilar to any of the
foregoing. Sublessee hereby specifically waives all rights, arising from any
occurrence whatsoever, which may now or hereafter be available to Sublessee by
law or in equity to (i) modify, surrender or terminate the Sublease or quit or
surrender the Subleased Property or any portion thereof, or (ii) entitle
Sublessee to any abatement, reduction, suspension or deferment of the Rent or
other sums payable by Sublessee hereunder, except as otherwise specifically
provided in the Sublease. The obligations of Sublessor and Sublessee under
the Sublease shall be separate and independent covenants and agreements and
the net Basic Rent and Additional Charges and all other sums so payable by
Sublessee shall continue to be payable in all events unless the obligations to
pay the same shall be terminated pursuant to an express provision of the
Sublease.
ARTICLE IX

9.1 Ownership of Sublessor's Estate. Sublessee acknowledges that
Sublessor's Estate is the property of Sublessor and that Sublessee has only
the right to the possession and use of the Subleased Property upon the terms
and conditions of the Sublease.
9.2 Sublessee's Equipment. Sublessee may, at its expense, install
or assemble or place on the Land or in the Subleased Improvements, and remove
and substitute, any items of machinery, equipment furnishings or trade
fixtures or other personal property owned by Sublessee and used or useful in
Sublessee's business, at present or hereafter situated on the Subleased
Property (collectively, "Sublessee's Equipment"), and Sublessee may remove the
same upon the expiration or prior termination of the Term; provided, however,
that Sublessee shall have no right to remove any item which constitutes a
Fixture. All Sublessee's Equipment shall be and remain the property of
Sublessee, provided that any of Sublessee's Equipment not removed by Sublessee
upon the expiration or earlier termination of the Sublease shall be considered
abandoned by Sublessee and may be appropriated, sold, destroyed or otherwise
disposed of by Sublessor without first giving notice thereof to Sublessee and
without obligation to account therefor. All costs and expenses incurred in
removing, storing and disposing of Sublessee's Equipment shall be paid by
Sublessee. Sublessee will repair, at its expense, all damage to the Subleased
Property caused by the installation or removal of Sublessee's Equipment,
whether effected by Sublessee or Sublessor. Sublessor shall not be
responsible for any loss or damage to Sublessee's Equipment.
ARTICLE X
10.1 Condition of the Subleased Property. Sublessee acknowledges
receipt and delivery of possession of the Subleased Property and that
Sublessee has examined title to, and the condition of, the Subleased Property
prior to the execution and delivery of the Sublease and has found the same to
be in good order and repair and satisfactory for all purposes under the
Sublease. Sublessee is renting the Subleased Property "as is" in its present
condition with all faults and defects. SUBLESSOR MAKES NO WARRANTY OR
REPRESENTATION, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IN RESPECT OF THE SUBLEASED PROPERTY OR
ANY PART THEREOF, EITHER AS TO ITS FITNESS FOR USE, DESIGN OR CONDITION FOR
ANY PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE OR OTHERWISE, AS TO QUALITY OF THE MATERIAL OR
WORKMANSHIP THEREIN, LATENT OR PATENT, AS TO SUBLESSOR'S TITLE OR LEASEHOLD
INTEREST, AS APPLICABLE, THEREON OR OTHERWISE, OR AS TO ANY INCOME OR EXPENSES
TO BE DERIVED FROM OR PAID WITH RESPECT TO THE SUBLEASED PROPERTY, IT BEING
AGREED THAT ALL SUCH RISKS ARE TO BE BORNE BY SUBLESSEE. SUBLESSEE
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE SUBLEASED PROPERTY HAS BEEN INSPECTED BY SUBLESSEE AND
IS SATISFACTORY TO IT.
10.2 Use of the Subleased Property. Sublessee may use the Subleased
Property for retail and wholesale sale of lawn and garden products, crafts,
Christmas merchandise and such other merchandise as is typically sold in a
majority of the stores of Sublessee in the state in which the Land is located
and any other retail use subject to Sublessor's approval, which approval will
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed and for no other purpose; provided
that Sublessee shall give Sublessor reasonable prior notice of its intent to
change the present use of the Subleased Property and a description of the
proposed use to which it will be put. Sublessee agrees to comply in a timely
manner with the terms of the Primary Lease or with the provisions of any deed
of trust, mortgage, or security agreement between Owner and Bank regarding the
use of the Subleased Property. Sublessee agrees that it will not permit any
unlawful occupation, business or trade to be conducted on the Subleased
Property or any use to be made of the Subleased Property contrary to any Legal
Requirements or Insurance Requirements applicable thereto. Sublessee shall
not use or occupy or permit the Subleased Property to be used or occupied, nor
do or permit anything to be done in or on the Subleased Property or any part
thereof, in a manner that may make it impossible to obtain fire or other
insurance thereon which Sublessee is, or may be, required to furnish
hereunder, or that will cause or be likely to cause structural injury to any
of the Subleased Improvements, or that will constitute a public or private
nuisance or waste. In the event that Sublessee conducts any activity at the
Subleased Property or uses the Subleased Property in any manner or any
condition exists upon the Subleased Property either before or during
Sublessee's occupancy of the Subleased Property, (i) which would cause such
Subleased Property to become a hazardous waste treatment storage or disposal
facility within the meaning of, or otherwise bring such Subleased Property
within the ambit of, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, 42
U.S.C. Sec. 6901 et seq., or any state law or local ordinance, (ii) so as to
cause a release or threatened release of hazardous waste from such Subleased

Property within the meaning of, or otherwise bring such Subleased Property
within the ambit of, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liability Act of 1980, 42 U.S.C. Sec. 9601-9657, or any state law or local
ordinance or (iii) so as to cause the discharge of pollutants or effluents
into any water source or system, or the discharge into the air of any
emissions, which would require a permit under the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act, 33 U.S.C. Sec. 1251 et seq., or the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. Sec.
7401 et seq., or any state law or local ordinance, Sublessee agrees to (i)
promptly cure same at Sublessee's expense and (ii) protect, indemnify, save
harmless and defend Sublessor, its agents, officers, directors, shareholders,
employees and Sublessor's Assignees, if any, from and against all liability,
obligations, claims, damages, penalties, causes of action, costs and expenses
(including, without limitation, attorneys' fees and expenses) imposed upon or
incurred by any of the above by reason of any of the foregoing. Sublessee
shall fully comply with all applicable environmental laws relating to the
Subleased Property, whether federal, state or local.
ARTICLE XI
11. COMPLIANCE WITH LEGAL AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS, INSTRUMENTS,
ETC. Subject to Article XVI hereof relating to permitted contests, Sublessee,
at its expense, will promptly (a) comply with all Legal Requirements and
Insurance Requirements in respect of the use, operation, maintenance, repair
and restoration of the Subleased Property, whether or not compliance therewith
shall require structural changes in any of the Subleased Improvements or
interfere with the use and enjoyment of the Subleased Property, and whether or
not such Legal Requirements or Insurance Requirements represent a change in
policy of the entity promulgating or enforcing any such Legal Requirement or
Insurance Requirement, and (b) procure, maintain and comply with all licenses
and other authorizations required for any use of the Subleased Property then
being made, and for the proper erection, installation, operation and
maintenance of the Subleased Improvements or any part of any thereof.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Article XI, Sublessee shall
not be required to comply with an Insurance Requirement which consists of mere
recommendation if the failure to comply could not result in higher than
standard premium charges nor jeopardize the continuation of all required
insurance coverage on the Subleased Property.
ARTICLE XII
12.1 Maintenance and Repair.
(a) Sublessee, at its expense, will keep the Subleased
Property and the Equipment in a clean, neat and orderly condition and in good
order and repair and, with reasonable promptness, make all necessary and
appropriate repairs thereto, or replacements thereof or installations therein
of every kind and nature, whether interior or exterior, structural or
non-structural, ordinary or extraordinary, foreseen or unforeseen or arising
by reason of a condition existing prior to the commencement of the applicable
Term (concealed or otherwise). All repairs, restorations and installations
shall, to the extent possible, be at least equivalent in quality to the
original work and shall be made in a good and workmanlike manner. Sublessee
will not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which might
materially impair the value or the usefulness of the Subleased Property or any
part thereof or commit any waste of the Subleased Property or any part
thereof.
(b) Sublessor shall not under any circumstances be required to
build any improvements on the Subleased Property, or to make any repairs,
replacements, alterations or renewals of any nature or description to the
Subleased Property, whether ordinary or extraordinary, structural or
non-structural, foreseen or unforeseen, or, to make any expenditure whatsoever
in connection with the maintenance and repair of the Subleased Property in any
way. Sublessee hereby waives the right to make repairs at the expense of
Sublessor pursuant to any law in effect at the time of the execution of the
Sublease or hereafter enacted.
(c) Nothing contained in the Sublease and no action or
inaction by Sublessor shall be construed as (i) constituting the consent or
request of Sublessor, expressed or implied, to any contractor, subcontractor,
laborer, materialman or vendor to or for the performance of any labor or
services or the furnishing of any materials or other property for the
construction, alteration, addition, repair or demolition of or to the

Subleased Property or any part thereof, or (ii) giving Sublessee any right,
power or permission to contract for or permit the performance of any labor or
services or the furnishing of any materials or other property in such fashion
as would permit the making of any claim against Sublessor in respect thereof
or to make any agreement that may create, or in any way be the basis for, any
right, title, interest, lien, claim or other encumbrance upon the estate of
Sublessor in the Subleased Property.
(d) Unless Sublessor shall cause Owner to convey Owner's
interest in Sublessor's Estate to Sublessee pursuant to the provisions of the
Sublease, upon the expiration or prior termination of the applicable Term,
Sublessee will vacate and surrender the Subleased Property to Sublessor in the
condition in which the Subleased Property was originally received from
Sublessor, except as repaired, rebuilt, restored, altered or added to as
permitted or required by the provisions of the Sublease and except for
ordinary wear and tear.
12.2 Encroachments, Restrictions, Etc. If any of the Subleased
Improvements or any use of or activity on the Subleased Property shall, at any
time, encroach upon any property, street or right-of-way adjacent to the
Subleased Property, or shall violate the agreements or conditions contained in
any restrictive covenant or other agreement affecting the Subleased Property,
or any party thereof, or shall impair the rights of others under any easement
or right-of-way to which the Subleased Property is subject, then promptly upon
the request of Sublessor or at the behest of any person affected by any such
encroachment, violation or impairment, Sublessee shall, at its expense,
subject to its right to contest the existence of any encroachment, violation
or impairment and in such case, in the event of an adverse final
determination, either (i) obtain valid and effective waivers or settlements of
all claims, liabilities and damages resulting from each such encroachment,
violation or impairment, whether the same shall affect Sublessor or Sublessee
or (ii) make such changes in the Subleased Improvements, the uses thereof or
the activities thereon and take such other actions as shall be necessary to
remove such encroachment and to end such violation or impairment, including,
if necessary, the alteration of any of the Subleased Improvements. Any such
alteration shall be made in conformity with the requirements of Section 13.1
hereof.
ARTICLE XIII
13.1 Alterations, Additions and Replacements. Sublessee, at its
expense, may at any time and from time to time after the Commencement Date
make alterations of, and additions to, any of the Subleased Improvements or
any part thereof and replacements for the same (collectively, "Alterations"),
provided that (a) the market value of the Subleased Property shall not be
reduced or its structural integrity or usefulness impaired, (b) the work shall
be done expeditiously and in a good and workmanlike manner, and, if approval
is required, in accordance with approved plans and specifications, (c) the
plans and specifications for any single Alteration with an estimated cost in
excess of $200,000 shall be approved in writing by Sublessor, such approval
not to be unreasonably withheld, (d) Sublessee shall comply with all Legal
Requirements and Insurance Requirements, if any, applicable to the work, (e)
except in the case of removal of a non-load bearing interior wall or similar
structure which has become unnecessary or undesirable by reason of Alterations
made in compliance herewith, no Subleased Improvements shall be demolished
unless Sublessee, unless such requirement is waived by Sublessor, shall have
first furnished Sublessor and Sublessor's Assignees, if any, with such surety
bonds or other security acceptable to Sublessor and Sublessor's Assignees, if
any, as shall assure that the cost of rebuilding of such Subleased
Improvements shall be met, (f) Sublessee shall promptly pay all costs and
expenses and discharge any and all liens arising in respect of the work, and
(g) Owner shall have consented to the making of the Alternations. Subject to
the provisions of Section 13.4, all Alterations shall immediately become and
remain the property of Sublessor, shall be deemed part of the Subleased
Property, and shall be subject to all of the terms and provisions of the
Sublease. In case the estimated cost of any Alteration exceeds $200,000, such
Alteration shall be made under the supervision of a qualified architect or
engineer who shall have been approved in writing by Sublessor, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld. Provided Sublessee is not then in Default
under the Sublease, upon the expiration or earlier termination of the Term,
Sublessee shall have no obligation to restore the Subleased Improvements to
their condition exiting prior to the making of Alterations permitted by this
Section 13.1. No alterations or Additional Facilities shall be made which
would tie in or connect any Subleased Improvements on the Subleased Property

with any other improvements on any property adjacent to the Subleased
Property, except roadways and utilities.
13.2 Salvage. All salvage resulting from materials which are
scrapped or removed in connection with the making of either Alterations
permitted by Section 13.1 or repairs required by Article XII hereof shall be
delivered to Sublessor and the Total Cost shall be reduced by such amount and
the Basic Rent be reduced accordingly.
13.3 Construction of Additional Facilities. Subject to the
requirements of Section 13.1, Sublessee, at its expense, may at any time
hereafter construct Additional Facilities. In case the estimated cost of such
Additional Facilities exceeds $200,000, the same must be constructed under the
supervision of a qualified architect or engineer, and prior to the
commencement of any work thereon, if the estimated cost thereof exceeds
$200,000, notice of the amount of such estimate shall be given to Sublessor in
writing.
ARTICLE XIV
14.

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.
ARTICLE XV

15.1 Liens. Subject to Article XVI hereof relating to permitted
contests, Sublessee will not directly or indirectly create or allow to remain
and will promptly discharge at its expense any lien, encumbrance, attachment,
title retention agreement or claim upon the Subleased Property or any
attachment, levy, claim or encumbrance in respect of the Basic Rent or
Additional Charges provided under the Sublease, not including, however, (a)
the Sublease, (b) the Primary Lease, (c) such other matters, if any, set forth
in Exhibit "B" to the Sublease as shall at the time be in effect and
applicable to the Subleased Property, (d) if not otherwise permitted by
Section 15.2 hereof, restrictions, liens and other encumbrances which are
consented to in writing by Sublessor or any easements which do not materially
and adversely affect (1) the marketability of title to Sublessor's Estate, (2)
the use of the Subleased Property for all purposes of the Sublease or (3) the
fair market value thereof, provided that Sublessee shall first have delivered
an Officer's Certificate to Sublessor certifying as to the matters set forth
in clauses (1), (2) and (3), (e) liens for those taxes of Sublessor which
Sublessee is not required to pay hereunder, (f) liens for Impositions or for
sums resulting from noncompliance with Legal Requirements so long as (1) the
same are not yet payable or are payable without the addition of any fine or
penalty or (2) such liens are in the process of being contested as permitted
by Article XVI hereof, and (h) liens of mechanics, laborers, materialmen,
suppliers or vendors for sums either disputed or not yet due, provided that
(1) the payment of such sums shall not be postponed under any related contract
for more than sixty (60) days after the completion of the action giving rise
to such lien and such reserve or other appropriate provisions as shall be
required by law or sound accounting principles shall have been made therefor
or (2) any such liens are being contested as permitted by Article XVI hereof.
15.2 Title Matters. Throughout the term of this Sublease, Sublessee
shall have the right to evaluate whether various easements and reciprocal
easement and access agreements (but not including any liens) (collectively,
"Title Matters") should be created on the Subleased Property (1) so that
Sublessee's use of the Subleased Property for its intended purposes may be
enhanced. Sublessee, upon evaluating such Title Matters, may request in
writing ("Request") that Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees, if any, execute
certain instruments, enter into certain agreements, or take certain actions
(collectively, "Title Actions") to effectuate a Title Matter. Upon submission
of such Request, Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees shall take the Title
Action unless objections ("Objections") to the Title Matter are raised by
Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees, which Objections must be based on
reasonable cause, or by Owner or Bank. If Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees
send notice of Objections to Sublessee, Sublessee shall modify the instruments
or agreements contemplated or otherwise cure such Objections, whereupon
Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees shall take the Title Action as modified
after curing the Objections. It is intended that Sublessor or Sublessor's
Assignees rely on the good faith judgment of Sublessee in connection with the
Title Matters and Sublessor or Sublessor's Assignees shall not raise
Objections and shall take the Title Action unless Sublessor or Sublessor's
Assignees have reasonable cause to raise Objections or refuse to take the

Title Action or Owner or Bank object to such Title Action. All costs and
expenses incurred relating to the review and evaluation of the Title Matters,
the Request, the Title Action to be taken, and any Objections, including,
without limitation, attorneys' fees, will be included in the Total Cost for
the Subleased Property to which such matters relate.
ARTICLE XVI
16. PERMITTED CONTESTS. Sublessee, on Sublessor's behalf, but at
Sublessee's expense, may contest, by appropriate legal proceedings timely
initiated and conducted in good faith and with due diligence, the amount or
validity or application, in whole or in part, of any Imposition or any Legal
Requirement or Insurance Requirement or any lien, encumbrance, charge or claim
not permitted by Article XV hereof, provided that (a) in the case of an unpaid
Imposition, lien, encumbrance, charge or claim, the commencement and
continuation of such proceedings shall suspend the collection thereof from
Sublessor and/or from the Subleased Property, (b) neither the Subleased
Property, nor Sublessor's Estate, nor any rent therefrom nor any part thereof
or interest therein would be in any immediate danger of being sold, forfeited,
attached or lost, (c) in the case of a Legal Requirement, Sublessor would not
be in any danger of civil or criminal liability for failure to comply
therewith pending the outcome of such proceedings, (d) in the case of a Legal
Requirement and/or an Imposition, lien, encumbrance or charge, Sublessee shall
give such reasonable security as may be demanded by Sublessor, Owner or Bank
to insure ultimate payment of the same and to prevent any sale or forfeiture
of the Subleased Property, Sublessor's Estate, the Basic Rent and any
Additional Charges by reason of such non-payment or noncompliance, provided,
however, the provisions of this Article XVI shall not be construed to permit
Sublessee to contest the payment of Basic Rent, Additional Charges or any
other sums payable by Sublessee to Sublessor under the Sublease or to contest
any payment under or term or provision of the Primary Lease, (e) in the case
of an Insurance Requirement, the coverage agreed to by Sublessor and Sublessee
pursuant to Article V of the Sublease shall be maintained, and (f) if such
contest be finally resolved against Sublessor or Sublessee, Sublessee shall,
as Additional Charges due hereunder, promptly pay the amount required to be
paid, together with all interest and penalties accrued thereon, or comply with
the applicable Legal Requirement or Insurance Requirement. Sublessor, at
Sublessee's expense, shall execute and deliver to Sublessee such
authorizations and other documents as may reasonably be required in any such
contest, and, if reasonably requested by Sublessee, Sublessor and Owner shall
join as a party therein. Sublessee shall indemnify and save Sublessor
harmless against any liability, cost or expense of any kind that may be
imposed upon or incurred by Sublessor in connection with any such contest and
any loss resulting therefrom, including, without limitation, reasonable
attorneys' fees.
ARTICLE XVII
17.

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.
ARTICLE XVIII

18.

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.
ARTICLE XIX

19.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT.

19.1 If any one or more of the following events (individually, an
"Event of Default") shall occur:
(a) if Sublessee shall fail to make payment of any Basic Rent
or Additional Charges payable by Sublessee under the Sublease when the same
becomes due and payable, provided that with respect to the first two defaults
during a 12-month period, a failure to pay shall not constitute a default
until 10 days after due, or
(b) if Sublessee shall fail to observe or perform any other
term, covenant or condition of the Sublease and such failure shall continue
for a period of fifteen (15) days after notice thereof, unless such failure
cannot with due diligence be cured within a period of fifteen (15) days after

notice thereof, in which case such failure shall not be deemed to continue if
such failure is a non-monetary failure and Sublessee proceeds promptly and
with due diligence to cure the failure and diligently completes the curing
thereof within seventy-five (75) days after notice thereof, or
(c) if Sublessee, Guarantor or any Significant Subsidiary
shall make a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or shall
file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or shall file any petition or answer
seeking, consenting to, or acquiescing in reorganization, arrangement,
adjustment, composition, liquidation, dissolution or similar relief under any
present or future statute, law or regulation, or shall file an answer
admitting or failing to deny the material allegations of a petition against it
for any such relief, or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts
as they mature, or there shall be entered against any of them an order for
relief, or
(d) if
Significant Subsidiary
this Section shall not
after the commencement

any proceeding against Sublessee, Guarantor or any
seeking any of the relief mentioned in clause (c) of
have been stayed or dismissed within thirty (30) days
thereof, or

(e) if a trustee, receiver, custodian or liquidator of
Sublessee, Guarantor or any Significant Subsidiary or of any substantial part
of its properties or assets, or of Sublessee's estate or interest in the
Subleased Property, shall be appointed with the consent or acquiescence of
Sublessee, or if any such appointment, if not so consented to or acquiesced
in, shall remain unvacated or unstayed for a period of thirty (30) days
whether or not consecutive, or
(f) if Sublessee, Guarantor or any Significant Subsidiary
shall be liquidated or dissolved, or shall begin proceedings toward such
liquidation or dissolution, or shall, in any manner, permit the divestiture of
substantially all its assets (other than in connection with a merger of
Sublessee or Guarantor into, or a sale of all or substantially all of
Sublessee's or Guarantor's (as the case may be) assets to, another
corporation, provided that the survivor of such merger or the purchaser of
such assets shall be acceptable to Sublessor, Owner and Bank, in their sole
and absolute discretion and shall assume all of Sublessee's or Guarantor's
obligations under the Sublease or the Guaranty (as the case may be), as
appropriate, by a written instrument, in form and substance satisfactory to
Sublessor, Owner and Bank, accompanied by an opinion of counsel, satisfactory
to Sublessor and counsel to Owner and Bank, stating that such instrument of
assumption is valid, binding and enforceable against the parties thereto in
accordance with its terms, and provided further, that the survivor of such
merger or the purchaser of such assets (as the case may be) shall have a
Consolidated Tangible Net Worth immediately after any such merger or purchase,
as appropriate, at least equal to the Consolidated Tangible Net Worth of
Sublessee or Guarantor immediately prior to such merger or purchase, as
appropriate), or
(g) if the estate or interest of Sublessee in the Subleased
Property or any part thereof shall be levied upon or attached in any
proceeding and the same shall not be vacated or discharged within forty-five
(45) days after commencement thereof (unless Sublessee shall be contesting
such lien or attachment in good faith in accordance with Article XVI hereof),
or
(h) if any of the representations or warranties made by or on
behalf of Sublessee or Guarantor, as appropriate, in the Sublease, the
Guaranty or in any other document, certificate or instrument delivered in
connection herewith proves to be untrue, incomplete or misleading in any
material respect unless specifically waived in writing by Sublessor, Owner and
Bank, or
(i) there shall be rendered against the Sublessee, Guarantor
or any Significant Subsidiary final judgment for the payment of money in
excess of one million dollars ($1,000,000) and the Sublessee, Guarantor or any
significant Subsidiary, as the case may be, shall have failed to satisfy such
judgment or to appeal therefrom (or from the order, decree or process pursuant
to which such judgment was granted, passed, entered or affirmed) and to obtain
a stay of execution thereof within the period prescribed by law for appeals,
and to have such judgment discharged within thirty (30) days after the
expiration of such period or the period of any such stay, whichever shall
later expire, or

(j) An "Event of Default" (as defined therein) occurs under
the Credit Facilities Agreement.
(k) an Event of Default under, and as defined in, any other
Sublease shall have occurred and not been waived by Sublessor, then, and in
any such event, and in addition to Sublessor's other rights and remedies under
this Sublease, Sublessor may terminate the Sublease by giving Sublessee not
less than ten (10) days' notice of such termination and upon the expiration of
the time fixed in such notice, the applicable Term shall terminate and all
rights of Sublessee under the Sublease shall cease. Sublessor shall have all
rights and remedies at law and in equity available to Sublessor as a result of
Sublessee's breach of the Sublease.
Sublessee will pay as Additional Charges all costs and expenses
incurred by or on behalf of Sublessor, Owner or Bank, including, without
limitation, attorneys' fees and expenses, as a result of any Event of Default
hereunder.
19.2 If an Event of Default shall have occurred, whether or not the
Sublease has been terminated pursuant to Section 19.1, Sublessee shall, if
required by Sublessor so to do, immediately surrender the Subleased Property
to Sublessor and quit the same, and if permitted by applicable law, Sublessor
may enter upon and repossess the Subleased Property by reasonable force,
summary proceedings, ejectment or otherwise, and may remove Sublessee and all
other persons and any and all personal property from the Subleased Property.
Sublessor shall be under no liability for or by reason of any such entry,
repossession or removal.
19.3 If an Event of Default shall have occurred, whether or not the
Sublease has been terminated pursuant to Section 19.1, Sublessor, with notice
to Sublessee, may, but shall be under no obligation to, relet the Subleased
Property or any part thereof for the account of Sublessee, in the name of
Sublessee or otherwise, for such term or terms (which may be greater or less
than the period which would otherwise have constituted the balance of the then
current Term) and on such conditions (which may include concessions or free
rent) and for such purposes as Sublessor may determine, and may collect,
receive and retain the rents resulting from such reletting. Nothing in this
Sublease shall be construed to impose upon Sublessor any duty to relet the
Subleased Property or otherwise to mitigate Sublessor's damages for any Event
of Default by Sublessee.
19.4 Neither (a) the termination of the Sublease pursuant to Section
19.1, (b) the repossession of the Subleased Property, (c) the failure of
Sublessor to relet the Subleased Property, (d) the reletting of all or any
portion thereof, nor (e) the failure of Sublessor to collect or receive any
rentals due upon any such reletting, shall relieve Sublessee of its liability
and obligations hereunder, all of which shall survive any such termination,
repossession or reletting. In the event of any such termination, Sublessee
shall forthwith pay to Sublessor all Rent due and payable to and including the
date of such termination. Thereafter, monthly on the days on which the Basic
Rent would have been payable under the Sublease if the same had not been
terminated and until the end of what would have been the Term in the absence
of such termination, Sublessee, at Sublessor's option, shall pay Sublessor as
and for liquidated and agreed current damages for Sublessee's default:
(i)
an amount equal to the Basic Rent and Additional
Charges that would have been payable by Sublessee under the Sublease if the
Term had not been terminated, less
(ii)
the net proceeds, if any, of any reletting of the
Subleased Property or any part thereof, after deducting all of Sublessor's
expenses in connection therewith, including, without limitation, repossession
costs, brokerage commissions, attorneys' fees and expenses and any repair or
alteration costs and expenses incurred in preparation for such reletting.
19.5 At any time after the termination of the Sublease pursuant to
Section 19.1, whether or not Sublessor shall have collected any current
damages pursuant to Section 19.4, Sublessor, at its option, shall be entitled
to recover from Sublessee and Sublessee will pay to Sublessor on demand as and
for liquidated and agreed final damages for Sublessee's default (it being
agreed that it would be impractical or extremely difficult to fix the actual
damages), and in lieu of all current damages provided in Section 19.4 beyond
the date to which the same shall have been paid,
(a)

the sum of (i) any past due Rent together with a late

charge thereon (to the extent permitted by law) computed from the due date
thereof to the date of payment of such liquidated damages at the Overdue Rate
(or at the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is the lesser), (ii) the
remaining payments of Basic Rent (which would otherwise have become due during
the remainder of the Term but for such termination) as of the later of the
date to which Basic Rent shall have been paid or the date to which Sublessee
shall have paid current damages pursuant to Section 19.5 discounted to the
date of payment at the rate of seven and one-half percent (7.5%) per annum
calculated on a quarterly basis, together with a late charge thereon computed
from the later of such dates to the date of payment of such liquidated damages
at (to the extent permitted by law) the Overdue Rate (or at the maximum rate
permitted by law, whichever is the lesser), and (iii) an amount equal to the
Additional Charges and other charges (as reasonably estimated by Sublessor)
which would be payable hereunder from such date for what would have been the
unexpired Term had the same not been terminated, discounted to the date of
payment at the rate of seven and one-half percent (7.5%) per annum, calculated
on a quarterly basis, less
(b) the then fair net rental value of the Subleased Property
for the period from the date of payment of such liquidated damages to the date
which would have been the then expiration date of the then current Term had
the Sublease not been terminated (after deducting all reasonable estimated
expenses to be incurred in connection with reletting the Subleased Property,
including, without limitation, repossession costs, brokerage commissions,
attorneys' fees and expenses and repair and alteration costs and expenses)
discounted to the date of payment at the rate of seven and one-half percent
(7.5%) per annum during the then unexpired current Term calculated on a
quarterly basis.
If any statute or rule of law shall validly prohibit or limit the amount of
such liquidated final damages to less than the amount above agreed upon,
Sublessor shall be entitled to the maximum amount allowable under applicable
statutes or rules of law.
19.6 If the Sublease is terminated pursuant to Section 19.1,
Sublessee waives, to the extent permitted by applicable law, (a) any right
which may require Sublessor to sell, lease or otherwise use its interest in
the Subleased Property or any part thereof in mitigation of Sublessor's
damages as set forth in this Article XIX, (b) any notice of re-entry or of the
institution of legal proceedings to that end, (c) any right of redemption,
re-entry or repossession, (d) any right to a trial by jury in the event of
summary proceedings to enforce the remedies set forth in this Article XIX, (e)
the benefit of any laws now or hereafter in force exempting property from
liability for rent or for debt, and (f) any other rights which might otherwise
limit or modify any of Sublessor's rights or remedies under this Article XIX.
19.7 In the event that Sublessor shall terminate the Sublease
pursuant to Section 19.1, subject to the rights provided in Section 19.8,
Sublessee and Guarantors, upon notice from Sublessor, shall comply with the
provisions of Section 36.
19.8 In the event that Sublessor elects to pursue any of the
remedies set forth in Section 19.2 through Section 19.7, then Sublessee shall
have the option, upon providing written notice within ten (10) days of such
election, to purchase Sublessor's Estate (and Sublessor will cause Owner to
convey Owner's interest therein to Sublessee) on a date which is within thirty
(30) days of the delivery of such notice for a purchase price equal to all
Rents to be paid hereunder through the Interim Term, plus the total amount due
under the Guarantee and such purchase shall otherwise be completed in
accordance with Article XXI hereof (including the payment by Sublessee of all
costs and expenses contemplated therein); provided, however, that Sublessee
shall pay, prior to exercising such option, all Rent and other sums due under
the Sublease to the date set for purchase of Sublessor's Estate.
ARTICLE XX
20. SUBLESSOR'S RIGHT TO CURE SUBLESSEE'S DEFAULT. If Sublessee
shall fail to make any payment or perform any act required to be made or
performed under the Sublease, Sublessor, or Owner or Bank, without waiving or
releasing any obligation or Default, may (but shall be under no obligation to)
at any time thereafter make such payment or perform such act for the account
and at the expense of Sublessee, and may enter upon the Subleased Property for
such purpose and take all such action thereon as, in the opinion of Sublessor
or Owner or Bank may be necessary or appropriate therefor. No such entry

shall be deemed an eviction of Sublessee. All sums so paid by Sublessor or
Owner or Bank and all costs and expenses (including, without limitation,
attorneys' fees and expenses) so incurred, together with a late charge thereon
(to the extent permitted by law) at the Overdue Rate (or at the maximum rate
permitted by law, whichever is less) from the date on which such sums or
expenses are paid or incurred by Sublessor or Owner or Bank shall be paid by
Sublessee to Sublessor or Owner or Bank on demand.
ARTICLE XXI
21. PROVISIONS RELATING TO PURCHASE BY SUBLESSEE. In the event
Sublessee or a third party purchases Sublessor's Estate from Sublessor
pursuant to any of the terms of the Sublease, Sublessor shall cause Owner,
upon receipt from Sublessee of the applicable purchase price, together with
full payment of any unpaid Rent due and payable on or before the date of the
purchase, execute and deliver to Sublessee, on the purchase date, an
appropriate assignment conveying title by general warranty with respect to
Owner's interest in Sublessor's Estate free and clear of any liens and
encumbrances other than those in existence and affecting Owner's interest in
Sublessor's Estate on the date hereof or created or permitted by Sublessee
(except for any liens to the Bank or other lenders to Owner). The conveyance
of the Subleased Improvements shall be "as is" with all faults and defects.
The purchase price shall be paid to Sublessor or as Sublessor may direct, in
immediately available U.S. cash funds without deduction or offset for any
cause whatsoever. All expenses of such conveyance including, without
limitation, documentary stamps and other conveyance taxes, the cost of title
examination and title insurance, the cost (including prepayment premium, if
any) of obtaining and recording a release of such Subleased Property from the
lien of any deed of trust or mortgage, broker's fee, if any, attorneys' fees
incurred by Sublessor in connection with such conveyance and release, transfer
taxes and recording fees, taxes and other charges shall be paid by Sublessee.
In addition, Sublessee shall assume all Impositions, without proration.
Unless otherwise specified in this Sublease, the purchase date shall be the
date specified by Sublessee pursuant to the notice provisions contained herein
and within the time frames specified; provided, however, the purchase date
shall in no event be later than ninety (90) days after the date the offer to
purchase is given (unless a shorter period of time is expressly prescribed
herein in which case the purchase date shall be no later than the date so
prescribed).
ARTICLE XXII
22. HOLDING OVER. If Sublessee shall for any reason remain in
possession of the Subleased Property after the expiration of the Term or
earlier termination of the Term hereof, such possession shall be as a
month-to-month tenant during which time Sublessee shall pay as rental one
hundred twenty percent (120%) of the Basic Rent due or to be due from July 1,
1998 to June 30, 2000.
ARTICLE XXIII
23. NO RECOURSE TO SUBLESSOR. No recourse shall be had against the
Sublessor, or its successors or assigns, or its employees, officers, directors
or shareholders for any claim based on any failure by the Sublessor in the
performance or observance of any of the agreements, covenants or provisions
contained in the Sublease or with respect to any certificate or instrument
given by any of the above in accordance with the terms hereof. In the event
of any such failure, recourse shall be had solely against Sublessor's Estate.
However, rights of enforcement against Sublessor's Estate are subject to and
subordinate to the rights of Sublessor's Assignees, if any, with respect
thereto and to any mortgage or deed of trust affecting the Subleased Property.
Nothing contained in the foregoing, however, shall restrict the right of
Sublessee to commence any proceedings against Sublessor for the breach of its
agreements or covenants contained in the Sublease; provided, however, that, in
the event that any judgment is obtained against Sublessor, the same shall not
be the basis of a right of offset, deferment or reduction of the Rent due
under the Sublease.
ARTICLE XXIV
24.

RISK OF LOSS.

The risk of loss or of decrease in the enjoyment

and beneficial use of the Subleased Property in consequence of the damage or
destruction thereof by fire, the elements, casualties, thefts, riots, wars or
otherwise, or in consequence of foreclosures, attachments, levies or
executions (other than by Sublessor and those claiming from, through or under
Sublessor, except Sublessee) is assumed by Sublessee, and Sublessor shall in
no event be answerable or accountable therefor. None of the events mentioned
in this Section shall entitle Sublessee to any abatement of Basic Rent or
Additional Charges.
ARTICLE XXV
25. INDEMNIFICATION BY SUBLESSEE. Sublessee will protect,
indemnify, save harmless and defend Pier 1 and Sublessor, their respective
principals, agents, officers, directors, shareholders, employees, and Owner
and Bank, from and against all liabilities, obligations, claims, damages,
penalties, causes of action, costs and expenses (including, without
limitation, attorneys' fees and expenses) imposed upon or incurred by or
asserted against Pier 1 or Sublessor or any of Owner or Bank, by reason of:
(a) the acquisition and ownership and leasing of, or the holding of any
security in, or the occupation, possession, conduct or management of the
Subleased Property or the Sublessor's Estate therein, as applicable, (b) any
accident, injury to or death of persons or loss of or damage to property
occurring on or about the Subleased Property or adjoining sidewalks, (c) any
use, misuse, non-use, condition, maintenance or repair of the Subleased
Property, (d) any Impositions, (e) any failure on the part of Sublessee to
perform or comply with any of the terms of the Sublease, (f) the extension of
the terms of any ground lease beyond the Term of the Sublease upon the request
of Sublessee, including, but not limited to, the rent and other sums payable
thereunder during such period, if applicable, (g) the non-performance of any
of the terms and provisions of any and all existing and future subleases of
the Subleased Property to be performed by the landlord thereunder and (h)
breach of any restrictive covenants or easements or zoning or other
governmental laws or regulations affecting the Subleased Property. Sublessee,
at its expense, shall contest, resist and defend any such claim, action or
proceeding asserted or instituted against Pier 1 or Sublessor, or any of
Sublessor's Assignees, if any, and may compromise or otherwise dispose of the
same as Sublessee sees fit. Sublessee expressly acknowledges and agrees that
this Article protects Pier 1, Sublessor and Owner and Bank from the
consequences of Pier 1's, Sublessor's or Owner's or Bank's acts or omissions
relating to this Sublease, the Subleased Property, operations of Sublessee on
other leased properties, and books and records relating thereto, including
without limitation the negligent acts or omissions of Pier 1, Sublessor or
Owner or Bank. Sublessee's liability under the provisions of this Article
arising during the Term hereof shall survive any termination of the Sublease.
ARTICLE XXVI
26. NO SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNMENT. Sublessee may not sublet all of
the Subleased Property or any part thereof, nor assign or transfer the Leased
Property or any part thereof, without the express prior written consent of
Sublessor and Owner, which consent may be withheld in the sole discretion of
Sublessor and/or Owner.
ARTICLE XXVII
27.

OFFICER'S CERTIFICATES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

(a) At any time and from time to time upon request by
Sublessor or Owner or Bank, Sublessee will furnish to Sublessor or any party
designated by Sublessor an Officer's Certificate certifying any or all of the
following as requested, (i) that the Sublease is in full force and effect (or
that the Sublease is in full force and effect as modified and setting forth
the modifications) and the dates to which the Basic Rent and all Additional
Charges have been paid, (ii) either that Sublessee does not know of any
default in the performance of any provisions of the Sublease or specifying any
Default of which Sublessee may have knowledge and stating what action
Sublessee is taking or proposes to take with respect thereto, (iii) that, to
the knowledge of Sublessee, there are no proceedings pending or threatened
against Sublessee before or by any court or administrative agency which, if
adversely decided, would materially and adversely affect the financial
condition or operations of Sublessee, or, if any such proceedings are pending
or threatened to the knowledge of Sublessee, specifying and describing the

same, (iv) that Sublessee has no offsets, credits, or claims under or with
respect to the Sublease, and (v) such other information as Owner or Bank may
reasonably require from time to time. Any such certificate furnished pursuant
to this Section may be relied upon by Sublessor, Owner and Bank, and any
prospective purchaser of Sublessor's Estate. Sublessee will also furnish
Sublessor, upon request of Sublessor, an Officer's Certificate certifying the
amount of the Consolidated Tangible Net Worth of Sublessee, as shown on the
most current consolidated balance sheet of Sublessee and its consolidated
subsidiaries as sent to its stockholders.
(b) Sublessor and Owner and Bank shall have the right to visit
and discuss with Sublessee's and Guarantor's chief financial officers, upon
reasonable notice at a reasonable time, the financial affairs of Sublessee and
Guarantor, as appropriate. Sublessee will furnish the following statements to
Sublessor, Owner and Bank:
(i)
within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of
each of Guarantor's fiscal years, the annual audit report of Guarantor,
including a balance sheet, statement of changes in financial position and an
income and surplus statement for the fiscal year covered thereby, setting
forth in comparative form, the figures for the previous fiscal year, all on a
fully consolidated basis and in reasonable detail and duly certified by the
independent certified public accountants regularly employed by Guarantor,
(ii)
within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of
each of Guarantor's fiscal years, and together with the annual audit report
furnished in accordance with clause (i), an Officer's Certificate stating that
to the best of the signer's knowledge and belief after making due inquiry,
Sublessee is not in default in the performance or observance of any of the
terms of the Sublease or if Sublessee shall be in Default to its knowledge,
specifying all such Defaults, the nature thereof, and the steps being taken to
remedy the same,
(iii)
with reasonable promptness, copies of all financial
statements and reports which Guarantor shall send to its stockholders, and
copies of each Form 10-K, Form 10-Q, Form 8-K, proxy statement and
registration statement (other than Form S-8 registration statements), or
copies of any successor forms or statements substituted therefor, which
Guarantor shall file with the Securities and Exchange Commission or any
governmental agency substituted therefor, and
(iv)
with reasonable promptness, such other information,
consistent with the disclosure requirements of the federal securities laws,
respecting the financial condition and affairs of Guarantor, as Sublessor,
Owner or Bank may request from time to time.
ARTICLE XXVIII
28.1 Sublessor's Right to Inspect. Sublessee and Guarantor shall
permit Sublessor, Owner and Bank, and their respective authorized
representatives and any prospective purchasers, tenants and mortgagees to
inspect the Subleased Property during usual business hours.
28.2 Sublessee's Right to Inspect. Sublessor shall permit Sublessee
and its respective authorized representatives, purchasers, subtenants, and
mortgagees to inspect and audit Sublessor's books and records during usual
business hours. Sublessor shall use its best efforts to cause Owner to
provide Sublessee access to Owner's books and records substantiating any of
Owner's costs.
ARTICLE XXIX
29. NO WAIVER BY SUBLESSOR. No failure by Sublessor to insist upon
the strict performance of any term hereof or to exercise any right, power or
remedy consequent upon a breach thereof, and no acceptance of full or partial
payment of Rent during the continuance of any such breach, shall constitute a
waiver of any such breach or of any such term unless waived in writing by
Sublessor, Owner and Bank. No waiver of any breach shall affect or alter the
Sublease, which shall continue in full force and effect with respect to any
other then existing or subsequent breach. No foreclosure, sale or other
proceeding under any deed of trust or mortgage shall effectuate a termination
of the lease or discharge or otherwise affect the obligations of Sublessee
hereunder.

ARTICLE XXX
30. REMEDIES CUMULATIVE. Each legal, equitable or contractual
right, power and remedy of Sublessor now or hereafter provided either in the
Sublease or by statute or otherwise shall be cumulative and concurrent and
shall be in addition to every other right, power and remedy, and the exercise
or beginning of the exercise by Sublessor of any one or more of such rights,
powers and remedies shall not preclude the simultaneous or subsequent exercise
by Sublessor of any or all of such other rights, powers and remedies.
ARTICLE XXXI
31. ACCEPTANCE OF SURRENDER. No surrender to Sublessor of the
Sublease or of the Subleased Property or any part thereof or of any interest
therein shall be valid or effective unless agreed to and accepted in writing
by Sublessor, Owner and Bank, and no act by Sublessor or any representative or
agent of Sublessor and Owner and Bank, other than such a written acceptance by
Sublessor and Owner and Bank shall constitute an acceptance of any such
surrender.
ARTICLE XXXII
32. NO MERGER OF TITLE. There shall be no merger of the Sublease
or of the leasehold estate created hereby by reason of the fact that the same
person, firm, corporation or other entity may acquire, own or hold, directly
or indirectly, (a) the Sublease or the leasehold estate created hereby or any
interest in the Sublease or such leasehold estate and (b) Sublessor's Estate
created by any ground lease related to the Subleased Property, if any, or (c)
the fee estate in the Sublease Property or any interest therein, if any.
ARTICLE XXXIII
33.

OPTION TO PURCHASE.

(a) From the date hereof to June 30, 1997, Sublessee shall
have the option to purchase, for its own account or for that of its designee,
Sublessor's Estate from Sublessor (and Sublessor will cause Owner to convey
Owner's interest therein to Sublessee) on the day specified in the offer which
is not later than June 30, 1997, for a net purchase price equal to the fair
market value thereof as determined in accordance with the provisions of
Article XXXIV. Sublessee shall provide Sublessor (and Sublessor shall provide
Owner) with written notice of its decision to exercise this option not later
than sixty days prior to June 30, 1997. If Sublessee exercises its option,
Sublessor shall cause Owner to convey title by general warranty of Owner's
interest in Sublessor's Estate to Sublessee on the date set for the purchase
thereof in accordance with the provisions of Article XXI and upon receipt of
payment in cash of the purchase price therefor.
(b) From July 1, 1997, to June 30, 1998, Sublessee shall have
the option to purchase, for its own account or for that of its designee,
Sublessor's Estate from Sublessor (and Sublessor will cause Owner to convey
Owner's interest therein to Sublessee) on the day specified in the offer which
is not later than June 30, 1998, for a net purchase price equal to the fair
market value thereof as determined in accordance with the provisions of
Article XXXIV. Sublessee shall provide Sublessor (and Sublessor shall provide
Owner) with written notice of its decision to exercise this option not later
than sixty days prior to June 30, 1998. If Sublessee exercises its option,
Sublessor shall cause Owner to convey title by general warranty of Owner's
interest in Sublessor's Estate to Sublessee on the date set for the purchase
thereof in accordance with the provisions of Article XXI and upon receipt of
payment in cash of the purchase price therefor.
(c) From July 1, 1998, to June 30, 2000, Sublessee shall have
the option to purchase, for its own account or for that of its designee,
Sublessor's Estate from Sublessor (and Sublessor will cause Owner to convey
Owner's interest therein to Sublessee) on the day specified in the offer which
is not later than June 30, 2000, for a net purchase price equal to the fair
market value thereof as determined in accordance with the provisions of
Article XXXIV. Sublessee shall provide Sublessor (and Sublessor shall provide
Owner) with written notice of its decision to exercise this option not later

than sixty days prior to June 30, 2000. If Sublessee exercises its option,
Sublessor shall cause Owner to convey title by general warranty of Owner's
interest in Sublessor's Estate to Sublessee on the date set for the purchase
thereof in accordance with the provisions of Article XXI and upon receipt of
payment in cash of the purchase price therefor.
ARTICLE XXXIV
34. FAIR MARKET VALUE. For all purposes of this Sublease,
Sublessor and Sublessee agree that the fair market value of Sublessor's Estate
until June 30, 1997, shall be equal to 90% of Total Cost incurred by
Sublessor, and the fair market value of Sublessor's Estate from July 1, 1997,
to June 30, 2000, shall be equal to 100% of Total Cost incurred by Sublessor.

ARTICLE XXXV
35. SALE TO THIRD PARTY. If no Event of Default then exists,
Sublessor will cause Owner to sell Owner's interest in the Subleased Property
to a third party purchaser designated by Sublessee at any time at a price not
less than the fair market value of Sublessor's Estate therein.
ARTICLE XXXVI
36. OBLIGATIONS TO PURCHASE BY SUBLESSEE. In the event of either
(i) notification to Sublessee of the occurrence of circumstances that will
give rise to an Environmental Put Date or (ii) a Business Close Date, then in
either such case Sublessee shall immediately purchase, for its own account or
for that of its designee, Sublessor's Estate from Sublessor (and Sublessor
will cause Owner to convey Owner's interest therein to Sublessee), for a net
purchase price equal to the fair market value thereof as determined in
accordance with the provisions of Article XXXIV. Sublessor shall cause Owner
to convey title by general warranty of Owner's interest in Sublessor's Estate
to Sublessee on the date set for the purchase thereof in accordance with the
provisions of Article XXI and upon receipt of payment in cash of the purchase
price therefor.
ARTICLE XXXVII
37. CONVEYANCE BY SUBLESSOR. If Sublessor or any successor owner
of Sublessor's Estate shall convey all or any part of Sublessor's Estate other
than as security for a debt, Sublessor or such successor owner, as the case
may be, shall thereupon be released from all future liabilities and
obligations of the Sublessor under the Sublease and all such future
liabilities and obligations shall thereupon be binding upon the new owner,
subject to the provisions of Article XXIII hereof. No such transfer shall
release Sublessee of its obligations under Article XXV hereof.
ARTICLE XXXVIII
38. QUIET ENJOYMENT. So long as Sublessee shall pay all Rent as
the same becomes due and shall fully comply with all of the terms of the
Sublease and fully perform its obligation under the Sublease, Sublessee shall
peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Subleased Property for the Term
hereof, free of any claim or other action by Sublessor or anyone claiming by,
through or under Sublessor, but subject to the Primary Lease and to all liens
and encumbrances affecting the Subleased Property and the terms of the
Sublease. No failure by Sublessor to comply with the foregoing covenant, or
any other covenant, term, condition, or provision contained herein or in any
instrument executed in connection herewith, shall give Sublessee any right to
cancel or terminate the Sublease or abate, reduce or make a deduction from or
offset against the Basic Rent or Additional Charges or any other sum payable
under the Sublease, or to fail to perform any other obligations of Sublessee
under the Sublease.
ARTICLE XXXIX
39. NOTICES. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals
and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and delivered,

telecopied, telegraphed, telexed or mailed (by United States registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid), addressed to
the respective parties, as follows:
(a)

if to Sublessee:
Wolfe Nursery, Inc.
500 Terminal Road
Fort Worth, Texas 76106
Attention: President
Telecopy No.: (817) 626-6279

(b)

if to Sublessor:
Pier Lease, Inc.
301 Commerce Street, Suite 600
Fort Worth, Texas 76102
Attention: General Counsel
Telecopy No.: (817) 878-7861

(c)

if to Guarantor:
Sunbelt Nursery Group, Inc.
500 Terminal Road
Fort Worth, Texas 76106
Attention: President
Telecopy No.: (817) 626-6279

or to such other address as either party may hereafter designate, and shall be
effective upon receipt (i) if hand delivered, as evidenced by a receipt signed
by a person at such address, (ii) upon expiration of three (3) days after the
day of mailing, (iii) upon transmission to the specified telex number and
receipt of the appropriate answer back, or (iv) upon confirmation of a legible
telecopy transmission.
ARTICLE XL
40. COMPLIANCE WITH PRIMARY LEASE. This Sublease is subject and
subordinate to all of the terms and provisions of the Primary Lease and to the
rights of Owner under the Primary Lease. In the event the Primary Lease shall
terminate before the expiration of this Sublease, the Sublessee will, at
Owner's option, attorn to Owner and waive any right the Sublessee may have to
terminate this Sublease or to surrender possession hereunder as a result of
the termination of the Primary Lease, and in the event the Sublessee hereunder
receives a written notice from Owner or Owner's Assignees, if any, stating
that Sublessor is in default under the Primary Lease, Sublessee shall
thereafter be obligated to pay all rentals accruing under this Sublease
directly to the party giving such notice, or as such party may direct.
Sublessor agrees to obtain within thirty (30) days after the date hereof, a
nondisturbance agreement from Owner in a form reasonably satisfactory to
Sublessee.
ARTICLE XLI
41.

MISCELLANEOUS.

41.1 Survival of Claims. Anything contained in the Sublease to the
contrary notwithstanding, all claims against, and liabilities of, the
Sublessee arising prior to any date of termination of the Sublease shall
survive such termination.
41.2 Severability. If any term or provision of the Sublease or any
application thereof shall be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the
Sublease and any other application of such term or provision shall not be
affected thereby.
41.3 Maximum Interest Rate. Any late charges provided for in any
provision of the Sublease shall bear interest at the Basic Rent plus five
percent (5%) per annum. If such late charges are based upon a rate in excess
of the maximum rate permitted by applicable law, the parties agree that such

charges shall be fixed at the maximum permissible rate. Sublessor and
Sublessee expressly stipulate and agree that their intent is at all times to
comply with the applicable law now or hereafter governing the interest payable
pursuant to this Section 41.3 of the Sublease. If the applicable law is ever
revised, repealed, or judicially interpreted so as to render usurious any
amount called for, contracted, charged, taken, reserved, or received under
this Sublease, then Sublessor and Sublessee expressly intend that all excess
amounts theretofore collected by Sublessor be credited to the Rent due under
this Sublease (or refunded to Sublessee if no Rent is then due or if this
Sublease has terminated or expired), and that the provisions of this Sublease
immediately be deemed reformed and the amounts thereafter collectible reduced,
without the necessity of executing a new document, so as to comply with the
then applicable law, but so as to permit the recovery of the fullest amount
otherwise called for hereunder.
41.4 Modification. Neither the Sublease nor any provision hereof
may be changed, waived, discharged or terminated except by an instrument in
writing and recordable form signed by Sublessor, Sublessee and Owner.
Furthermore, no Rent or other amounts will be paid or accepted in advance, no
concessions under the provisions of this Sublease will be given, and no other
action of any kind or character whatsoever will be taken by Sublessor or
Sublessee that would be materially detrimental to Owner, without the prior
written consent of Owner.
41.5 Binding Upon Assigns. All the terms and provisions of the
Sublease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto
and their respective successors and permitted assigns. For all purposes under
the provisions of this Sublease, the word "Sublessor" shall include its
successors and assigns, except that Owner and Bank shall not be subject to any
obligations of this Sublease.
41.6 Effect of Headings and Table of Contents. The headings and
table of contents in the Sublease are for convenience of reference only and
shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning hereof.
41.7 Governing Law. With respect to the Subleased Property, the
Sublease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State in which the Subleased Property is located. Sublessee agrees that the
obligations under the terms of this Sublease are performable in the State of
Texas and hereby waives the right to transfer or change the venue of any
action brought under this Sublease in Tarrant County, Texas, provided,
however, that venue of such action is legally proper in Tarrant County, Texas.
ARTICLE XLII
42. MEMORANDUM OF SUBLEASE. Sublessor and Sublessee shall,
promptly upon the request of either, enter into a short form memorandum of the
Sublease, in form suitable for recording under the laws of the State in which
the Subleased Property is located, in which reference to the Sublease shall be
made.
ARTICLE XLIII
43. TRUE SUBLEASE. Sublessor and Sublessee acknowledge and confirm
that the Sublease is intended as a true sublease between the parties and is
not intended as, and shall not be deemed to be, a mortgage or other security
device, a joint venture or partnership, or otherwise. In the event, however,
that the Sublease shall at any time be construed as a mortgage, deed of trust
or other security device by a court of competent jurisdiction, then Sublessor
and Sublessee agree as follows:
(a) The principal amount of the indebtedness due and payable
by Sublessee to Sublessor with respect to the Sublease shall be the Total Cost
paid by Sublessor and not reimbursed by Sublessee as of the applicable date,
and interest shall accrue and be charged on the unpaid balance of the
principal amount outstanding from time to time at the Applicable Rate,
provided that such rate shall never exceed the highest lawful applicable
contractual rate of interest. The principal amount, accrued interest thereon
as aforesaid, and all other amounts due and payable by Sublessee to Sublessor
under the terms of the Sublease shall be deemed to be the "indebtedness" (the
"Indebtedness") payable by Sublessee and secured by the provisions of the
Sublease. The Indebtedness shall be payable in installments at the times and
in the amounts set forth in the Sublease; provided, that upon the occurrence

of an Event of Default under the terms of the Sublease, then all of the
Indebtedness payable with respect to the Sublease shall, at the option of
Sublessor or Owner or Bank by written notice thereof given to Sublessee, be
immediately due and payable in full.
(b) Sublessor and Owner and Bank, as assignee of Sublessor,
shall have all rights and remedies with respect to the enforcement of liens
and security interests against the Subleased Property for the collection of
the Indebtedness, including without limitation, foreclosure thereof, as set
forth in the deed of trust or mortgage (as the case may be) executed and
delivered by the Sublessor and covering the Subleased Property (such deed of
trust or mortgage being called a "Mortgage"). Without limitation of the
foregoing, Sublessor and Owner and Bank shall have all rights, remedies and
recourses and shall be entitled to foreclose upon and sell the Subleased
Property and apply the proceeds thereof in accordance with the provisions of
Articles III and IV of the Mortgage encumbering the Subleased Property, which
articles are hereby incorporated fully by reference.
(c) All agreements between Sublessor, Owner and Bank, whether
now existing or hereafter arising whether written or oral, and whether set
forth in the Sublease or otherwise, are hereby limited so that in no
contingency, whether by reason of demand or acceleration or recharacterization
of the transactions set forth in the Sublease or otherwise, shall the interest
contracted for, charged, received, paid or agreed to be paid to Sublessor or
Owner or Bank exceed the maximum amount permissible by law. If, from any
circumstance whatsoever, interest would otherwise be payable to Sublessor or
Owner or Bank in excess of the maximum lawful amount, the interest payable
shall be reduced to the maximum amount permitted under applicable law; and if
from any circumstance Sublessor or Owner or Bank shall ever receive anything
of value deemed interest by applicable law in excess of the maximum lawful
amount, an amount equal to any excess of interest shall be applied to the
reduction of the principal of the indebtedness owed and not to the payment of
interest, or if such excessive interest exceeds the unpaid balance of
principal, such excess shall be refunded to Sublessee. All interest paid or
agreed to be paid to Sublessor or Owner or Bank shall, to the extent permitted
by applicable law, be amortized, prorated, allocated and spread throughout the
full period until payment in full of the principal so that the interest on the
indebtedness for such full period shall not exceed the maximum amount
permitted by applicable law. This paragraph shall control all agreements
between Sublessor, Sublessee, Owner and Bank.

EXHIBIT "B"
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

EXHIBIT II

SUBLEASE PROPERTY

SUBLEASE
DATE

Southlake
10/14/94
Austin/Gardenland
11/12/94
Irving
11/12/94
Odessa
11/16/94
Dallas/Lewisville
12/30/94
San Antonio/I-10&Wurzbach12/30/94
Houston/Pasadena
12/30/94

COST
$

880,000
2,900,000
800,000
719,443
1,915,711
2,179,931
1,664,968

College Station
Houston/Cypress
Hurst/Grapevine
Arlington/Lamar
Dallas/Greenville
Houston/Westheimer

12/30/94
1/28/95
1/28/95
5/24/95
7/08/95
10/20/95

1,465,684
2,070,087
1,785,001
1,692,513
1,743,319
2,941,929
$22,758,586

Aggregate deposit held by Pier Group: $74,569

EXHIBIT 21
ROSTER OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Pier 1 Assets, Inc., a Delaware corporation
Pier 1 Licensing, a Delaware corporation
Pier 1 Imports (U.S.), Inc., a Delaware corporation
Pier Lease, Inc., a Delaware corporation
Pier-ASD, Inc., a Delaware corporation
Pier-SNG, Inc., a Delaware corporation
PIR Trading, Inc., a Delaware corporation
Pier International Limited, a Hong Kong private
company
Hyannis Retail Group, Ltd., a Massachusetts corporation
M&B Enterprises, Inc., a Massachusetts corporation
M&B Enterprises of Manchester, Inc., a New Hampshire
corporation

EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration
Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 33-9970, 33-32166 and 33-50278) and Form S-3 (No.
33-49356) of Pier 1 Imports, Inc. of our report dated April 7, 1995, in Item
8 of this Form 10-K.
/s/Price Waterhouse, LLP
PRICE WATERHOUSE, LLP
Fort Worth, Texas
May 26, 1995
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